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Sustained Growth 

in Secure Highly-Reliable 

Wireless Communication 

Technologies

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (TCS) (NASDAQ: TSYS) is a world leader in highly reliable 

and secure wireless communication technology. TCS provides end-to-end, secure, satellite-

based solutions, including deployable ground terminals and precision components, fi eld support, 

teleport and bandwidth access, and professional cybersecurity and IT services. TCS is at the 

forefront of new mobile cloud computing services providing wireless applications for navigation, 

hyper-local search, asset tracking, social applications, and telematics. For cellular networks 

around the world, TCS is a leader in text messaging and location-based services, including 

E9-1-1 call routing. Headquartered in Annapolis, MD, TCS maintains technical, service, and sales 

offices around the world. 

About the Company

In 2011, TeleCommunication Systems 
continued to grow and transform as a world 
leader in highly reliable and secure mobile 
communication technology. 

In addition to generating record revenues and 
gross profi t, 2011 was a year of investing in 
engineering depth, enhancing the performance 
and functionality of our systems and services, 
strengthening our sales and marketing, and 
increasing the resources to protect and 
monetize our expanding IP portfolio.

Our continuous growth over the last 13 years 
has brought TCS to a scale that positions 
us to participate in greater global market 
opportunities. With solutions provided on six 
continents, we have a broadening footprint 
of deployments across federal, state and 
commercial users of TCS technology. Our size 
and experience are important differentiators as 
we bid on large government contracts and new 
carrier business around the globe.
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monetize our expanding IP portfolio.

Our continuous growth over the last 13 years 
has brought TCS to a scale that positions 
us to participate in greater global market 
opportunities. With solutions provided on six 
continents, we have a broadening footprint 
of deployments across federal, state and 
commercial users of TCS technology. Our size 
and experience are important differentiators as 
we bid on large government contracts and new 
carrier business around the globe.

Government

Commercial

CAGR = Compound Annual Growth Rate 

28
% CAGR

201120102009200820072006

$191

$234
$425

$202

$127
$102

$75$77

$187

$173

$118

$69
$48

$389

$300

$220

$144
$125

Revenue 
in millions

Patent-related gains

EBITDA = Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization

See reconciliation to GAAP on the inside
back cover

27
% CAGR

201120102009200820072006

$59

$66$65

$37

$16

$8

$49

$29

$15$17

EBITDA
in millions

Dear Fellow Shareholders

Maurice B.  Tosé
Chairman, President 

and CEO

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Headquarters

275 West Street, Annapolis, MD  21401
410.263.7616   •   1.888.728.TSYS (8797)

www.telecomsys.com

2 0 1 1  A N N U A L  R E P O R T



Supplier Business’s Connected Car Report projects that more than 
50% of North American drivers will be using smartphones by 2013. 
TCS technology that incorporates safety rules and interoperability with 
automotive head units and dashboard screens will be increasingly valu-
able and prolifi c.

Safety and Security. The FCC predicts that spending on Next 
Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) infrastructure over the next ten years will 
total $1.2 billion of nonrecurring investment and $300 million of annual 
recurring spending. TCS expects to be a leader in this market.

Since deploying the fi rst U.S. wireless E9-1-1 solution in 1998, TCS 
has been a leader in enabling public safety solutions for wireless 
E9-1-1, NG9-1-1, and E1-1-2. We are pioneering the methods by which 
U.S. public safety answering points can receive a wireless or VoIP 
subscriber’s location and other information like photos and videos 
during emergency calls.

In 2011, we were awarded contracts to supply NG9-1-1 solutions by the 
States of Tennessee and Iowa and the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments (metro Dallas), and we expect to deliver the fi rst state-
wide implementation in the nation in 2012. Our major role in the NG9-1-1 
partner ecosystem has been widely recognized as an important step for 
broad next generation deployments. 

Messaging. While the contribution from our more mature text mes-
saging business became less signifi cant in 2011, we continued to earn 
steady support and maintenance revenue. And we foresee continued 
use of text messaging service for 3G/4G networks for years to come in 
consumer and enterprise markets.

In addition to enterprise messaging, TCS provides a mobile security 
solution suite, TCS Secure the Edge™, which provides authentication, 
verifi cation, notifi cation and compliance to protect valuable corporate 
information over broadband networks. 

In 2011, we received our fi rst six orders for Commercial Mobile Alerts 
Service (CMAS), which enables wireless carriers to comply with the 

rapidly approaching April 2012 deadline to integrate with the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Gateway. Our technology can 
be further monetized in enterprise solutions to enable message broad-
casts of local and geographically relevant information. 

TCS continues to support the use of SMS to access 911 wireless 
emergency services. We are well positioned to assist all public safety 
stakeholders in deployment of this emergency service, leveraging TCS’ 
unique qualifi cations, experience and IP in E9-1-1 and messaging. 

Intellectual Property

During the year, we engaged a leading IP strategy fi rm to evaluate our 
patent portfolio. While we believe their $114 million to $171 million 
estimation was conservative, we take the long view in addressing the 
global growth markets for which we build solutions. We added more 
than 80 patents in 2011, and ended the year with 217 patents and 330 
applications pending worldwide. We are actively planning the most 
effective mechanisms to use these assets, which include direct out-
licensing efforts, cross licensing and enforcement to maintain our mar-
ket advantage.

Looking Ahead

We believe our size and transparency as a public company position us 
well for new large business opportunities for our technology around the 
world. The TCS leadership team is collaborating to expand our market 
footprint beyond the network operators and federal agencies where we 
began. 

In 2012, we expect to signifi cantly increase our traction in markets out-
side North America. Our deliverables have been hardened in large scale 
networks and government environments, and we have budgeted to 
deploy personnel and facilities in Latin America and in the EMEA mar-
kets to support our channels and NATO partners.

We are confi dent that our evolving mix of deliverables of more 
secure TotalCom solutions for government customers and the grow-
ing global location-based business market will yield signifi cant organic 
growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profi t growth 
our primary objective.

TCS currently employs about 1,500 men and women comprised of top 
communications technology talent around the globe. I would like to 
thank the TCS family, whose capabilities and dedication represents the 
foundation upon which we create and deliver value to customers and 
shareholders.

Sincerely,

 

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, President and CEO

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements
This document includes certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. For example, the statements that (i) our scale 
positions us to participate in greater global market opportunities; (ii) our size and experience are important differentiators as we bid on large government contracts and new carrier busi-
ness around the globe; (iii) we foresee continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012; (iv) our pipeline reflects our continuing role in the government deployable systems market; 
(v) work on the U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue; (vi) we are qualified to win key government wireless communication technology contract awards in 2012; (vii) 
eleven major government contract prospects are expected to be awarded in 2012; (viii) we continue to be a vibrant player in the growing turn-by-turn navigation market; (ix) our technology 
that incorporates safety rules and interoperability with automotive head units and dashboard screens will be increasingly valuable and prolific; (x) we expect to be a leader in the NG9-1-1 
infrastructure market; (xi) we expect to deliver the first state-wide implementation of NG9-1-1 in the nation in 2012; (xii) we foresee continued use of text messaging service for 3G/4G 
networks for years to come; (xiii) our technology can be further monetized in enterprise solutions; (xiv) we are well positioned to assist public safety stakeholders in the deployment of 
SMS-to-911 services; (xv) we are planning the most effective mechanisms for the use of our intellectual property; (xvi) we expect to expand our market footprint, and to markets outside 
of North America, including Latin America and the EMEA markets; and (xvii) we foresee significant organic growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profit growth our primary 
objective are some of the forward looking statements in this document. These statements involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially. Factors that could cause 
or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed elsewhere in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revi-
sions to the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.

GAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation
EBITDA is not a financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and should not be considered as an alternative to net 
income, operating income or any other financial measures so calculated and presented, nor as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a measure of our liquidity. We define 
EBITDA as net income/(loss) before non-cash stock compensation expense; amortization of software development costs, property and equipment and other intangibles; depreciation; 
and interest expense and other non-cash financing costs. Other companies (including our competitors) may define EBITDA differently. We present EBITDA because we believe it to be an 
important supplemental measure of our performance that is commonly used by securities analysts, investors, and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies in our industry. 
Management also uses this information internally for forecasting and budgeting. It may not be indicative of the historical operating results of TCS nor is it intended to be predictive of 
potential future results. You should not consider EBITDA in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. 

The following table reconciles the specific items excluded from GAAP net income in the calculation of EBITDA for the periods shown below:

($ in millions) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Net income/(loss) on a GAAP basis  $ (21.7) $  (1.3) $  57.6 $  28.3 $  15.9 $  7.0 

Depreciation and amortization 9.3 7.7 8.1 9.9 23.7 28.5
Non-cash stock-based compensation 3.1 4.3 3.8 5.9 10.2 9.7
Financing and other expenses (incl. debt conversion expense in 2004) 3.2 4.6 0.9 1.9 8.4 8.4
Discontinued operations 23.7 0.3 -  - - -
Provision/(benefit) for income taxes  -    -    (33.3) 18.8 8.1 5.4
Gain on sale of patent  -    -    (8.1) (15.7) - -

EBITDA  $  17.6 $ 15.6 $  29.0 $  49.1 $  66.3 $  59.0

Copyright
© 2012 TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (TCS). All rights reserved. Enabling Convergent Technologies®, Connections that Matter®, Designed for Mobility®, SwiftLink®, Xypoint®, AtlasBook®, Gokivo®, 
TotalCom™ and TCS™ are trademarks of TCS. All other trademarks are the property of their respective companies. Information subject to change without notice. | NasdaqGSM: TSYS

Corporate InformationGovernment Solutions

TCS is a proven and trusted supplier of TotalCom™ solutions 
designed to solve the government’s toughest technical challenges. 
Focused on C4ISR for more than two decades, TCS has delivered 
solutions that enable seamless, highly secure voice, video, and 
data communication. During 2011, the company made signifi cant 
progress evolving its mix of deliverables towards more secure, 
TotalCom solutions for federal and state government customers. 

Government segment revenue in 2011 was up 25% to a record 
$234 million from the prior record set in 2010. Growth was driven 
by continued funding from the U.S. government for TCS TotalCom 
solutions, including new SwiftLink® terminals, cyber security train-
ing, and communication systems fi eld support and maintenance.

Government Services. We have been building recurring govern-
ment services revenue over the past decade, derived from: 

• Cyber intelligence and other professional services, 
• Integrated global communication logistics support, and 
• Satellite managed services

Revenue from all these areas continued to grow in 2011, and we fore-
see continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012. 

Government Systems. In 2011, government spending on deploy-
able systems accelerated and TCS’ increasing pipeline refl ects our 
continuing role in the market, including new, enhanced versions using 
tropo technology. We also shipped our fi rst Swiftcell secure cellular 
deployable system to a leading national guard operation.

Engineers from TCS Space & Component Technologies (formerly 
Trident), which we acquired in January 2011, are providing design and 
development support for enhancement of the functionality of our 

deployable systems. The unit also earned strong revenue supporting 
space programs in Japan, China, Brazil and Russia, and work on the 
U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue. 

We are qualifi ed to win key government wireless communication 
technology contract awards in 2012 and beyond. We have been 
systematically preparing for as much as two years for more than 30 
major contract vehicle and procurement opportunities with long lead 
times. Eleven major prospects are currently expected to be awarded 
in 2012, including the Army’s GTACS, Homeland Security’s Eagle II, 
and the GSA’s CS2.

Commercial Solutions

TCS’ commercial business is a trusted source of technology for wire-
less carriers and network operators, who, in turn, are highly trusted 
communications institutions. 

We have pioneered the development of wireless applications, 
including text messaging, location-based services (LBS) infrastruc-
ture, Internet content and hyper-local search and public safety 
services.

The TCS spirit is refl ected in the large number of key patents and 
leadership achievement which include:

• First wireless E9-1-1 services
• #1 worldwide in LBS end-to-end solutions
• #1 in U.S. for text messaging and #3 globally

Location-Based Services. TCS is a world-leader in providing 
high-reliablility end-to-end LBS solutions. Our customers include 
leading consumer brands, foreign and domestic auto manufacturers, 
content providers, and more than 40 mobile operators and carriers 
worldwide.

During 2011, we released version 7.5 of our fl agship turn-by-turn navi-
gation application and expanded the availability of our Locator (family 
and asset) applications to new platforms. 

According to BERG Insight, the number of mobile subscribers using 
a handset turn-by-turn navigation app doubled in 2011, and is fore-
casted to grow at a 22% compound annual growth rate to 340 million 
users worldwide by 2016. TCS continues to be a vibrant player in this 
growing market.

Telematics. TCS telematics leads the way in providing embeddable 
navigation and content for mobile and automotive products. We con-
tinue to leverage our expertise to deliver connected-car telematics 
solutions to the automotive industry. 

Our NavBuilder® Inside (NBI) platform drew signifi cant attention in 
the telematics and carrier markets in 2011. The Hyundai BlueLink® 
solution utilizes TCS connected navigation functionality, and helped 
earn Hyundai the January 2012 Car of the Year award at the North 
American International Auto Show. 
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Supplier Business’s Connected Car Report projects that more than 
50% of North American drivers will be using smartphones by 2013. 
TCS technology that incorporates safety rules and interoperability with 
automotive head units and dashboard screens will be increasingly valu-
able and prolifi c.

Safety and Security. The FCC predicts that spending on Next 
Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) infrastructure over the next ten years will 
total $1.2 billion of nonrecurring investment and $300 million of annual 
recurring spending. TCS expects to be a leader in this market.

Since deploying the fi rst U.S. wireless E9-1-1 solution in 1998, TCS 
has been a leader in enabling public safety solutions for wireless 
E9-1-1, NG9-1-1, and E1-1-2. We are pioneering the methods by which 
U.S. public safety answering points can receive a wireless or VoIP 
subscriber’s location and other information like photos and videos 
during emergency calls.

In 2011, we were awarded contracts to supply NG9-1-1 solutions by the 
States of Tennessee and Iowa and the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments (metro Dallas), and we expect to deliver the fi rst state-
wide implementation in the nation in 2012. Our major role in the NG9-1-1 
partner ecosystem has been widely recognized as an important step for 
broad next generation deployments. 

Messaging. While the contribution from our more mature text mes-
saging business became less signifi cant in 2011, we continued to earn 
steady support and maintenance revenue. And we foresee continued 
use of text messaging service for 3G/4G networks for years to come in 
consumer and enterprise markets.

In addition to enterprise messaging, TCS provides a mobile security 
solution suite, TCS Secure the Edge™, which provides authentication, 
verifi cation, notifi cation and compliance to protect valuable corporate 
information over broadband networks. 

In 2011, we received our fi rst six orders for Commercial Mobile Alerts 
Service (CMAS), which enables wireless carriers to comply with the 

rapidly approaching April 2012 deadline to integrate with the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Gateway. Our technology can 
be further monetized in enterprise solutions to enable message broad-
casts of local and geographically relevant information. 

TCS continues to support the use of SMS to access 911 wireless 
emergency services. We are well positioned to assist all public safety 
stakeholders in deployment of this emergency service, leveraging TCS’ 
unique qualifi cations, experience and IP in E9-1-1 and messaging. 

Intellectual Property

During the year, we engaged a leading IP strategy fi rm to evaluate our 
patent portfolio. While we believe their $114 million to $171 million 
estimation was conservative, we take the long view in addressing the 
global growth markets for which we build solutions. We added more 
than 80 patents in 2011, and ended the year with 217 patents and 330 
applications pending worldwide. We are actively planning the most 
effective mechanisms to use these assets, which include direct out-
licensing efforts, cross licensing and enforcement to maintain our mar-
ket advantage.

Looking Ahead

We believe our size and transparency as a public company position us 
well for new large business opportunities for our technology around the 
world. The TCS leadership team is collaborating to expand our market 
footprint beyond the network operators and federal agencies where we 
began. 

In 2012, we expect to signifi cantly increase our traction in markets out-
side North America. Our deliverables have been hardened in large scale 
networks and government environments, and we have budgeted to 
deploy personnel and facilities in Latin America and in the EMEA mar-
kets to support our channels and NATO partners.

We are confi dent that our evolving mix of deliverables of more 
secure TotalCom solutions for government customers and the grow-
ing global location-based business market will yield signifi cant organic 
growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profi t growth 
our primary objective.

TCS currently employs about 1,500 men and women comprised of top 
communications technology talent around the globe. I would like to 
thank the TCS family, whose capabilities and dedication represents the 
foundation upon which we create and deliver value to customers and 
shareholders.

Sincerely,

 

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, President and CEO

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements
This document includes certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. For example, the statements that (i) our scale 
positions us to participate in greater global market opportunities; (ii) our size and experience are important differentiators as we bid on large government contracts and new carrier busi-
ness around the globe; (iii) we foresee continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012; (iv) our pipeline reflects our continuing role in the government deployable systems market; 
(v) work on the U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue; (vi) we are qualified to win key government wireless communication technology contract awards in 2012; (vii) 
eleven major government contract prospects are expected to be awarded in 2012; (viii) we continue to be a vibrant player in the growing turn-by-turn navigation market; (ix) our technology 
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networks for years to come; (xiii) our technology can be further monetized in enterprise solutions; (xiv) we are well positioned to assist public safety stakeholders in the deployment of 
SMS-to-911 services; (xv) we are planning the most effective mechanisms for the use of our intellectual property; (xvi) we expect to expand our market footprint, and to markets outside 
of North America, including Latin America and the EMEA markets; and (xvii) we foresee significant organic growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profit growth our primary 
objective are some of the forward looking statements in this document. These statements involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially. Factors that could cause 
or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed elsewhere in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revi-
sions to the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.
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income, operating income or any other financial measures so calculated and presented, nor as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a measure of our liquidity. We define 
EBITDA as net income/(loss) before non-cash stock compensation expense; amortization of software development costs, property and equipment and other intangibles; depreciation; 
and interest expense and other non-cash financing costs. Other companies (including our competitors) may define EBITDA differently. We present EBITDA because we believe it to be an 
important supplemental measure of our performance that is commonly used by securities analysts, investors, and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies in our industry. 
Management also uses this information internally for forecasting and budgeting. It may not be indicative of the historical operating results of TCS nor is it intended to be predictive of 
potential future results. You should not consider EBITDA in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. 

The following table reconciles the specific items excluded from GAAP net income in the calculation of EBITDA for the periods shown below:

($ in millions) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Net income/(loss) on a GAAP basis  $ (21.7) $  (1.3) $  57.6 $  28.3 $  15.9 $  7.0 

Depreciation and amortization 9.3 7.7 8.1 9.9 23.7 28.5
Non-cash stock-based compensation 3.1 4.3 3.8 5.9 10.2 9.7
Financing and other expenses (incl. debt conversion expense in 2004) 3.2 4.6 0.9 1.9 8.4 8.4
Discontinued operations 23.7 0.3 -  - - -
Provision/(benefit) for income taxes  -    -    (33.3) 18.8 8.1 5.4
Gain on sale of patent  -    -    (8.1) (15.7) - -

EBITDA  $  17.6 $ 15.6 $  29.0 $  49.1 $  66.3 $  59.0
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Focused on C4ISR for more than two decades, TCS has delivered 
solutions that enable seamless, highly secure voice, video, and 
data communication. During 2011, the company made signifi cant 
progress evolving its mix of deliverables towards more secure, 
TotalCom solutions for federal and state government customers. 

Government segment revenue in 2011 was up 25% to a record 
$234 million from the prior record set in 2010. Growth was driven 
by continued funding from the U.S. government for TCS TotalCom 
solutions, including new SwiftLink® terminals, cyber security train-
ing, and communication systems fi eld support and maintenance.

Government Services. We have been building recurring govern-
ment services revenue over the past decade, derived from: 

• Cyber intelligence and other professional services, 
• Integrated global communication logistics support, and 
• Satellite managed services

Revenue from all these areas continued to grow in 2011, and we fore-
see continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012. 

Government Systems. In 2011, government spending on deploy-
able systems accelerated and TCS’ increasing pipeline refl ects our 
continuing role in the market, including new, enhanced versions using 
tropo technology. We also shipped our fi rst Swiftcell secure cellular 
deployable system to a leading national guard operation.

Engineers from TCS Space & Component Technologies (formerly 
Trident), which we acquired in January 2011, are providing design and 
development support for enhancement of the functionality of our 

deployable systems. The unit also earned strong revenue supporting 
space programs in Japan, China, Brazil and Russia, and work on the 
U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue. 

We are qualifi ed to win key government wireless communication 
technology contract awards in 2012 and beyond. We have been 
systematically preparing for as much as two years for more than 30 
major contract vehicle and procurement opportunities with long lead 
times. Eleven major prospects are currently expected to be awarded 
in 2012, including the Army’s GTACS, Homeland Security’s Eagle II, 
and the GSA’s CS2.

Commercial Solutions

TCS’ commercial business is a trusted source of technology for wire-
less carriers and network operators, who, in turn, are highly trusted 
communications institutions. 

We have pioneered the development of wireless applications, 
including text messaging, location-based services (LBS) infrastruc-
ture, Internet content and hyper-local search and public safety 
services.

The TCS spirit is refl ected in the large number of key patents and 
leadership achievement which include:

• First wireless E9-1-1 services
• #1 worldwide in LBS end-to-end solutions
• #1 in U.S. for text messaging and #3 globally

Location-Based Services. TCS is a world-leader in providing 
high-reliablility end-to-end LBS solutions. Our customers include 
leading consumer brands, foreign and domestic auto manufacturers, 
content providers, and more than 40 mobile operators and carriers 
worldwide.

During 2011, we released version 7.5 of our fl agship turn-by-turn navi-
gation application and expanded the availability of our Locator (family 
and asset) applications to new platforms. 

According to BERG Insight, the number of mobile subscribers using 
a handset turn-by-turn navigation app doubled in 2011, and is fore-
casted to grow at a 22% compound annual growth rate to 340 million 
users worldwide by 2016. TCS continues to be a vibrant player in this 
growing market.

Telematics. TCS telematics leads the way in providing embeddable 
navigation and content for mobile and automotive products. We con-
tinue to leverage our expertise to deliver connected-car telematics 
solutions to the automotive industry. 

Our NavBuilder® Inside (NBI) platform drew signifi cant attention in 
the telematics and carrier markets in 2011. The Hyundai BlueLink® 
solution utilizes TCS connected navigation functionality, and helped 
earn Hyundai the January 2012 Car of the Year award at the North 
American International Auto Show. 

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman of the Board 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

James M. Bethmann
Managing Partner
The Caldwell Partners International

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Lt. Gen. Jan C. Huly (USMC, Ret.)

A. Reza Jafari
Chairman & CEO
e-Development International and
Board Chairman, ITU TELECOM 
(International Telecommunication 
Union, a UN Agency)

Jon B. Kutler
Chairman and CEO
Admiralty Partners, Inc.

Weldon H. Latham
Senior Partner 
Jackson Lewis LLP

Richard A. Young
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Board of Directors

Senior Corporate Executives

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman of the Board
President and Chief Executive Officer

Richard A. Young
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer

Drew A. Morin
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Technology Officer

Timothy J. Lorello
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Marketing Officer

Bruce A. White
Senior Vice President
and General Counsel

Michael D. Bristol, Sr.
Senior Vice President 
and General Manager
Government Solutions Group

Brian E. McNealy
Senior Vice President
Global Commercial Sales

Chris A. Nabinger
Senior Vice President
Safety and Security Group

Jay F. Whitehurst
Senior Vice President
Commercial Software Group

Austin E. Klahn
Senior Vice President
Navigation and Telematics Group

Stockholder Information

Stock Listing
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Class A 
common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global 
Select Market under the symbol TSYS.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
New York, New York

Form 10-K 
Additional copies of this annual report on Form 
10-K, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, are available without charge upon 
request from the company. Copies also are avail-
able for download via the investor section at 
www.telecomsys.com.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders will 
be held at 10:00 a.m. on June 14, 2012 at:

The Westin Annapolis 
100 Westgate Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland

TCS Cross-Supporting Technologies

Commercial 
Location-Based Services,

E9-1-1, Telematics &
Messaging   

Cyber 
Security 

Training
Offense/Defense

Government
Secure Satellite,

Tropo Comms,
Aerospace

Components

Next 
Generation 

911

Secure 
Cellular 
Comm

Mobile Alerts,
Lawful 

Intercept,
M2M

Information 
Assurance

A Value-Added Systems Integrator
Providing “Mission Critical” Total Communication 

Solutions, Globally

Most Comprehensive Set of Core to the Edge 
Communications Solutions



Table of Contents

  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
 

 

FORM 10-K
 

(Mark One)
     þ

  

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

  For the year ended December 31, 2011
  OR

     ¨

  

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No. 0-30821

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 
Maryland  52-1526369

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)  (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

275 West Street, Annapolis, MD  21401
(Address of principal executive offices)  (Zip Code)

(410) 263-7616
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Class A Common Stock, Par Value $0.01 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act:    Yes  ¨         No  þ

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act:    Yes  ¨        No  þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months

(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days:    Yes  þ        No   ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted

pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  þ        No   ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in

definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.    ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer.

Large accelerated filer  ¨            Accelerated filer  þ             Non-accelerated filer  ¨             Smaller reporting company  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in rule 12b-2 of the Act):    Yes  ¨        No  þ

As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate market value of the Class A Common Stock held by non-affiliates, as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market, was approximately $223,376,029.*

As of February 29, 2012 there were 52,358,453 shares of Class A Common Stock and 5,347,769 shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
 

Document   Part of 10-K into which incorporated
Portions of the registrant's Proxy Statement for the

Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held June 14, 2012   

Part III

* Excludes 5,857,525 shares of Class A Common Stock and 5,571,923 shares of Class B Common Stock deemed to be held by stockholders whose ownership exceeds ten percent of the shares

outstanding at June 30, 2011. Exclusion of shares held by any person should not be construed to indicate that such person possesses the power, direct or indirect, to direct or cause the direction

of the management or policies of the registrant, or that such person is controlled by or under common control with the registrant.
   



 

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
      Page Number  
Part I     
Item 1   Business    3  
Item 1A   Risk Factors    12  
Item 1B   Unresolved Staff Comments    32  
Item 2   Properties    32  
Item 3   Legal Proceedings    33  
Item 4   Mine Safety Disclosures    33  
Part II     
Item 5   Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities    33  
Item 6   Selected Financial Data    36  
Item 7   Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations    37  
Item 7A   Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About Market Risk    53  
Item 8   Financial Statements and Supplementary Data    54  
Item 9   Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure    54  
Item 9A   Controls and Procedures    54  
Part III     
Item 10   Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance    56  
Item 11   Executive Compensation    56  
Item 12   Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management    56  
Item 13   Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence    56  
Item 14   Principal Accountant Fees and Services    56  
Part IV     
Item 15   Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules    57  
Signatures    58  
Exhibit Index    59  
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements    F-1  

 

i



 

Table of Contents

Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Results

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Forward-looking statements are statements other than historical information or statements of current condition. We generally identify

forward-looking statements by the use of terms such as "believe", "intend", "expect", "may", "should", "plan", "project", "contemplate", "anticipate", or other similar statements. Examples of

forward looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to statements that

(i) we intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services

and customer base;

(ii) we believe that TCS offers the most complete suite of LBS technology to wireless carriers around the world;

(iii) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we deliver through deployment in customer wireless networks or through hosted and subscription

business models;

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions of the world for the foreseeable future;

(v) we are well positioned to provide carrier-branded enhanced services that efficiently use the carriers' capacity to deliver a user experience that merits incremental service payments and

continuous use;

(vi) we have won contracts in three state/local markets for next generation technology deployments, and intend to compete aggressively for additional business;

(vii) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers in order to expand our sales channels for our carrier software products and services;

(viii) we intend to expand our domestic and international carrier base through channels and by expanding our own global sales and field support organizations;

(ix) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technologies, including Signaling System 7 and IP standards, to unlock valuable information such as user

location, device on/off status, and billing and transaction records that reside inside wireless networks and are difficult to retrieve and utilize;

(x) we will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications;

(xi) our engineers are proficient in development of electronic components and solid state drives for aerospace applications, which we expect to enhance TCS's ability to continue to reduce

the form factor of deployable communications solutions;

(xii) we plan to provide technology solutions to a broadening body of U.S. federal, state and local, and international government customers;

(xiii) TCS has submitted proposals to participate in U.S. military procurement successors to WWSS, and other large government procurement vehicles that are expected to be awarded in

2012 and 2013;

(xiv) steep growth in spending to the multi-billion dollar level by U.S. federal agencies on cyber initiatives is expected over the next five years;

(xv) we believe that our expertise in the areas of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite communications can be leveraged to provide the needed wireless

infrastructure for the U.S. Departments of Homeland Security and Defense and we are currently pursuing opportunities to provide such products and services;

(xvi) we believe that TCS enjoys a competitive advantage, because our government customers can benefit from a single-source vendor;
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(xvii) we expect that we will continue to compete primarily on the basis of functionality, breadth, time to market, ease of integration, price and quality of our products and services, as

well as our market experience, reputation and price;

(xviii) we expect to realize a portion of our backlog in the next twelve months;

(xix) we believe we have invented to enable key features of the location services, wireless text alerts, Short Message Service Center, mobile-originated data and E9-1-1 network software;

(xx) foreign patent rights may or may not be available or pursued in any technology area for which U.S. patent applications have been filed;

(xxi) a significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets, and significant negative

industry or economic trends could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that our acquired intangible assets might be impaired;

(xxii) a sustained, significant decline in the Company's stock price and market capitalization, a decline in the Company's expected future cash flows, a significant adverse change in legal

factors or in the business climate, unanticipated competition, and/or slower growth rate, among others, may indicate an impairment of our goodwill;

(xxiii) we believe Trident will help expand the overall market reach of the combined entities and expects Trident's engineers to enable enhancements to TCS solutions for U.S. Military

and access to U.S. space markets;

(xxiv) the WWSS contract vehicle was extended to July 2013 and is expected to continue to contribute significant government systems sales through 2013;

(xxv) we believe we have sufficient capital resources including cash generated from operations as well as cash on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital

and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months;

(xxvi) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by the related products;

(xxvii) we intend to retain any future earnings to fund the business and do not currently anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future;

(xxviii) statements relating to our R&D spending;

(xxix) we believe that the intellectual property represented by patents is a valuable asset that will contribute positively to our results of operations in 2012 and beyond;

(xxx) we believe we should not incur any material liabilities from customer indemnification requests;

(xxxi) our estimated amounts of future non-cash stock compensation are reasonable or appropriate;

(xxxii) our assumptions and expectations related to income taxes and deferred tax assets are appropriate;

(xxxiii) we do not expect that the adoption of new accounting standards to have a material impact on the company's financial statements;

(xxxiv) we believe that we will continue to comply with the covenants related to our loan agreements;

(xxxv) we have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates;

(xxxvi) we believe that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or submit

under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to

our management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures; and
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(xxxvii) we believe we can fund our future acquisitions with our internally available cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, cash generated from operations, amounts available

under our existing debt capacity, additional borrowings or from the issuance of additional securities.

Other such statements include without limitation risks and uncertainties relating to our financial results and our ability to (i) continue to rely on our customers and other third parties to

provide additional products and services that create a demand for our products and services, (ii) conduct our business in foreign countries, (iii) adapt and integrate new technologies into our

products, (iv) develop software without any errors or defects, (v) protect our intellectual property rights, (vi) implement our business strategy, (vii) realize backlog, (viii) compete with small

business competitors, (ix) effectively manage our counter party risks, and (x) achieve continued revenue growth in the foreseeable future in certain of our business lines. This list should not be

considered exhaustive.

These forward-looking statements relate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future operations. We base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions made using

information currently available to us. In light of the risks and uncertainties inherent in all projected operational matters, the inclusion of forward-looking statements in this document should not

be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or that any of our operating expectations will be realized. Revenues, results of operations,

and other matters are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as a result of factors

discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations", the matters discussed in "Risk Factors Affecting Our Business and Future Results",

which are included in Item 1A, and those factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including, changes in economic conditions, technology and the market in general,

and our ability to adapt our products and services to these changes. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future revisions we make to forward-looking statements to

reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Item 1. Business

Overview

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and delivers highly reliable and secure wireless communication technology. Our mobile cloud computing services provide wireless

applications and operator infrastructure for E9-1-1 call routing, navigation, asset and social applications, telematics, and text messaging. Our engineered satellite-based solutions incorporate

cyber security expertise, and include base station management, deployable solutions for mission-critical communications with expert field support, and professional services including training.

We are a Maryland corporation founded in 1987 with headquarters at 275 West Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. Our web address is www.telecomsys.com. The information contained on

our website does not constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All of our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission are available through links on our website. The terms

"TCS", "we", "us" and "our" as used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K refer to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a combined entity, except where it is made clear that

such terms mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We report two operating segments, Commercial (45% of 2011 revenue) and Government (55% of 2011 revenue). See discussion of segment reporting in Note 21 to the audited

Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional segment information.

Commercial Segment:    Our commercial services and systems enable wireless carriers to deliver location-based information, internet content, and short text messages to and from

wireless phones. Our hosted and managed services include mobile location-based applications including turn-by-turn navigation, E9-1-1 call routing; that is, customers use our software

functionality through connections to and from network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or other metrics. Customers

include wireless carrier network operators, Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") service providers, state and local governments deploying Next Generation 9-1-1 technology, and automotive

industry suppliers. We earn carrier software-based revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees, and maintenance fees, pricing for which is generally based on the

volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier.

Government Segment:    We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network communication systems, including our SwiftLink deployable systems which integrate high

speed, satellite, and Internet Protocol ("IP") technology, with secure Government-approved cryptologic devices. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, resell access to

satellite airtime (known as space segment), provide professional services including field
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support of our systems, and cyber security training and services to the U.S. Department of Defense and other federal, state and local government agencies, and foreign customers. We have

delivered more than 3,000 deployable communication systems for use in security, defense, and other secure communication applications around the world. We are one of six prime contractors

on the U.S. Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems ("WWSS") contract vehicle, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in procurements through mid-2013.

While we manage and have historically reported two business segments, digital communication technology is converging, so that engineers from either segment are increasingly

collaborating to address solution needs for customers of the other segment. More details about the segments are set forth below.

From time to time we have acquired or made investments in other companies, services and technologies. On January 31, 2011, we completed the purchase of privately-held Trident Space

and Defense, LLC, ("Trident") a leading provider of engineering and electronics solutions for global space and defense markets. Consideration for the acquisition included payment of cash and

three million shares of TCS Class A common stock. In 2009, we completed four acquisitions which provided enhancements to our products and services enhancing our position as specialists in

highly reliable, secure mobile communications technology. We intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of

our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base.

SwiftLink
®

, Xypoint
®

, AtlasBook
®

, Gokivo
®

, Connections that Matter
®

, Designed for Mobility
®

, and Enabling Convergent Technologies
®

 are registered trademarks or service marks of

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. or our subsidiaries. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains trademarks, trade names and services marks of other companies that are the property of

their respective owners.

Our intellectual property portfolio includes more than 200 issued patents and more than 300 pending applications worldwide. We monetize this portfolio primarily via incorporation of

our inventions in our deliverables, and also engage in licensing of the technology.

Commercial Segment Products and Services

We design and develop software for evolving second, third, and fourth generation cellular carrier and enterprise networks that enable the delivery of secure and personalized content,

services, and transactions to wireless devices. We design our software using industry standards for easy implementation, customization, and interoperability with other network components.

Most of our commercial software is designed and delivered together with third-party software and related hardware, which is integrated into new and existing networks (on customer premises

or hosted/managed in our co-located or leased facilities) by our engineers.

1. Location-based services ("LBS") technology. We operate network operation centers at several locations that host software and equipment for which customers, mainly wireless

network operators, make recurring monthly usage payments, usually based on a measure of the volume of usage. For our LBS applications, the user device's precise location (the "X/Y"

coordinates) is extracted from networks and used for E9-1-1 call routing, navigation directions, identifying points of interest locations near the user (such as gas stations, restaurants, or hotels),

and locating other network subscribers near the user's current position. We provide high volume software applications that incorporate real-time location-sensitive events such as traffic, and

allow wireless carriers to deliver optimized travel directions, generate device-appropriate maps, and search for nearby points of interest. The hosted aspect of our service delivery is sometimes

called cloud computing. Through wireless carriers, we sell subscriptions to services using our client software as a "white label" vendor to the operators. We believe that our company offers the

most complete suite of LBS technology to wireless carriers around the world. Our primary LBS deliverables are:

a. Customer subscriptions through wireless carriers to application-based services such as Turn-by-Turn Navigation, People-Finder, and Asset-Tracking. We provide wireless

subscriber applications that use location-based technology, for which subscribers pay recurring monthly fees. We deploy real-time downloadable mobile applications that deliver easy

access to maps, directions, points-of-interest directories, moving listing and event information, traffic conditions, speed camera alerts and weather information.

b. Wireless, Voice Over IP, and Next Generation 9-1-1. Our E9-1-1 safety and security group works with wireless carriers and local emergency services in compliance with Federal

Communication Commission requirements. When a wireless subscriber covered by this service makes a 9-1-1 call from his or her wireless phone, the software (1) identifies the call as an

emergency call, (2) accesses the handset's location information from the wireless network, (3) routes the call to the appropriate public safety jurisdiction, (4) translates the information

into a dispatcher-friendly format, and (5) transmits the data to the local emergency service call center.
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As of December 31, 2011, we are under contract to provide E9-1-1 services to approximately 40 customers including wireless carriers and VoIP service providers. During 2011, we began

work on our first three contracts with state and local governments for engineering, deployment and operation of Next Generation 9-1-1, intended to enable the public to transmit text,

images, video and data to public safety answering points.

c. Licensed Software-Based Infrastructure: Xypoint
®

 Location Platform ("XLP") for mobile location-based services: Our Xypoint Location Platform infrastructure system

interacts with wireless networks to extract the precise location of a user's device. In order to determine a user's location with sufficient precision for U.S. public safety compliance and for

commercial location-based applications, our technology interacts with networks that have incorporated Assisted GPS systems that use Global Positioning System ("GPS") chips in user

handsets. Our XLP can also work with network triangulation software which some carriers have added to cell towers and switches in the network. We have been a leader in developing

the location platform standard called Secure User Plane for Location ("SUPL") and have incorporated the technology in our products. Our platform also provides privacy controls so that

the wireless device user may control access to the user's location information, and exposes location application programming interfaces ("APIs") to location-based applications.

d. Professional Services and Solutions for Telematics. We provide custom software development and professional services, atop our core geo-services platform, to customers

engaged in telematics, which is the use of mobile communications technology and related data for application within vehicles on the move. Automotive navigation systems are a form of

telematics that involve GPS technology, electronic maps and related spatial data for local searches. Customers include Denso Corporation, Mercedes-Benz, and Agero Group, formerly

ATX Group for Hyundai Motors America and services include points-of-interest applications, and compilation and maintenance of geographic information databases used in vehicle

navigation systems for products including Toyota, Lexus, and others.

2. Short Message Service Center and related text messaging solutions. Our Short Message Service Center software enables wireless carrier subscribers to send and receive text or data

messages to and from wireless devices. We are engaged in a pilot project for enabling the use of text messaging to communicate with 9-1-1 public safety answering points, and our engineers

are engaged in solutions that enhance network security. For our installed base of systems in use by customers, we provide ongoing operational support, including administration of system

components, system optimization, and configuration management. Maintenance services include tracking customer support issues, trouble shooting, and developing and installing maintenance

releases. We typically provide maintenance services for an annual or quarterly fee paid in advance.

Commercial Segment Market Opportunities and Strategy. We plan to continue to develop software and engineered systems which we deliver through deployment in customer

wireless networks, through hosted and subscription business models, or fee for service contracts. Our engineers design solutions to optimize the balance of functionality between the

device and the hosted network components, or "cloud." Our development investment is focused on the delivery of location information, internet and corporate network data, and other

enhanced data-communication services to and from wireless devices, with emphasis on data and network security. The following trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Growth in Global Wireless and VoIP Subscribers. The worldwide use of wireless communications continues to grow, driven by expanded wireless network coverage, upgraded

high-speed digital networks, more affordable service plans, and higher quality and less expensive wireless devices. Wireless subscriber growth is expected to continue to increase in all

regions of the world for the foreseeable future. Driving this growth is the replacement of landline connections with wireless connections. Some households are now using cellular phones

exclusively; including young adult households and those in developing countries where wireless may be the only available communications. VoIP service offers cost advantages over

previous wireline service.

9-1-1 Mandate and Technology Advances. A key to enhancing personal safety through a cell phone is the availability of E9-1-1 wireless capabilities. We are one of the two leading

providers of E9-1-1 service to wireless and VoIP service providers in the U.S. In 1996, the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") mandated the adoption of E9-1-1 technology

by wireless carriers, and in 2005, the FCC ordered providers of interconnected VoIP service to provide E9-1-1 services to all of their customers as a standard feature of the service. We

are actively pursuing Next Generation 9-1-1 business and are working toward deploying solutions in three states.

Improving Global Wireless Communication Device Functionality. A growing number of handheld wireless devices contain GPS chipsets which interoperate with our network

platforms and applications. Proliferation of improved handheld devices has increased the size of the market for our technology. Manufacturers continue to increase the functionality of

mobile devices including phones and personal digital assistants through higher resolution, color screens, and increased computing capability for sophisticated applications. These devices

enable
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the user to take advantage of the high-speed data networks for internet and data usage. Broad adoption of location-based services has required, among other things, handsets incorporating

components for interoperation with GPS satellites and with LBS network components that we have developed and provide.

Cellular Network Improvements to Next Generation Capabilities. Mobile operators are deploying high-speed data networks based on third and fourth generation technologies that,

in many cases, equal or surpass data rates that are typically available for residential wireline users. The deployments of these high-speed wireless data networks have made it possible to

"wireless-enable" many services that previously required a wireline connection. Our location-based technology and applications incorporating map graphics take advantage of these

network enhancements.

Growing Use of Commercial Location-Based Wireless Services. A driver of wireless communication subscriber revenue growth is the delivery of timely, highly specialized,

interactive and location-specific information. Technology incorporated in a growing number of networks and handsets now enables determination of the handset's location with sufficient

precision to allow useful applications beyond E9-1-1. Wireless users benefit from the ability to receive highly customized location-specific information in response to their queries or via

targeted opt-in content delivered to the wireless device. Enterprises benefit from wireless location technology for routing and tracking their mobile field forces.

Text Messaging. Short message services ("SMS"), or text messaging, continues to be the most popular type of messaging for mobile users. Public safety is also exploring using

SMS as an option for E9-1-1 services. We provide solutions for mobile operators to receive and route e-mail and SMS messages through Short Message Service Centers and related

applications.

The key elements of our Commercial Segment strategy are to:
 

 •  Offer carriers around the world the complete LBS solution continuum, with the expertise to enable infrastructure, middleware and application functionality. Mobile
operators have made large capital investments in infrastructure for wireless data and location determination technologies, and are motivated to grow subscriber use of services that
enhance subscriber loyalty and average revenue per user. Also, higher data consumption by end users has led operators to upgrade to enable a widening array of value-added services.
We are well positioned to provide carrier-branded enhanced services that efficiently use the carriers' capacity to deliver a user experience that merits incremental service payments and
continuous use.

 

 •  Pursue additional Next Generation 9-1-1 contracts. We have won contracts in three state/local markets for next generation technology deployments, and intend to compete
aggressively for additional business. The FCC recently predicted that 10-year spending on Next Generation 9-1-1 will total about $1.4 billion to $2.7 billion of which the annual
recurring run rate will be in the range of $200 million to $300 million.

 

 •  Enhance our sales and marketing global channel relationships. We are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers in order to expand our sales channels
for our carrier software products and services. We have historically leveraged our strategic relationships with original equipment manufacturers to market our Commercial Segment
products to wireless carriers worldwide. Our partners include Huawei, Alcatel-Lucent, and Qualcomm.

 

 •  Grow our wireless carrier and VoIP customer base. We serve or are under contract with about 70 wireless carrier networks and VoIP service providers in 14 countries. We intend
to expand our domestic and international carrier base through channels and by expanding our own global sales and field support organizations. We will continue to develop network
software for wireless carriers and cable operators that operate on all major types of networks.

 

 •  Develop and enhance our technology. We will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the growing demand for sophisticated
wireless applications. Our 2011 research and development investments run rate, including capitalized costs, is approximately $50 million. We have research and development
relationships with wireless handset manufacturers, wireless carriers, and content and electronic commerce providers. Our Xypoint platform architecture efficiently integrates our
presence, location, call control and messaging technology, resulting in reduced costs, increased reliability, more efficient deployments, compatibility with our existing products and a
migration path to third-generation services.

 

 •  Leverage our expertise in accessing information stored inside wireless networks. We will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology, including
Signaling System 7 and IP standards, to unlock valuable information such as user location, device on/off status, and billing and transaction records that reside inside wireless networks
and are difficult to retrieve and utilize.
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Government Segment Products and Services 

We engineer and provide secure, communication solutions, including deployable wireless communication systems and related support services with emphasis on satellite-based

technology, to agencies of the U.S. Departments of Defense ("DoD"), State, Justice, Homeland Security, as well as other government customers.

TCS presents a TCS TotalCom solution opportunity to customers. Our SwiftLink product line is a series of ruggedized, secure communication systems, which can be rapidly deployed in

remote areas for wireless satellite-based or point-to-point communications where other means of reliable communication may not be available. The tropo version of this technology that we

have recently delivered can achieve significant cost efficiency by enabling beyond-line-of-sight communication by bouncing radio signals off the lowest portion of the Earth's atmosphere

rather than via satellite transponders. SwiftLink products provide secure voice, video and data communications for personnel in austere environments. Since 2006 we have made large volume

shipments of systems under the US Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems contract vehicle, including a SwiftLink variation called "SNAP" (Secure / nonsecure access point) and Wireless Point-

to-Point Link ("WPPL") systems. Most of our SwiftLink systems can be deployed by a single person in less than twenty minutes, creating critical communication channels from any worldwide

location. Uses include critical communications for DoD warfighters in command and control headquarters, emergency response, news reporting, public safety, drilling and mining operations,

field surveys and other activities that require remote capabilities for voice, video, and data transmission. Revenue from integration work which typically accompanies customer purchases of our

secure deployable systems is reported together with the system sales revenue. Our deployable VSAT multi-band terminals provide access to a wide array of commercial and military satellites

that make broadband capabilities available on a global basis. In addition, our deployable broadband wireless systems provide extensions of secure wireless communications services for up to

30 miles from a SwiftLink point of presence.

Our January 31, 2011 acquisition of Trident Space and Defense added engineering depth to our solutions team. These engineers are proficient in development of electronic components

and solid state drives for aerospace applications, which we expect to enhance TCS's ability to continue to reduce the form factor of deployable communications solutions.

We enter into fee-for-service contracts under which revenue is generated based on contract labor billing rates or based on fixed fees for deliverables. These services, typically under multi-

year contracts or contract vehicles, include:

a. Integrated Logistics Support ("ILS") Services. We offer field and maintenance support of wireless deployable communication systems including our SwiftLink systems, as well

as other vendors' systems. This includes basic and extended maintenance services, training, depot support, product resets, and documentation.

b. Cyber Security and Other Information Technology Training and Professional Services. We provide cyber security training and services encompassing all areas of Computer

Network Operations which includes: Computer Network Defense, Computer Network Exploitation, and Computer Network Attached. We develop software tools and database

applications related to system testing, security, engineering, and analysis. We enhance secure network communication and encryption engineering and provide a wide range of project

management, information assurance oversight, and business management. We design, install, and operate data networks that integrate computing and communications, including systems

that provide communications via both satellite and terrestrial links. We can provide complete network installation services from cabling infrastructure to complex communications system

components. We also provide ongoing network operation and management support services including telecom expense management under multi-year contracts with government

customers.

Secure Satellite Teleport Data Landing and Transmission Services. We own and operate a high-speed satellite communications teleport in Manassas, Virginia that is connected to the

public switched telephone network, and operate two facilities in Europe for government customers. These facilities provide transport services for IP-based media content consisting of VoIP,

internet, video and messaging data using Very Small Aperture Terminal ("VSAT") satellite technology as part of our communication solutions for our customers. We provide end-to-end

connectivity between users of our deployed SwiftLink systems in remote locations back to our teleport and eventually onto customers' back-office desktops and cell phones. We purchase space

segment (satellite airtime) and resell it to customers using our facilities. TCS also maintains two satellite-based stations in the Pacific region.

Government Segment Market Opportunities and Strategy. Our strategy is to be a leading secure wireless communications solution vendor, by building scale and a continuum of

related technical capabilities. Our company has a solid foundation as a provider of deployable, tactical systems and related field support and maintenance, operator of fixed teleports, and

reseller of space segment. Related extensions of these core competencies include high growth professional service areas such as cyber security contract work. We intend to continue to

selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence,
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products, services and customer base. We plan to provide technology solutions to a broadening body of U.S. federal, state and local, and international government customers. The following

trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Expanding Global Need for Secure, Deployable, Wireless Communication Solutions. TCS has sold its SwiftLink deployable communication system kits to federal government

customers for over a decade. The U.S. Army's Worldwide Satellite Communication Systems procurement contract vehicle has been extended through mid 2013 and we estimate that more

than $2 billion of its $5 billion of contract ceiling remains available for new and existing orders from its six prime contractors including TCS. WWSS procurement encompasses systems

like our SwiftLink family of deliverables, and we have generated significant revenue under WWSS. We are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to

take advantage of the evolving environment, including the benefits of Very Small Aperture Terminal satellite communications architectures deployable in multiple aperture man pack

where desirable and the use of Inmarsat Broadband Global Area Network enhancements to our satellite services. TCS has submitted proposals to participate in U.S. military procurement

successors to WWSS, and other large government procurement vehicles that are expected to be awarded in 2012 and 2013. There can be no assurance that our proposals will be successful

or that we will receive any awards or contracts.

Growing Need for Cyber Security. Escalating focus by government agencies to protect their online assets has brought the importance of cyber security and associated solutions to

the fore. We have contract vehicles for the government's surging demand for information technology cyber security training, cyber technical solutions, and related procurement support.

Steep growth in spending to the multi-billion dollar level by U.S. federal agencies on cyber initiatives is expected over the next five years. The expertise and processes developed by our

Government Segment personnel could be adapted to meet the online security needs of commercial clients. We are proficient in recruiting and developing cyber professionals and our Art

of Exploitation training is based on intellectual property developed by the company to support cyber security initiatives. The training covers a clear set of leading cyber methodologies to

produce a certified cyber scientist.

Government Outsourcing of Network and Telecom Technical Functions. Federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist

teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development and systems integration. Since the founding of our Company, we have built

relationships with federal agencies, as well as the State of Maryland and the City of Baltimore. We have made it a management priority to expand our base of long-term service contract

engagements. We made strategic acquisitions during 2009, added experienced sales personnel, and enhanced our relationships with systems integrators and specialist vendors to expand

our penetration in these markets.

Growing Use of Secure Wireless Communications and Location Technology for Defense, Intelligence and Homeland Security. Wireless communications and location

technology are key initiatives within the federal government for both security and supply-chain management. Wireless communications in emergencies are of paramount importance, as

emergency personnel need to be able to communicate and share information across agencies and departments where wireline systems may be unavailable. We believe that our expertise in

the areas of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite communications can be leveraged to provide the needed wireless infrastructure for the U.S. Departments

of Homeland Security and Defense and we are currently pursuing opportunities to provide such products and services. SwiftLink is designed to provide secure voice and data

communications through encrypted satellite links.

Provide Secure Teleport, Space Segment and Integration Capabilities with Deployable Systems as a Bundled Solution. Government customers can benefit from single-sourcing

secure communications solutions which include a secure U.S. landing site for backhaul traffic as well as network engineering expertise and secure remote terminals. We believe that TCS

enjoys a competitive advantage, because it can offer all of these elements from a single vendor.

Application of Commercially Proven Technology to Government Solutions. Government customers increasingly are using commercial carrier networks. Procurement officers have

expressed a preference for solutions that incorporate proven commercial technology, rather than reliance on government research and development funding. Our portfolio of software,

patented intellectual property, and teams of wireless and encryption specialists' positions us to tap into this opportunity.

We intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies that could enhance both of our business segments.
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Customers and Markets

Our principal commercial customers are wireless telecommunications carriers in the United States and around the world, either directly or through our channel partners. Our wireless

carrier customers include Verizon Wireless, MetroPCS, AT&T Mobility, T-Mobile, Sprint, Telefonica International, Cricket Communications, and Telus. Our carrier customers typically use

their brands to market our applications, which in turn compete with those of other carriers and in some cases downloadable applications for smartphones sold by third parties such as Apple Inc.

Customers for our VoIP E9-1-1 services include Comcast and Level 3. We provide electronic map technology solutions to telematics vendors including Denso Corporation, Mercedes-Benz and

ATX Group for Hyundai Motors America. Our sales efforts target wireless, wireline and VoIP service providers around the world.

Our principal government customers are major units of the U.S. Departments of Defense, Justice, Homeland Security, and State, and the General Services Administration. In the

aggregate, U.S. federal government entities accounted for 35% of our total 2011 revenue. Customers also include international space agencies. We compete for business through federal, state

and local procurement processes that typically involve multiple requests for proposal from multiple bidders.

The markets for our products and services are highly competitive. The adoption of industry standards may make it easier for new market entrants to compete with us. We expect that we

will continue to compete primarily on the basis of the functionality, breadth, time to market, ease of integration, price, and quality of our products and services, as well as our market

experience, reputation, and price. The market and competitive conditions are continually developing. Our software-based deliverables compete with alternatives provided by other companies. It

is difficult to present a meaningful comparison between our competitors and us because there is a large variation in revenue generated by different customers, different products and services, as

well as the different combinations of products and services offered by our competitors. We cannot, therefore, quantify our relative competitive position.

Our current and potential competitors include:
 

 •  Commercial Segment. TeleNav, Inc.; Intel Corporation through its acquisition of Telmap Ltd.; Intrado Inc. division of West Corporation; Motorola Mobility Holdings, Inc.; Ericsson
LM Telephone Co.; TomTom; Garmin Ltd.; Comverse Technology Inc; Google Inc.; and Nokia Corporation.

 

 •  Government Segment. General Dynamics Corp.; CACI International Inc.; Globecomm Systems, Inc.; Computer Sciences Corporation; Rockwell Collins, Inc.; and ViaSat Inc.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and distribution resources than we do. Many of these companies have greater

name recognition and more established relationships with their target customers. Furthermore, these competitors may be able to adopt more aggressive pricing policies and offer customers

more attractive terms than we can. With time and capital, it would be possible for our competitors to replicate our products and services.

We partner with vendors of precise location technology. Certain of our partners may attempt to compete with our operating platform by developing their own transmission platform or by

purchasing another mobile location platform. The markets for commercial location and other mobile wireless applications for carriers and enterprises are relatively new and continually

developing. The convergence of wireless technologies and the Internet is creating many initiatives to bring data and transaction capabilities to wireless devices. There is a wide array of

potential competitors in this market, including providers of competing location management platforms, competing enterprise mobility platforms and other competing location-based

applications for wireless devices.
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Backlog

We had unfilled orders, or funded contract and total backlog, as follows:
 
   December 31,    2011 vs. 2010  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %  
Commercial Segment funded contract backlog   $ 269.4    $ 241.5    $ 27.9     12% 
Government Segment funded contract backlog    180.1     80.8     99.3     123% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

  

Total funded contract backlog   $ 449.5    $ 322.3    $ 127.2     39% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

  

Commercial Segment un-funded customer options   $ 269.4    $ 241.5     27.9     12% 
Government Segment un-funded customer options    989.4     899.1     90.3     10% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

  

Total backlog of orders and commitments, including customer options   $ 1,258.8    $ 1,140.6    $ 118.2     10% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

  

Expected to be realized within next 12 months   $ 306.3    $ 179.3    $ 127.0     71% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

  

Funded contract backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by the company's customers (mainly federal agencies), and for hosted services (mainly

for wireless carriers), backlog for which is computed by multiplying the most recent month's contract or subscription revenue times the remaining months under existing long-term agreements,

which we believe is the best available information for anticipating revenue under those agreements. Total backlog, as is typically measured by government contractors, includes orders covering

optional periods of service and/or deliverables, but for which budgetary funding may not yet have been approved. Company backlog at any given time may be affected by a number of factors,

including the availability of funding, contracts being renewed or new contracts being signed before existing contracts are completed and the other factors described in the Company's Risk

Factors as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time. Some of the company's backlog could be canceled for causes such as late delivery, poor performance and

other factors. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products and services through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. Our direct sales and marketing force consists of approximately 80 professionals in the U.S.,

Europe, Latin America, and Asia. We also leverage our relationships with original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") to market our commercial systems. These indirect sales relationships

include Huawei, Alcatel-Lucent and Qualcomm. During the indirect sales process, as well as during installation and maintenance, we maintain extensive direct contact with prospective carrier

customers.

We are pre-qualified as an approved vendor for some government contracts, and some of our products and services are available to government customers via the General Services

Administration's Information Technology Schedule 70, the Worldwide Satellite Services and the Space, and the Naval Warfare Foreign Military Sales ("SPAWAR FMS") contract vehicles.

We collaborate in sales efforts under various arrangements with integrators. Our marketing efforts also include advertising, public relations, speaking engagements and attending and

sponsoring industry conferences.

Research and Development

Our success depends on a number of factors, which include, among other items, our ability to identify and respond to emerging technological trends in our target markets, to develop and

maintain competitive products, to enhance our existing products by adding features and functionality that differentiate the products from those of our competitors, and to bring products to

market on a timely basis and at competitive prices. As of December 31, 2011, our overall staff included more than 810 professionals with technical expertise in wireless network, client

software development and satellite-based communication technology. Since 1996, we have made substantial investments in wireless technology research and development, most of which has

been devoted to the development of carrier and enterprise network software products and services. We are primarily focusing our current research and development investments in cellular

location-based and electronic map technology, including E9-1-1 technology, and highly reliable tactical communication solutions.

We support existing telecommunications standards and promote new standards in order to expand the market for wireless data. We actively participate in wireless standards-setting

organizations including the Open Mobile Alliance,
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and we are represented on the Board of Directors for the Cellular TeleCom and Internet Association ("CTIA"), the E9-1-1 Institute, member of the FCC Communications, Reliability,

Interoperability Council ("CSRIC".) For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, our research and development expense was $37.1 million, $30.1 million, and $22.4 million,

respectively.

Certain of our government customers contract with us from time to time to conduct research on telecommunications software, equipment and systems.

Intellectual Property Rights

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, and trade secret laws and restrictions to establish and protect certain proprietary rights in our products and

services.

As of the end of 2011, we held more than 200 issued patents relating to wireless text messaging, inter-carrier messaging, number portability, GPS ephemeris data, emergency public

safety data routing, and electronic commerce. We have filed more than 300 additional patent applications for certain apparatus and processes we believe we have invented to enable key

features of the location services, wireless text alerts, Short Message Service Center, mobile-originated data and E9-1-1 network software. There is no assurance that our patent applications will

result in a patent being issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or other patent offices, nor is there any guarantee that any issued patent will be valid and enforceable. Additionally,

foreign patent rights may or may not be available or pursued in any technology area for which U.S. patent applications have been filed.

On December 23, 2009, TeleCommunication Systems and Sybase 365, LLC agreed to a settlement of $23 million in resolution of inter-carrier messaging patent infringement litigation.

After deducting legal expenses, the net proceeds to the Company were $15.7 million.

We developed our Short Message Service Center software in 1996 under our development agreement with Alcatel-Lucent. Under the development agreement, we share certain ownership

rights in this software application with Alcatel-Lucent. The scope of each party's ownership interest is subject to each party's various underlying ownership rights in intellectual property and

also to confidential information contributed to the applications, and is subject to challenge by either party.

As a member of various industry standard-setting forums, we have agreed to license certain of our intellectual property to other members on fair and reasonable terms to the extent that

the license is required to develop non-infringing products under the specifications promulgated by those forums.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 1,345 employees, of which 1,324 were full-time and 21 were part-time. We believe relations with our employees are good. None of our employees is

represented by a union.

Geographical Information

During 2011, 2010, and 2009, total revenue generated from products and services in the U.S. were $392.1 million, $376.3 million, and $290.7 million, respectively, and total revenue

generated from products and services outside of the U.S. were $33.3 million, $12.5 million, and $9.4 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, essentially all of the

long-lived assets of our operations were located in the U.S.

We are subject to risks related to offering our products and services in foreign countries. See the information under the heading "Risk Factors — Because our product offerings are sold

internationally, we are subject to risks of conducting business in foreign countries" included in Item 1A.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider carefully each of the following risks and all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein. If any

of the following risks and uncertainties develops into actual events, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business

If wireless carriers do not continue to provide our location-based wireless applications and text messaging to their subscribers, our business could be harmed.

If wireless carriers limit their product and service offerings or do not purchase additional products containing our applications, our business will be harmed. Wireless carriers face

implementation and support challenges in introducing Internet-based services via wireless devices, which may slow the rate of adoption or implementation of our products and services.

Historically, wireless carriers have been relatively slow to implement complex new services such as Internet-based services. Our future success depends upon a continued increase in the use of

wireless devices to access the Internet and upon the continued development of wireless devices as a medium for the delivery of network-based content and services. We have no control over

the pace at which wireless carriers implement these new services. The failure of wireless carriers to introduce and support services utilizing our products in a timely and effective manner could

reduce sales of our products and services and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Additionally, competitors could begin offering location-based technology that have functionality similar to ours for free. For example, Google offers free voice guided, turn-by-turn

navigation as part of its Google Maps product for mobile devices based certain Android operating system platforms and Nokia Corporation or Nokia provides a download for its latest version

of Ovi Maps on its smartphones which also provides turn-by-turn navigation functions. Microsoft also provides a free turn-by-turn navigation solution with its current Windows Mobile

operating system via their Bing for Mobile application. Competition from these free offerings may reduce our revenue and harm our business. If our wireless carrier partners can offer these

location-based services to their subscribers for free, they may elect to cease their relationships with us, alter or reduce the manner or extent to which they market or offer our services or require

us to substantially reduce our subscription fees or pursue other business strategies that may not prove successful for us and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position,

results of operations or cash flows.

Network failures, disruptions or capacity constraints in our third party data center facilities or in our servers could affect the performance of the products and services of our wireless

applications and E9-1-1 business and harm our reputation and our revenue.

The products and services of our wireless applications business are provided through a combination of our servers, which we house at third party data centers, and the networks of our

wireless carrier partners. The operations of our wireless applications business rely to a significant degree on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of the third party data centers we use. Our

hosted data centers are currently located in third party facilities located in the Irvine and San Francisco, California area. We also use third party data center facilities in the Phoenix, Arizona

area to provide for disaster recovery. Depending on the growth rate in the number of our end users and their usage of the services of our wireless applications business, if we do not timely

complete and open additional data centers, we may experience capacity issues, which could lead to service failures and disruptions. In addition, if we are unable to secure data center space with

appropriate power, cooling and bandwidth capacity, we may be unable to efficiently and effectively scale our business to manage the addition of new wireless carrier partners, increases in the

number of our end users or increases in data traffic.

Our data centers are potentially vulnerable to damage or interruption from a variety of sources including fire, flood, earthquake, power loss, telecommunications or computer systems

failure, human error, terrorist acts or other events. There can be no assurance that the measures implemented by us to date, or measures implemented by us in the future, to manage risks related

to network failures or disruptions in our data centers will be adequate, or that the redundancies built into our servers will work as planned in the event of network failures or other disruptions.

In particular, if we experienced damage or interruptions to our data centers in the Irvine and San Francisco, California areas, or if our disaster recovery data center in Phoenix was unable to

work properly in the event of a disaster at our Irvine center, our ability to provide efficient and uninterrupted operation of our services would be significantly impaired.

We could also experience failures of our data centers or interruptions of our services, or other problems in connection with our operations, as a result of:
 

 •  damage to or failure of our computer software or hardware or our connections and outsourced service arrangements with third parties;
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 •  errors in the processing of data by our servers;
 

 •  computer viruses or software defects;
 

 •  physical or electronic break-ins, sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism and similar events; or
 

 •  errors by our employees or third party service providers.

Poor performance in or disruptions of the services of our wireless applications business could harm our reputation, delay market acceptance of our services and subject us to liabilities.

Our wireless carrier agreements require us to meet operational uptime requirements, excluding scheduled maintenance periods, or be subjected to penalties. If we are unable to meet these

requirements, our wireless carrier partners could terminate our agreements or we may be required to refund a portion of monthly subscriptions fees they have paid us.

In addition, if our end user base continues to grow, additional strain will be placed on our technology systems and networks, which may increase the risk of a network disruption. Any

outage in a network or system, or other unanticipated problem that leads to an interruption or disruption of our wireless applications business, could have a material adverse effect on our

operating results and financial condition.

If we are unable to grow data center capacity as needed, our business will be harmed.

Despite frequent testing of the scalability of our wireless applications business in a test environment, the ability of our wireless applications business to scale to support a substantial

increase in the use of those services or number of users in all commercial environments is not fully tested. If our wireless applications business does not efficiently and effectively scale to

support and manage a substantial increase in the use of our services or number of users while maintaining a high level of performance, our business will be seriously harmed.

Our operating results could be adversely affected by any interruption of our data delivery services, system failure or production interruptions.

Our E9-1-1, hosted location-based services and satellite teleport services operations depend on our ability to maintain our computer and telecommunications equipment and systems in

effective working order, and to protect our systems against damage from fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure, sabotage, unauthorized access to our system or similar

events. Although all of our mission-critical systems and equipment are designed with built-in redundancy and security, any unanticipated interruption or delay in our operations or breach of

security could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Furthermore, any addition or expansion of our facilities to increase capacity could increase our exposure to natural or other disasters. Our property and business interruption insurance

may not be adequate to compensate us for any losses that may occur in the event of a system failure or a breach of security. Furthermore, insurance may not be available to us at all or, if

available, may not be available to us on commercially reasonable terms.

Our past and future acquisitions of companies or technologies could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute shareholder value or adversely affect operating results or

the market price of our Class A common stock.

We have made several recent acquisitions and intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our

operations, market presence, products, services and customer base. Any acquisitions, strategic alliances or investments we may pursue in the future will have a continuing, significant impact on

our business, financial condition and operating results. The value of the companies or assets that we acquire or invest in may be less than the amount we paid if there is a decline of their

position in the respective markets they serve or a decline in general of the markets they serve. If we fail to properly evaluate and execute acquisitions and investments, our business and

prospects may be seriously harmed. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:
 

 •  properly evaluating the technology;
 

 •  accurately forecasting the financial impact of the transaction, including accounting charges and transaction expenses;
 

 •  integrating and retaining personnel;

 

13



 

Table of Contents

 •  retaining and cross-selling to acquired customers;
 

 •  combining potentially different corporate cultures;
 

 •  the potential of significant goodwill and intangibles write-offs in the future in the event that an acquisition or investment does not meet expectations; and
 

 •  effectively integrating products and services, and research and development, sales and marketing and support operations.

If we fail to do any of these, we may suffer losses, our management may be distracted from day-to-day operations and the market price of our Class A common stock may be materially

adversely affected. In addition, if we consummate future acquisitions using our equity securities or convertible notes, existing shareholders may be diluted which could have a material adverse

effect on the market price of our Class A common stock.

The companies and business units we have acquired or invested in or may acquire or invest in are subject to each of the business risks we describe in this section, and if they incur any of

these risks the businesses may not be as valuable as the amount we paid. Further, we cannot guarantee that we will realize the benefits or strategic objectives we are seeking to obtain by

acquiring or investing in these companies.

We are substantially dependent on our wireless carrier partners to market and distribute the products and services generated by our wireless applications business to end users and

our wireless applications business may be harmed if our wireless carrier partners elect not to broadly offer these services.

We rely on our wireless carrier partners to introduce, market, and promote the products and services of our wireless applications business to end users. None of our wireless carrier

partners is contractually obligated to continue to do so. If wireless carrier partners do not introduce, market and promote mobile phones that are GPS enabled and on which our client software

is preloaded and do not actively market the products and services of our wireless applications business, the products and services of our wireless applications business will not achieve broader

acceptance and our revenue may not grow as fast as anticipated, or may decline.

Wireless carriers, including those with which we have existing relationships, may decide not to offer our services and/or may enter into relationships with one or more of our competitors.

While our products and services may still be available to customers of those wireless carriers as downloads from application stores or our website, sales of the products and services of our

wireless applications business would likely be much more limited than if they were preloaded as a white label service actively marketed by the carrier or were included as part of a bundle of

services. Our inability to offer the products and services of our wireless applications business through a white label offering or as part of a bundle on popular mobile phones would harm our

operating results and financial condition.

We expect that competitive pricing pressures will continue in the industry. Our wireless carrier partners have the ability to lower end user pricing on the products and services of our

wireless applications business which would have an immediate adverse effect on our revenue. Our gross margin may decrease if the average cost per end user to provide our services does not

decline proportionately. These costs include third party map and other data costs and internal costs to provide our services.

Our success depends on significantly increasing the number of end users that purchase the products and services of our wireless applications business from our wireless carrier

partners.

A significant portion of our revenue is derived from subscription fees that we receive from our wireless carrier partners for end users who subscribe to our service on a standalone basis or

in a bundle with other services. To date, a relatively small number of end users have subscribed for our services in connection with their wireless plans compared to the total number of mobile

phone users. The near term success of our wireless applications business depends heavily on achieving significantly increased subscriber adoption of the products and services of our wireless

applications business either through stand alone subscriptions to our services or as part of bundles from our existing wireless carrier partners. The success of our wireless applications business

also depends on achieving widespread deployment of the products and services of our wireless applications business by attracting and retaining additional wireless carrier partners. The use of

the products and services of our wireless applications business will depend on the pricing and quality of those services, subscriber demand for those services, which may vary by market, as

well as the level of subscriber turnover experienced by our wireless carrier partners. If subscriber turnover increases more than we anticipate, our financial results could be adversely affected.
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If mobile phone manufacturers do not permit us to customize our client software and preload it on their devices, we may have difficulty attracting end users because of poor user

experiences or an inconvenient provisioning process, and our operating results and financial condition may be materially adversely affected.

Our ability to increase or maintain our end user base and revenue will be impaired if mobile phone manufacturers do not allow us to customize our services for their new devices. We

typically deliver the services of our wireless applications business through client software that has been customized to work with a given mobile phone's operating system, features and form

factors. Wireless carrier partners often insist that mobile phone manufacturers permit us to customize our client software for their devices in order to provide the end user with a positive

experience. Wireless carriers or mobile phone manufacturers may enter into agreements with other providers of products and services for new or popular mobile phones. For this reason or

others, some mobile phone manufacturers may refuse to permit us to access preproduction models of their mobile phones or the mobile phone manufacturers may offer a competing service. If

mobile phone manufacturers do not permit us to customize our client software and preload it on their devices, we may have difficulty attracting end users because of poor user experiences or

an inconvenient provisioning process. If we are unable to provide seamless provisioning or end users cancel their subscriptions to our services because they have poor experiences, our revenue

may be harmed.

Our wireless carrier partners may change the pricing and other terms by which they offer our wireless applications business, which could result in increased end user churn, lower

revenue and adverse effects on our business.

Several of our wireless carrier partners sell unlimited data service plans, which include the products and services of our wireless applications business. As a result, end users do not have

to pay a separate monthly fee to use the services provided by our wireless applications business. If our wireless carrier partners were to eliminate the services provided by our wireless

applications business from their unlimited data service plans, we could lose end users as they would be required to pay a separate monthly fee to continue to use the services provided by our

wireless applications business. In addition, we could be required to change our fee structure to retain end users, which could negatively affect our gross margins. Our wireless carrier partners

may also seek to reduce the monthly fees per subscriber that they pay us if their subscribers do not use the services provided by our wireless applications business as often as the wireless

carriers expect or for any other reason in order to reduce their costs. Our wireless carrier partners may also decide to raise prices, impose usage caps or discontinue unlimited data service plans,

which could cause our end users who receive the services provided by our wireless applications business through those plans to move to a less expensive plan that does not include those

services or terminate their relationship with the wireless carrier. If imposed, these pricing changes or usage restrictions could make the products and services of our wireless applications

business less attractive and could result in current end users abandoning those products and services. If end user turnover increased, the number of our end users and our revenue would

decrease and our business would be harmed. We are also required to give Verizon Wireless certain most favored customer pricing on specified products and in certain markets. In certain

circumstances this may require us to reduce the price per end user under the Verizon Wireless contract.

New entrants and the introduction of other distribution models in the location- based services market may harm our competitive position.

The markets for development, distribution and sale of location-based products and services are rapidly evolving. New entrants seeking to gain market share by introducing new

technology and new products may make it more difficult for us to sell the products and services of our wireless applications business, and could create increased pricing pressure, reduced profit

margins, increased sales and marketing expenses or the loss of market share or expected market share, any of which may significantly harm our business, operating results and financial

condition.

Although historically wireless carriers controlled provisioning and access to the applications that could be used on mobile phones connected to their networks, in recent years consumers

have been able to download and provision applications from individual provider websites and to select from a menu of applications through the Apple iTunes App Store, the Blackberry App

World, the Android Market, and other application aggregators. In addition, applications from other LBS providers may be preloaded on mobile devices by OEMs or offered by OEMs directly.

Increased competition from providers of location-based services which do not rely on a wireless carrier may result in fewer wireless carrier subscribers electing to purchase their wireless

carrier's branded location-based services, which could harm our business and revenue. In addition, these location-based services may be offered for free or on a onetime fee basis, which could

force us to reduce monthly subscription fees or migrate to a onetime fee model to remain competitive. We may also lose end users or face erosion in our average revenue per user if these

competitors deliver their products without charge to the consumer by generating revenue from advertising or as part of other applications or services.
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We rely on our wireless carrier partners for timely and accurate subscriber information. A failure or disruption in the provisioning of this data to us would adversely affect our

ability to manage our wireless applications business effectively.

We rely on our wireless carrier partners to bill subscribers and collect monthly fees for the products and services of our wireless applications business, either directly or through third

party service providers. If our wireless carrier partners or their third party service providers provide us with inaccurate data or experience errors or outages in their own billing and provisioning

systems when performing these services, our revenue may be less than anticipated or may be subject to adjustment with the wireless carrier. In the past, we have experienced errors in wireless

carrier reporting. If we are unable to identify and resolve discrepancies in a timely manner, our revenue may vary more than anticipated from period to period and this could harm our business,

operating results and financial condition.

We rely on third party data and content to provide the services of our wireless applications business, and if we were unable to obtain content at reasonable prices, or at all, our gross

margins and our ability to provide the services of our wireless applications business would be harmed.

Our wireless applications business relies on third party data and content to provide those services including map data, points of interest data, traffic information, gas prices, theater, event,

and weather information. If our suppliers of this data or content were to enter into exclusive relationships with other providers of location-based services or were to discontinue providing such

information and we were unable to replace them cost effectively, or at all, our ability to provide the services of our wireless applications business would be harmed. Our gross margins may also

be affected if the cost of third party data and content increases substantially.

We obtain map data from companies owned by current and potential competitors. Accordingly, these third party data and content providers may act in a manner that is not in our best

interest. For example, they may cease to offer their map data to us.

We may not be able to upgrade our location-based services platform to support certain advanced features and functionality without obtaining technology licenses from third parties.

Obtaining these licenses may be costly and may delay the introduction of such features and functionality, and these licenses may not be available on commercially favorable terms, or at all.

The inability to offer advanced features or functionality, or a delay in our ability to upgrade our location-based services platform, may adversely affect consumer demand for the products and

services of our wireless applications business, consequently, harm our business.

If a substantial number of end users change mobile phones or if our wireless carrier partners switch to subscription plans that require active monthly renewal by end users, our

revenue could suffer.

Subscription fees represent the vast majority of our revenue for our wireless applications business. As mobile phone development continues and new mobile phones are offered at

subsidized rates to subscribers in connection with plan renewals, an increasing percentage of end users who already subscribe to the services provided by our wireless applications business will

likely upgrade from their existing mobile phones. With some wireless carriers, subscribers are unable to automatically transfer their existing subscriptions from one mobile phone to another. In

addition, wireless carriers may switch to subscription billing systems that require subscribers to actively renew, or opt-in, each month from current systems that passively renew unless

subscribers take some action to opt-out of their subscriptions. In either case, unless we or our wireless carrier partners are able to resell subscriptions to these subscribers or replace these

subscribers with other subscribers, the revenue of our wireless applications business would suffer and this could harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

The failure of mobile phone providers selected by our wireless carrier partners to keep pace with technological and market developments in mobile phone design may negatively

affect the demand for the products and services of our wireless applications business.

Successful sales of the products and services of our wireless applications business depend on our wireless carrier partners keeping pace with changing consumer preferences for mobile

phones. If our wireless carrier partners do not select mobile phones with the design attributes attractive to consumers, such as thin form factors, high resolution screens and desired

functionality, customers may select wireless carriers with whom we do not have a relationship and subscriptions for our products and services may decline and, consequently, our business may

be harmed.
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Some of our research and development operations are conducted in China, India, and Russia and our ability to introduce new services and support our existing services cost

effectively depend on our ability to manage those remote development sites successfully.

Our success depends on our ability to enhance our current services and develop new services and products rapidly and cost effectively. We currently have research and development

employees in China and contractors in Russia and India. Managing product development operations that are remote from our U.S. headquarters is difficult and we may not be able to manage

these remote centers successfully. We could incur unexpected costs or delays in product development that could impair our ability to meet market windows or cause it to forego certain new

product opportunities. In addition, if our carrier customers become adverse to introducing products into their networks that have been developed in these remote centers, the market for our

products could be adversely affected.

Our research and development investments may not lead to successful new products, services or enhancements.

We will continue to invest in research and development for the introduction of new and enhanced products and services designed to improve the capacity, data processing rates and

features. We must also continue to develop new features and to improve functionality of our software. Research and development in our industry is complex, expensive and uncertain. We

believe that we must continue to dedicate a significant amount of resources to research and development efforts to maintain our competitive position. If we continue to expend a significant

amount of resources on research and development, but our efforts do not lead to the successful introduction of product and service enhancements that are competitive in the marketplace, our

business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows could be negatively impacted.

We may fail to support our anticipated growth in operations which could reduce demand for our services and materially adversely affect our revenue.

Our business strategy is based on the assumption that the market demand, the number of customers, the amount of information they want to receive and the number of products and

services we offer will all increase. We must continue to develop and expand our systems and operations to accommodate this growth. The expansion and adaptation of our systems operations

requires substantial financial, operational and management resources. We experience variations in our Government systems revenues and while we increase our production capabilities to

satisfy the increased demand, our ability to meet production schedules for increasing demand could adversely impact our product quality and reliability. Any failure on our part to develop and

maintain our wireless data services and government system production lines as we experience rapid growth could significantly reduce demand for our services and materially adversely affect

our revenue. Also, if we incorrectly predict the market areas that will grow significantly, we could expend significant resources that could have been expended on other areas that do show

significant growth.

Changes in the U.S. and global market conditions that are beyond our control may have a material adverse effect on us.

The U.S. and global economies are currently experiencing a period of substantial economic uncertainty with wide-ranging effects, including the current disruption in global financial

markets. It is unclear how well the global financial markets have recovered, if at all. Possible effects of these economic events include those relating to business disruptions caused by suppliers

or subcontractors, impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets and reduced access to capital and credit markets. We depend on the U.S. Government for a significant portion of our

revenues. There is no assurance that historical budgets will be sustained at current levels. In addition, competing demands for federal funds could pressure all areas of spending, which could

further impact the U.S. Government budget. Cost cutting, efficiency initiatives, reprioritization and other affordability analysis by the U.S. Government could adversely impact our Government

Segment. Although governments worldwide, including the U.S. Government, have initiated sweeping economic plans, we are unable to predict the impact, severity, and duration of these

economic events, which could have a material effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our customers may experience financial difficulties or may request out-of-scope work, and we may not be able to collect our receivables, materially and adversely affecting our

profitability.

Over the course of a long-term contract, our customers' financial condition may change, affecting their ability to pay their obligations and our ability to collect our fees for services

rendered. Additionally, we may perform work for the U.S. government, for which we must file requests for equitable adjustment or claims with the proper agency to seek recovery in whole or

in part for out-of-scope work directed or caused by the government customers in support of their
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critical missions. While we may resort to other methods to pursue our claims or collect our receivables, these methods are expensive and time consuming and success is not guaranteed. Failure

to collect our receivables or prevail on our claims would have an adverse affect on our profitability.

We could incur substantial costs from product liability claims relating to our software.

Our agreements with customers may require us to indemnify customers for our own acts of negligence and non-performance. Product liability and other forms of insurance are expensive

and may not be available in the future. We cannot be sure that we will be able to maintain or obtain insurance coverage at acceptable costs or in sufficient amounts or that our insurer will not

disclaim coverage as to a future claim. A product liability or similar claim may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our revenue may decline if we fail to retain our largest customers for all of the deliverables that we sell to them.

The largest customers for our product and service offerings in terms of revenue generated have been the U.S. Government, Verizon Wireless, AT&T Mobility, MetroPCS, and Cricket

Communications. For the year ended December 31, 2011, each of Verizon Wireless, MetroPCS, and the U.S. Government accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue. For 2010, each of

Verizon Wireless and the U.S. Government accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the largest customers for our Commercial Segment were

Verizon Wireless and MetroPCS and the largest customers for our Government Segment were various U.S. Government agencies. Our wireless applications business is substantially dependent

on Verizon Wireless. In addition, we expect to generate a significant portion of our total revenue from Verizon Wireless and these other customers for the foreseeable future. If these customers

reduce their expenditures for marketing services for which we provide technology, change their plans to eliminate our services, price our products and services at a level that makes them less

attractive, or offer and promote competing products and services, in lieu of, or to a greater degree than, our products and services, our revenue would be materially reduced and our business,

operating results and financial condition would be materially and adversely affected.

Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with our major customers and on developing other customers and distribution channels. The loss of any of the customers discussed in

this section would have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Because we rely on key partners to expand our marketing and sales efforts, if we fail to maintain or expand our relationships with strategic partners and indirect distribution

channels our license revenues could decline.

We have announced strategic partnerships with Alcatel-Lucent and Huawei, and are working on additional partnerships to provide supplemental channels for the marketing and sale of

our software applications globally Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with these partners and on developing other distribution channels. The loss of any of these partners would

have a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Government regulation of the mobile industry is evolving, and unfavorable changes or our failure to comply with regulations could harm our business and operating results.

As the mobile industry continues to evolve, we believe greater regulation by federal, state or foreign governments or regulatory authorities becomes more likely. For example, we believe

increased regulation is likely in the area of data privacy, and laws and regulations applying to the solicitation, collection, processing or use of personal or consumer information, could affect

our customers' ability to use and share data, potentially reducing our ability to utilize this information for the purpose of continued improvement of the overall mobile subscriber experience. In

addition, any regulation of the requirement to treat all content and application provider services the same over the mobile Internet, sometimes referred to as net neutrality regulation, could

reduce our customers' ability to make full use of the value of our services.
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Growing market acceptance of "open source" software could have a negative impact on us.

Growing market acceptance of open source software has presented both benefits and challenges to the commercial software industry in recent years. "Open source" software is made

widely available by its authors and is licensed "as is" for a nominal fee or, in some cases, at no charge. For example, Linux is a free Unix-type operating system, and the source code for Linux

is freely available.

We have incorporated some types of open source software into our products, allowing us to enhance certain solutions without incurring substantial additional research and development

costs. Thus far, we have encountered no unanticipated material problems arising from our use of open source software. However, as the use of open source software becomes more widespread,

certain open source technology could become competitive with our proprietary technology, which could cause sales of our products to decline or force us to reduce the fees we charge for our

products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

From time to time, there have been claims challenging the ownership of open source software against companies that incorporate open source software into their products. As a result, we

could be subject to suits by parties claiming ownership of what we believe to be open source software. Some open source licenses contain requirements that we make available source code for

modifications or derivative works under the terms of a particular open source license or other license granting third parties certain rights of further use. If we combine our proprietary software

products with open source software in a certain manner, we could under certain of the open source licenses, be required to release our proprietary source code. In addition to risks related to

license requirements, usage of open source software can lead to greater risks than use of third party commercial software, as open source licensors generally do not provide warranties or

controls on origin of the software code. Open source license terms may be ambiguous and many of the risks associated with usage of open source cannot be eliminated, and could if not

properly addressed, negatively affect our business. If we were found to have inappropriately used open source software, we may be required to release our proprietary source code, re-engineer

our products and client applications, discontinue the sale of our products or services in the event re-engineering cannot be accomplished on a timely basis or take other remedial action that may

divert resources away from our development efforts, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Because our product offerings are sold internationally, we are subject to risks of conducting business in foreign countries.

We believe our revenue will increasingly include business in foreign countries, and we will be subject to the social, political and economic risks of conducting business in foreign

countries. Our international business may pose different risks than our business in the U.S. In some countries there is increased chance for economic, legal or political changes. Government

customers in newly formed free-market economies typically have procurement procedures that are less mature, which can complicate the contracting process. In this context, our international

business may be sensitive to changes in a foreign government's leadership, national priorities and budgets. International transactions can involve increased financial and legal risks arising from

foreign exchange-rate variability and the application of multiple laws and regulations. These numerous and laws and regulations include internal control and disclosure rules, data privacy and

filtering requirements, anti-corruption laws, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and other local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to governmental officials, and antitrust and

competition regulations, among others. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in fines and penalties, criminal sanctions against us, our officers, or our employees, prohibitions on

the conduct of our business and on our ability to offer our products and services in one or more countries, and our international expansion efforts. Although we have implemented policies and

procedures designed to ensure compliance with these laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that our employees, contractors, or agents will not violate our policies.

In addition, some international government customers may require contractors to agree to specific in-country purchases, manufacturing agreements or financial support arrangements,

known as offsets, as a condition for a contract award. The contracts may include penalties if we fail to meet the offset requirements. Other risks include:
 

 •  our inability to adapt our products and services to local business practices, customs and mobile user preferences;
 

 •  the costs of adapting our product and service offerings for foreign markets;
 

 •  our inability to locate qualified local employees, partners and suppliers;
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 •  reduced protection of intellectual property rights;
 

 •  changes in regulatory requirements which could restrict our ability to deliver services to our international customers, including the addition of a country to the list of sanctioned
countries under the International Emergency Economic Powers Act or similar legislation;

 

 •  the potential burdens of complying with a variety of U.S. and foreign laws, trade standards, treaties and regulatory requirements, including export restrictions, tariffs, tax laws, the
regulation of wireless communications and the Internet and uncertainty regarding liability for information retrieved and replicated in foreign countries;

 

 •  general geopolitical risks, such as political and economic instability and changes in diplomatic and trade relations; and
 

 •  unpredictable fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows by diverting time and money toward addressing

them or by reducing or eliminating sales in such foreign countries.

Because some of our competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, we could lose customers and market share.

Our business is highly competitive. Several of our potential competitors are substantially larger than we are and have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. In

particular, larger competitors have certain advantages over us which could cause us to lose customers and impede our ability to attract new customers, including: larger bases of financial,

technical, marketing, personnel and other resources; more established relationships with wireless carriers and government customers; more funds to deploy products and services; and the

ability to lower prices (or not charge any price) of competitive products and services because they are selling larger volumes.

The widespread adoption of open industry standards such as the Secure User Plane for Location ("SUPL") specifications may make it easier for new market entrants and existing

competitors to introduce products that compete with our software products. Because our Commercial Segment is part of an emerging market, we cannot identify or predict which new

competitors may enter the mobile location services industry in the future. With time and capital, it would be possible for competitors to replicate any of our products and service offerings or

develop alternative products. Additionally, the wireless communications industry continues to experience significant consolidation which may make it more difficult for smaller companies like

us to compete. Our competitors include application developers, telecommunications equipment vendors, location determination technology vendors and information technology consultants,

and may include traditional Internet portals and Internet infrastructure software companies. We expect that we will compete primarily on the basis of price, time to market, functionality, quality

and breadth of product and service offerings.

These competitors could include wireless network carriers, mobile and/or wireless software companies, wireless data services providers, secure portable communication and wireless

systems integrators and database vendors and other providers of location-based services. As discussed above, many of our potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do.

Furthermore, competitors may develop a different approach to marketing the services we provide in which subscribers may not be required to pay for the information provided by our services.

Competition could reduce our market share or force us to lower prices to unprofitable levels.

While we characterize our services revenue as being "recurring" there is no guarantee that we will actually achieve this revenue.

A significant portion of our revenue is generated from long-term customer contracts that pay certain fees on a month-to-month basis. While we currently believe that these revenue

streams will continue, renegotiation of the contract terms, early termination or non-renewal of material contracts could cause our recurring revenues to be lower than expected, and growth

depends on maintaining relationships with these important customers and on developing other customers and distribution channels.

We cannot guarantee that our estimated contract backlog will result in actual revenue.

As of December 31, 2011, our estimated contract backlog totaled approximately $1.3 billion, of which $449.5 million was funded. There can be no assurance that our backlog will result

in actual revenue in any particular period, or
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at all, or that any contract included in backlog will be profitable. There is a higher degree of risk in this regard with respect to unfunded backlog. The actual receipt and timing of any revenue is

subject to various contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. The actual receipt of revenue on contracts included in backlog may never occur or may change because a program

schedule could change, the program could be canceled, a contract could be reduced, modified or terminated early, or an option that we had assumed would be exercised not being exercised.

Further, while many of our federal government contracts require performance over a period of years, Congress often appropriates funds for these contracts for only one year at a time.

Consequently, our contracts typically are only partially funded at any point during their term, and all or some of the work intended to be performed under the contracts will remain unfunded

pending subsequent Congressional appropriations and the obligation of additional funds to the contract by the procuring agency. There are two primary risks associated with this process. First,

the process may be delayed or disrupted. Changes in Congressional schedules due to elections or other legislative priorities, negotiations for program funding levels or unforeseen world events

can interrupt the funding for a contract. Second, future revenues under existing multi-year contracts are conditioned on the continuing availability of Congressional appropriations.

Approximately 40% of our funded contract backlog consisted of orders from the Government Segment. Our estimates are based on our experience under such contracts and similar contracts.

However, there can be no assurances that all, or any, of such estimated contract value will be recognized as revenue.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales to various agencies of the U.S. Government which has special rights unlike other customers and exposes us to additional

risks that could have a material adverse effect on us.

Sales to various agencies of the U.S. Government accounted for approximately 35% of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, all of which was attributable to our

Government Segment. Our ability to earn revenue from sales to the U.S. Government can be affected by numerous factors outside of our control, including:
 

 •  TCS's inclusion as an authorized vendor for the U.S. Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems ("WWSS") contract vehicle has enabled TCS to secure funded contract awards for federal
customers totaling about $500 million in 2006 through 2011. The WWSS contract vehicle was extended through mid 2013 and we estimate more than $2 billion of its $5 billion of
contract ceiling remains available for new and existing orders from its six prime contractors including TCS.

 

 •  A decrease in U.S. Government defense spending or changes in spending allocation could result in one or more of our contracts being reduced, delayed or terminated.
 

 •  The U.S. Government may terminate the contracts it has with us. All of the contracts we have with the U.S. Government are, by their terms, subject to termination by the U.S.
Government either for its convenience or in the event of a default by us. In the event of termination of a contract by the U.S. Government, we may have little or no recourse.

 

 •  Our contracts with the U.S. Government may be terminated due to Congress failing to appropriate funds. Our U.S. Government contracts are conditioned upon the continuing
availability of Congressional appropriations. Congress usually appropriates funds for a given program on a fiscal-year basis even though contract performance may take more than
one year.

 

 •  The U.S. Government may audit and review our costs and performance on their contracts, as well as our accounting and general practices. The costs and prices under these contracts
may be subject to adjustment based upon the results of any audits. Future audits that result in the increase in our costs may adversely affect our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Any failure by Congress to appropriate funds to any program that we participate in could materially delay or terminate the program and could have a material adverse effect on our

business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Because we are no longer a small business under some government size standards, we could lose business to small-business set-aside competitors.

Federal and state procurement laws require that certain purchases be set-aside for small business competitors, effectively giving a preference to those small businesses even if we have

better products and better prices. We have outgrown the size standards set for many of the categories used to purchase products of the nature that we sell. If a particular procurement is set-aside

for only small business participants, we may lose customers and revenues and may not be able to replace those sales with purchases from other customers.
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If our subcontractors and vendors fail to perform their contractual obligations, our performance and reputation as a prime contractor and our ability to obtain future business could

suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely significantly upon other companies as subcontractors to perform work we are obligated to perform for our clients and vendors to deliver critical

components. As we secure more work under our contract vehicles such as the Worldwide Satellite Systems agreement, we expect to require an increasing level of support from subcontractors

and vendors that provide complementary and supplementary products and services to our offerings. Depending on labor market conditions, we may not be able to identify, hire and retain

sufficient numbers of qualified employees to perform the task orders we expect to win. In such cases, we will need to rely on subcontracts with unrelated companies. Moreover, even in

favorable labor market conditions, we anticipate entering into more subcontracts in the future as we expand our work under our contract vehicles. We are responsible for the work performed by

our subcontractors, even though in some cases we have limited involvement in that work. If one or more of our subcontractors fail to satisfactorily perform the agreed-upon services on a timely

basis or violate federal government contracting policies, laws or regulations, our ability to perform our obligations as a prime contractor or meet our clients' expectations may be compromised.

In extreme cases, performance or other deficiencies on the part of our subcontractors could result in a client terminating our contract for default. A termination for default could expose us to

liability, including liability for the agency's costs of re-procurement, could damage our reputation and could hurt our ability to compete for future contracts.

A significant portion of our contracts with the U.S. Government are on a fixed price basis which could negatively impact our profitability.

A material portion of our annual revenues is derived from fixed-price contracts. Due to their nature, fixed-price contracts inherently have more risk than flexibly priced contracts. Our

operating margin is adversely affected when contract costs that cannot be billed to customers are incurred. While management uses its best judgment to estimate costs associated with fixed-

price contracts, future events could result in either upward or downward adjustments to those estimates which could negatively impact our profitability. The increase in contract costs can occur

if estimates to complete increase or if initial estimates used for calculating the contract cost were incorrect. The cost estimation process requires significant judgment and expertise. Reasons for

cost growth may include unavailability and productivity of labor, the nature and complexity of the work to be performed, the effect of change orders, the availability of materials, interruptions

in our supply chain, the effect of any delays in performance, availability and timing of funding from the customer, natural disasters, and the inability to recover any claims included in the

estimates to complete. A significant change in cost estimates on one or more programs could have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We are subject to procurement and other related laws and regulation which carry significant penalties for non-compliance.

As a supplier to the U.S. Government, we must comply with numerous regulations, including those governing security and contracting practices. In addition, prime contracts with various

agencies of the U.S. Government and subcontracts with other prime contractors are subject to numerous laws and regulations.

Failure to comply with these procurement regulations and practices could result in fines being imposed against us or our suspension for a period of time from eligibility for bidding on, or

for award of, new government contracts. If we are disqualified as a supplier to government agencies, we would lose most, if not all, of our U.S. Government customers and revenues from sales

of our products would decline significantly. Among the potential causes for disqualification are violations of various statutes, including those related to procurement integrity, export control,

U.S. Government security regulations, employment practices, protection of the environment, accuracy of records in the recording of costs, and foreign corruption. The government could

investigate and make inquiries of our business practices and conduct audits of contract performance and cost accounting. Based on the results of such audits, the U.S. Government could adjust

our contract-related costs and fees. Depending on the results of these audits and investigations, the government could make claims against us, and if it were to prevail, certain incurred costs

would not be recoverable by us.

We may incur losses if we are unable to resell products and services for which we have contractual minimum purchase obligations.

We have been able to negotiate favorable pricing terms for certain services and supplies that are used in our product and service offerings. Those favorable pricing terms are contingent on

various minimum purchase commitments. If we are unable to find customers and negotiate favorable customer terms and conditions for those services and supplies, we may incur related

losses.
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We are exposed to counterparty credit risk and there can be no assurances that we will manage or mitigate this risk effectively.

We are exposed to many different industries, counterparties, and partnership agreements, and regularly interact with counterparties in various industries.

The insolvency or other inability of a significant counterparty or partner, including a counterparty to the significant counterparty, to perform its obligations under an agreement or

transaction, including, without limitation, as a result of the rejection of an agreement or transaction by a counterparty in bankruptcy proceedings, could have a material adverse effect on our

business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The loss of key personnel or inability to attract and retain personnel could harm our business.

Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel, particularly in sales and marketing and research and development.

If we are unable to do so, our business could be harmed. Our future success also depends upon the continued service of our executive officers and other key sales, engineering and technical

staff. The loss of the services of our executive officers and other key personnel could harm our operations. We maintain key person life insurance on certain of our executive officers. We

would be harmed if one or more of our officers or key employees decided to join a competitor or if we failed to attract qualified personnel. Our ability to attract qualified personnel may be

adversely affected by a decline in the price of our Class A common stock. In the event of a decline in the price of our Class A common stock, the retention value of stock options will decline

and our employees may choose not to remain with us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position and results of operations, and they require management to make estimates,

judgments and assumptions about matters that are inherently uncertain.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position and results of operations. We have identified several accounting policies as being

critical to the presentation of our financial position and results of operations because they require management to make particularly subjective or complex judgments about matters that are

inherently uncertain and because of the likelihood that materially different amounts would be recorded under different conditions or using different assumptions. For example, we account for

income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740, Income Taxes ("ASC 740"). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the

difference between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted marginal tax rate. ASC 740 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a

valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of all of the net deferred tax asset will not be realized. This process requires our

management to make assessments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law,

significant changes in the jurisdictions in which we operate, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each year's liability

by taxing authorities. These changes could have a significant impact on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ASC 350, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," provides that goodwill must be tested for impairment annually and between annual tests when events occur that indicate an impairment

or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. As of December 31, 2011, goodwill accounted for approximately

$176.5 million, or approximately 36%, of our recorded total assets, and our market capitalization was approximately $135 million. A sustained drop in market capitalization below book value

may suggest that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The impairment test is based on several factors requiring judgment and management has determined that no impairment exists as of

that date. Changes in market conditions may indicate a potential future impairment of recorded goodwill. If goodwill becomes impaired, we would record a significant charge to earnings in our

financial statements during the period in which any impairment of our goodwill is determined, which may significantly reduce or eliminate our profits.
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Industry Risks

Because the wireless data industry is a rapidly evolving market, our product and service offerings could become obsolete unless we respond effectively and on a timely basis to rapid

technological changes.

The successful execution of our business strategy is contingent upon wireless network operators launching and maintaining mobile location services, our ability to maintain a technically

skilled development and engineering team, our ability to create new network software products and adapt our existing products to rapidly changing technologies, industry standards and

customer needs. As a result of the complexities inherent in our product offerings, new technologies may require long development and testing periods. Additionally, new products may not

achieve market acceptance or our competitors could develop alternative technologies that gain broader market acceptance than our products. If we are unable to develop and introduce

technologically advanced products that respond to evolving industry standards and customer needs, or if we are unable to complete the development and introduction of these products on a

timely and cost effective basis, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows or could result in our technology becoming

obsolete.

New laws and regulations that impact our industry could increase costs or reduce opportunities to earn revenue. The wireless carriers that use our product and service offerings are subject

to regulation by domestic, and in some cases, foreign, governmental and other agencies. Regulations that affect them could increase our costs or reduce our ability to sell our products and

services. In addition, there are an increasing number of laws and regulations pertaining to wireless telephones and the Internet under consideration in the United States and elsewhere.

The applicability to the Internet of existing and future laws governing issues such as intellectual property ownership and infringement, copyright, trademark, trade secret, taxation,

obscenity, libel, employment and network and data security and personal privacy is uncertain and developing. Any new legislation or regulation, or the application or interpretation of existing

laws, may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, modifications to our business plans or operations to comply with changing

regulations or certain actions taken by regulatory authorities might increase our costs of providing our product and service offerings and could have a material adverse effect on our business,

financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Because the industries which we serve are currently in a cycle of consolidation, the number of customers may be reduced which could result in a loss of revenue for our business.

The telecommunications industry generally is currently undergoing a consolidation phase. Many of our customers, specifically wireless carrier customers of our Commercial Segment,

have or may become the target of acquisitions. If the number of our customers is significantly reduced as a result of this consolidation trend, or if the resulting companies do not utilize our

product offerings, our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows could be adversely affected.

Concerns about personal privacy and commercial solicitation may limit the growth of mobile location services and reduce demand for our products and services.

In order for mobile location products and services to function properly, wireless carriers must locate their subscribers and store information on each subscriber's location. Although data

regarding the location of the wireless user resides only on the wireless carrier's systems, users may not feel comfortable with the idea that the wireless carrier knows and can track their location.

Carriers will need to obtain subscribers' permission to gather and use the subscribers' personal information, or they may not be able to provide customized mobile location services which those

subscribers might otherwise desire. If subscribers view mobile location services as an annoyance or a threat to their privacy, that could reduce demand for our products and services and have an

adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Because wireless and next-generation E9-1-1 is undergoing rapid technological and regulatory change, our future performance is uncertain.

The Federal Communication Commission, or FCC, has mandated that certain location information be provided to operators when they receive an E9-1-1 call. Carriers' obligations to

provide E9-1-1 services are subject to request by public safety organizations. Technical failures, greater regulation by federal, state or foreign governments or regulatory authorities, time delays

or the significant costs associated with developing or installing improved location technology could slow down or stop the deployment of our mobile location products. If deployment of

improved location
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technology is delayed, stopped or never occurs, market acceptance of our products and services may be adversely affected. The extent and timing of the deployment of our products and

services is dependent both on public safety requests for such service and wireless carrier's ability to certify the accuracy of and deploy the precise location technology. Because we will rely on

some third-party location technology instead of developing all of the technology ourselves, we have little or no influence over its improvement. If the technology never becomes precise enough

to satisfy wireless users' needs or the FCC's requirements, we may not be able to increase or sustain demand for our products and services, if at all.

The technology employed with next-generation E9-1-1 services generally anticipates a migration to internet-protocol (or IP) based communication. Since many companies are proficient

in IP-based communication protocols, the barriers to entry to providing next-generation E9-1-1 products and services are lower than exist for the traditional switch-based protocols. If we are

unable to develop unique and proprietary solutions that are superior to and more cost effective than other market offers, our traditional E9-1-1 business could get replaced by new market

entrants, resulting in material adverse impacts on our overall business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our E9-1-1 business is dependent on state and local governments and the regulatory environment for Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) services is developing.

Under the FCC's mandate, wireless carriers are required to provide E9-1-1 services only if state and local governments request the service. As part of a state or local government's

decision to request E9-1-1, they have the authority to develop cost recovery mechanisms. However, cost recovery is no longer a condition to wireless carriers' obligation to deploy the service.

If state and local governments do not widely request that E9-1-1 services be provided or we become subject to significant pressures from wireless carriers with respect to pricing of E9-1-1

services, our E9-1-1 business would be harmed and future growth of our business would be reduced.

The FCC has determined that VoIP services are not subject to the same regulatory scheme as traditional wireline and wireless telephone services. If the regulatory environment for VoIP

services evolves in a manner other than the way we anticipate, our E9-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our business would be significantly reduced. For

example, the regulatory scheme for wireless and wireline service providers requires those carriers to allow service providers such as us to have access to certain databases that make the

delivery of an E9-1-1 call possible. No such requirements exist for VoIP service providers so carriers could prevent us from continuing to provide VoIP E9-1-1 service by denying us access to

the required databases.

Our operations are subject to government regulations, and failure to comply with them will harm our business.

We are subject to various federal laws and regulations, which may have negative effects on our business. We operate FCC licensed teleports in Manassas, Virginia and Republic of

Kiribati subject to the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, or the FCC Act, and the rules and regulations of the FCC. We cannot guarantee that the FCC will grant renewals when our

existing licenses expire, nor are we assured that the FCC will not adopt new or modified technical requirements that will require us to incur expenditures to modify or upgrade our equipment as

a condition of retaining our licenses. We are also required to comply with FCC regulations regarding the exposure of humans to radio frequency radiation from our teleports. These regulations,

as well as local land use regulations, restrict our freedom to choose where to locate our teleports. In addition, prior to a third party acquisition of us, we would need to seek approval from the

FCC to transfer the radio transmission licenses we have obtained to the third party upon the consummation of the acquisition. However, we cannot assure you that the FCC will permit the

transfer of these licenses. These approvals may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us.

In addition, regulatory schemes in countries in which we may seek to provide our satellite-delivered services may impose impediments on our operations. We cannot assure you that the

present regulatory environment in any of those countries will not be changed in a manner that may have a material adverse impact on our business. Either we or our local partners typically

must obtain authorization from each country in which we provide our satellite-delivered services. The regulatory schemes in each country are different, and thus there may be instances of

noncompliance of which we are not aware. We cannot assure you that our licenses and approvals are or will remain sufficient in the view of foreign regulatory authorities, or that necessary

licenses and approvals will be granted on a timely basis in all jurisdictions in which we wish to offer our services and products or that restrictions applicable thereto will not be unduly

burdensome.

The sale of our products outside the U.S. is subject to compliance with the United States Export Administration Regulations and, in certain circumstances, with the International Traffic in

Arms Regulations. The absence of comparable restrictions on competitors in other countries may adversely affect our competitive position. In addition, in order to ship our products into and

implement our services in some countries, the products must satisfy the technical
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requirements of that particular country. If we were unable to comply with such requirements with respect to a significant quantity of our products, our sales in those countries could be

restricted, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may, in the future, be required to seek FCC or other government approval if foreign ownership of our stock exceeds certain specified criteria. Failure to comply with these policies

could result in an order to divest the offending foreign ownership, fines, denial of license renewal and/or license revocation proceedings against the licensee by the FCC, or denial of certain

contracts from other U.S. Government agencies.

Technology Risks

Because our software may contain defects or errors, and our hardware products may incorporate defective components, our sales could decrease if these defects or errors adversely

affect our reputation or delays shipments of our products.

The software products that we develop are complex and must meet the stringent technical requirements of our customers. Our hardware products are equally complex and integrate a wide

variety of components from different vendors. We must quickly develop new products and product enhancements to keep pace with the rapidly changing software and telecommunications

markets in which we operate. Products as complex as ours are likely to contain undetected errors or defects, especially when first introduced or when new versions are released. Our products

may not be error or defect free after delivery to customers, which could damage our reputation, cause revenue losses, result in the rejection of our products or services, divert development

resources and increase service and warranty costs, each of which could have a serious harmful effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights or are sued by third parties for infringing upon intellectual property rights, we may incur substantial costs.

Our success and competitive position depends in large part upon our ability to develop and maintain the proprietary aspects of our technology. We rely on a combination of patent,

copyright, trademark, service mark, trade secret laws, confidentiality provisions and various other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary rights, but these legal means provide only

limited protection. Although a number of patents have been issued to us and we have obtained a number of other patents as a result of our acquisitions, we cannot assure you that our issued

patents will be upheld if challenged by another party. Additionally, with respect to any patent applications which we have filed, we cannot assure you that any patents will issue as a result of

these applications. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on the resources expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive

advantage based on it, and we may be exposed to expensive litigation or risk jeopardizing our competitive position. Similarly, some third parties have claimed and others could claim that our

existing and future products or services infringe upon their intellectual property rights. Claims like these could require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or cause us to lose the right to

use critical technology.

Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights is also subject to the terms of future government contracts. We cannot assure you that the federal government will not demand greater

intellectual property rights or restrict our ability to disseminate intellectual property. We are also a member of standards-setting organizations and have agreed to license some of our

intellectual property to other members on fair and reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to develop non-infringing products.

Pursuing infringers of our patents and other intellectual property rights can be costly.

Pursuing infringers of our proprietary rights could result in significant litigation costs, and any failure to pursue infringers could result in our competitors utilizing our technology and

offering similar products, potentially resulting in loss of a competitive advantage and decreased revenues. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, existing patent, copyright,

trademark and trade secret laws afford only limited protection. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the

United States. Protecting our know-how is difficult especially after our employees or those of our third party contract service providers end their employment or engagement. Attempts may be

made to copy or reverse-engineer aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent the misappropriation of our

technology or prevent others from developing similar technology. Furthermore, policing the unauthorized use of our products is difficult and expensive. Litigation may be necessary in the

future to enforce our intellectual property rights or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. The costs and diversion of resources could significantly harm our

business. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on the resources expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based

on it.
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Third parties may claim we are infringing their intellectual property rights and we could be prevented from selling our products, or suffer significant litigation expense, even if these

claims have no merit, and our customers also could demand indemnification for such claims.

Our competitive position is driven in part by our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. Third parties, however, may claim that we, our products, operations or any products or

technology we obtain from other parties are infringing their intellectual property rights, and we may be unaware of intellectual property rights of others that may cover some of our assets,

technology and products. From time to time we receive letters from third parties that allege we are infringing their intellectual property and asking us to license such intellectual property. We

review the merits of each such letter and respond as we deem appropriate.

At the same time, from time to time our customers are parties to allegations of intellectual property rights infringement lawsuits based on their offering products and services which

incorporate our products and services. In those instances, we from time to time receive demands from our customers to indemnify them for costs in defending those allegations. We review the

merits of each such demand and respond as we deem appropriate.

Any litigation regarding patents, trademarks, copyrights or intellectual property rights, even those without merit, and the related indemnification demands of our customers, could be

costly and time consuming, and divert our management and key personnel from operating our business. The complexity of the technology involved and inherent uncertainty and cost of

intellectual property litigation increases our risks. If any third party has a meritorious or successful claim that we are infringing its intellectual property rights, we may be forced to change our

products or enter into licensing arrangements with third parties, which may be costly or impractical. This also may require us to stop selling our products as currently engineered, which could

harm our competitive position. We also may be subject to significant damages or injunctions that prevent the further development and sale of certain of our products or services and may result

in a material loss of revenue.

The measures we have implemented to secure information we collect and store may be breached, which could cause us to breach agreements with our partners and expose us to

potential investigation and penalties by authorities and potential claims by persons whose information was disclosed.

We take reasonable steps to protect the security, integrity and confidentiality of the information we collect and store but there is no guarantee that inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure

will not occur or that third parties will not gain unauthorized access despite our efforts. If such unauthorized disclosure or access does occur, we may be required to notify persons whose

information was disclosed or accessed under existing and proposed laws. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, or sabotage systems change

frequently and are often not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or implement adequate preventative measures. We also may be subject

to claims of breach of contract for such disclosure, investigation and penalties by regulatory authorities and potential claims by persons whose information was disclosed.

If there is a security breach or if there is an inappropriate disclosure of any of these types of information, we could be exposed to investigations, litigation, fines and penalties.

Remediation of and liability for loss or misappropriation of end user or employee personal information could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. Even if we

were not held liable for such event, a security breach or inappropriate disclosure of personal, private or confidential information could harm our reputation and our relationships with current

and potential customers and end users. Even if the perception of a security risk could inhibit market acceptance of our products and services. In addition, we may be required to invest

additional resources to protect against damages caused by any actual or perceived disruptions of our services. We may also be required to provide information about the location of an end

user's mobile device to government authorities, which could result in public perception that we are providing the government with intelligence information and deter some end users from using

our services. Any of these developments could harm our business.

Because the market for most mobile content delivery and mobile location products is undergoing rapid changes, our future success is uncertain.

The market for mobile content delivery and mobile location products and services is undergoing rapid changes and its potential is uncertain. In order to be successful, we need wireless

network operators to launch and maintain mobile location services utilizing our products, and need corporate enterprises and individuals to purchase and use our mobile content delivery and

mobile location products and services. We cannot be sure that wireless carriers or enterprises will accept our products or that a sufficient number of wireless users will ultimately utilize our

products.
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If the satellite communications industry fails to continue to develop or new technology makes it obsolete, our business and financial condition will be harmed.

As a result of the Trident acquisition, our business will be dependent on the continued success and development of satellite communications technology, which competes with terrestrial

communications transport technologies like terrestrial microwave, coaxial cable and fiber optic communications systems. Fiber optic communications systems have penetrated areas in which

we have traditionally provided services. If the satellite communications industry fails to continue to develop, or if any technological development significantly improves the cost or efficiency

of competing terrestrial systems relative to satellite systems, then our business and financial condition would be materially harmed.

If we are unable to integrate our products with wireless service providers' systems we may lose sales to competitors.

Our products operate with wireless carriers' systems, various wireless devices and, in the case of our E9-1-1 offering, with mobile telephone switches and VoIP service provider systems.

If we are unable to continue to design our software to operate with these systems and devices, we may lose sales to competitors. Mobile telephone switches and wireless devices can be

manufactured according to many different standards and may have different variations within each standard. Combining our products with each type of switch, device or VoIP system requires

a specialized interface and extensive testing. If as a result of technology enhancements or upgrades to carrier and VoIP provider systems our products can no longer operate with such systems,

we may no longer be able to sell our products. Further, even if we successfully redesign our products to operate with these systems, we may not gain market acceptance before our competitors.

Failure to meet our contractual obligations could adversely affect our profitability and future prospects.

We design, develop and manufacture technologically advanced and innovative products and services applied by our customers in a variety of environments. Problems and delays in

development or delivery as a result of issues with respect to design, technology, licensing and patent rights, labor, learning curve assumptions, or materials and components could prevent us

from achieving contractual obligations. In addition, our products cannot be tested and proven in all situations and are otherwise subject to unforeseen problems. Examples of unforeseen

problems which could negatively affect revenue and profitability include problems with quality, delivery of subcontractor components or services, and unplanned degradation of product

performance.

Because our systems may be vulnerable to systems failures and security risks, we may incur significant costs to protect against the threat of these problems.

We provide for the delivery of information and content to and from wireless devices in a prompt and timely manner. Any systems failure that causes a disruption in our ability to facilitate

the transmission of information to these wireless devices could result in delays in end users receiving this information and cause us to lose customers. Our systems could experience such

failures as a result of unauthorized access by hackers, computer viruses, hardware or software failures, power or telecommunications failures and other accidental or intentional actions which

could disrupt our systems. We may incur significant costs to prevent such systems disruptions.

Increasingly our products will be used to create or transmit secure information and data to and from wireless devices. For example, our software can be used to create private address lists

and to provide the precise location of an individual. To protect private information like this from security breaches, we may incur significant costs. If a third party were able to misappropriate

our proprietary information or disrupt our operations, we could be subject to claims, litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely impact our business. Further, if an

individual is unable to use our service to receive the precise location in a health or life-and-death situation, or if our service provides the wrong information, we could be subject to claims,

litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely impact our business.

The wireless data services provided by our Commercial Segment are dependent on real-time, continuous feeds from map and traffic data vendors and others. The ability of our subscribers

to receive critical location and business information requires timely and uninterrupted connections with our wireless network carriers. Any disruption from our satellite feeds or backup landline

feeds could result in delays in our subscribers' ability to receive information. We cannot be sure that our systems will operate appropriately if we experience hardware or software failure,

intentional disruptions of service by third parties, an act of God or an act of war. A failure in our systems could cause delays in transmitting data, and as a result we may lose customers or face

litigation that could involve material costs and distract management from operating our business.
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If mobile equipment manufacturers do not overcome capacity, technology and equipment limitations, we may not be able to sell our products and services.

The wireless technology currently in use by most wireless carriers has limited bandwidth, which restricts network capacity to deliver bandwidth-intensive applications like data services to

a large number of users. Because of capacity limitations, wireless users may not be able to connect to their network when they wish to, and the connection is likely to be slow, especially when

receiving data transmissions. Data services also may be more expensive than users are willing to pay. To overcome these obstacles, wireless equipment manufacturers will need to develop new

technology, standards, equipment and devices that are capable of providing higher bandwidth services at lower cost. We cannot be sure that manufacturers will be able to develop technology

and equipment that reliably delivers large quantities of data at a reasonable price. If more capacity is not added, a sufficient market for our products and services is not likely to develop or be

sustained and sales of our products and services would decline resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

If wireless handsets pose health and safety risks, we may be subject to new regulations and demand for our products and services may decrease.

Media reports have suggested that certain radio frequency emissions from wireless handsets may be linked to various health concerns, including cancer, and may interfere with various

electronic medical devices, including hearing aids and pacemakers. Concerns over radio frequency emissions may have the effect of discouraging the use of wireless handsets, which would

decrease demand for our services. In recent years, the FCC and foreign regulatory agencies have updated the guidelines and methods they use for evaluating radio frequency emissions from

radio equipment, including wireless handsets. In addition, interest groups have requested that the FCC investigate claims that wireless technologies pose health concerns and cause interference

with airbags, hearing aids and other medical devices. There also are some safety risks associated with the use of wireless handsets while driving. Concerns over these safety risks and the effect

of any legislation that may be adopted in response to these risks could limit our ability to market and sell our products and services.

Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock

The price of our Class A common stock historically has been volatile. This volatility may affect the price at which you could sell your Class A common stock, and the sale of

substantial amounts of our Class A common stock could adversely affect the price of our Class A common stock.

The market price for our Class A common stock has varied between a high of $5.57 on August 2, 2011, and a low of $2.10 on December 15, 2011 in the twelve month period ended

December 31, 2011. This volatility may affect the price at which you could sell the Class A common stock and the sale of substantial amounts of our Class A common stock could adversely

affect the price of our Class A common stock. Our stock price is likely to continue to be volatile and subject to significant price and volume fluctuations in response to market and other factors,

including the other factors discussed in these risk factors; variations in our quarterly operating results from our expectations or those of securities analysts or investors; downward revisions in

securities analysts' estimates; and announcement by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments.

A significant percentage of our common stock is beneficially owned by our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, and he can exert significant influence

over us.

We have two classes of common stock: Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Holders of Class A common stock generally have the same rights as holders of Class B

common stock, except that holders of Class A common stock have one vote per share while holders of Class B common stock have three votes per share. As of December 31, 2011, Maurice B.

Tosé, our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, beneficially owned 5,347,769 shares of our Class B common stock and 2,537,158 shares of our Class A common

stock. Therefore, as of that date, in the aggregate, Mr. Tosé beneficially owned shares representing approximately 27% of our total voting power, assuming no conversion or exercise of issued

and outstanding convertible or exchangeable securities held by our other shareholders or holders of the notes. Accordingly, on this basis, Mr. Tosé can exert significant influence over us

through his ability to influence the outcome of elections of directors, amend our charter and by-laws and take other actions requiring shareholder action, including mergers, going private

transactions and other extraordinary transactions. Mr. Tosé may also able to deter or prevent a change of control regardless of whether holders of Class A common stock might benefit

financially from such a transaction.
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Because our business may not generate sufficient cash to fund our operations, we may not be able to continue to grow our business if we are unable to obtain additional capital when

needed.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, and our bank line of credit, coupled with the funds anticipated to be generated from operations will be sufficient to finance our operations

for at least the next twelve months. However, unanticipated events could cause us to fall short of our capital requirements. In addition, such unanticipated events could cause us to violate our

bank line of credit covenants causing the bank to foreclose on the line and/or opportunities may make it necessary for us to return to the public markets, or establish new credit facilities or raise

capital in private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital in the future on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio; as well as other

restrictive covenants including, among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire or dispose of assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the ordinary course of our

business (including the incurrence and repayment of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock. The agreement also contains a subjective event of default that

requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of our Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of

the Company's obligations under the bank credit agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of perfection or priority of the lenders security interests in the collateral under the bank credit

agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with any of the restrictive covenants, or if our line of credit agreement lenders seek to exercise their rights under the subjective

acceleration clause referred to above, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no assurance that our debt holders would not exercise their rights and

remedies under their agreements with us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable.

Our short-term investments are subject to market fluctuations which may affect our liquidity.

Although we have not experienced any losses on our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments, declines in the market values of these investments in the future could have an

adverse impact on our financial condition and operating results. Historically, we have invested in AAA rated money market funds meeting certain criteria. These investments are subject to

general credit, liquidity, market, and interest rate risks, which may be directly or indirectly impacted by the U.S. sub-prime mortgage defaults that have affected various sectors of the financial

markets causing credit and liquidity issues. If an issuer defaults on its obligations, or its credit ratings are negatively affected by liquidity, losses or other factors, the impact on liquidity could

decline and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Variations in quarterly operating results due to factors such as changes in demand for our products and changes in our mix of revenues and costs may cause our Class A common

stock price to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results are difficult to predict and are likely to fluctuate from quarter-to-quarter. For example, 2011 systems revenue was greater in the second half of

the year compared to the first half. 2010 systems revenue was higher in the first and third quarters than in the second and fourth quarters. We generally derive a significant portion of wireless

carrier systems revenue in our Commercial Segment from initial license fees. The initial license fees that we receive in a particular quarter may vary significantly. As systems projects begin

and end, quarterly results may vary. We therefore believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be a good indication of our future performance, and you should

not rely on them to predict our future performance or the future performance of our Class A common stock. Our quarterly revenues, expenses and operating results could vary significantly

from quarter-to-quarter. If our operating results in future quarters fall below the expectations of market analysts and investors, the market price of our stock may fall.

Additional factors that have either caused our results to fluctuate in the past or that are likely to do so in the future include:
 

 •  changes in our relationships with wireless carriers, the U.S. Government or other customers;
 

 •  timing and success of introduction of new products and services and our wireless carrier partners' marketing expenditures;
 

 •  changes in pricing policies and product offerings by us or our competitors;

 

30



 

Table of Contents

 •  changes in projected profitability of acquired assets that would require the write down of the value of the goodwill reflected on our balance sheet;
 

 •  loss of subscribers by our wireless carrier partners or a reduction in the number of subscribers to plans that include our services;
 

 •  the timing and quality of information we receive from our wireless carrier partners;
 

 •  the timing and success of new mobile phone introductions by our wireless carrier partners;
 

 •  our inability to attract new end users;
 

 •  the extent of any interruption in our services;
 

 •  costs associated with advertising, marketing and promotional efforts to acquire new customers;
 

 •  capital expenditures and other costs and expenses related to improving our business, expanding operations and adapting to new technologies and changes in consumer preferences;
and

 

 •  our lengthy and unpredictable sales cycle.

We may not have, and may not have the ability to raise, the funds necessary to repurchase our currently outstanding Convertible Senior Notes upon a fundamental change, as

required by the indenture governing the Convertible Senior Notes.

Following a fundamental change as described in the indenture governing the Convertible Senior Notes, holders of those notes may require us to repurchase their notes for cash. A

fundamental change may also constitute an event of default or prepayment under, and result in the acceleration of the maturity of, our then-existing indebtedness. We cannot provide any

assurance that we will have sufficient financial resources, or will be able to arrange financing, to pay the repurchase price in cash with respect to any notes tendered by holders for repurchase

upon a fundamental change. In addition, restrictions in our then- existing credit facilities or other indebtedness, if any, may not allow us to repurchase the Convertible Senior Notes. The failure

of us to repurchase the notes when required would result in an event of default with respect to the Convertible Senior Notes which could, in turn, constitute a default under the terms of our

other indebtedness, if any, and have an adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Future sales of our Class A common stock in the public market or issuances of securities convertible into our Class A common stock and hedging activities could lower the market

price for our Class A common stock and adversely impact the trading price of the notes.

As of December 31, 2011, we had outstanding approximately 52.6 million shares of our Class A common stock and options to purchase approximately 16.4 million shares of our Class A

common stock (approximately 9.6 million of which have a strike price below $4.68 and an additional 6.8 million of which have a strike price above $4.76). In the future, we may sell additional

shares of our Class A common stock to raise capital. In addition, a substantial number of shares of our Class A common stock is reserved for issuance upon the exercise of stock options and

upon conversion of the Convertible Notes. Our Class A common stock may also be issued upon conversion of our Class B common stock, which is convertible into our Class A common stock

on a one-for-one basis. As of December 31, 2011, we had 5.3 million shares of Class B common stock outstanding. We cannot predict the size of future issuances or the effect, if any, that they

may have on the market price for our Class A common stock. The issuance and sale of substantial amounts of Class A common stock, or the perception that such issuances and sales may occur,

could adversely affect the trading price of the Convertible Notes and the market price of our Class A common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity

securities.

Our convertible note hedge and warrant transactions may affect the value of the Convertible Senior Notes and the trading price of shares of our common stock.

In connection with the 2009 sale of the Convertible Senior Notes, we entered into privately-negotiated convertible note hedge transactions with Deutsche Bank AG, Société Générale and

Royal Bank of Canada (each, a "counterparty" and together, the "counterparties") which are expected to reduce the potential dilution of shares of the our common stock upon any conversion of

the Convertible Senior Notes. In the event that any of the counterparties in the transaction fails to deliver shares to us as required under the note hedge documents or as a result of a breach of

the note hedge documents by us, we will be required to issue shares in order to meet its share delivery obligations with respect to the converted Convertible Senior Notes. We also entered into

warrant transactions with the counterparties with respect to the shares of our common stock pursuant to which we may issue shares of our common stock.
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In connection with hedging these transactions, the counterparties or their affiliates may purchase shares of our common stock and enter into various over-the-counter derivative

transactions with respect to shares of our common stock and may purchase or sell shares of our common stock in secondary market transactions. These activities could have the effect of

increasing or preventing a decline in the price of the shares of our common stock. The counterparties or their affiliates are likely to modify their respective hedge positions from time to time

prior to conversion or maturity of the Convertible Senior Notes (including during any conversion period related to any conversion of the Convertible Senior Notes) by purchasing and selling

shares of our common stock, of our other securities or other instruments they may wish to use in connection with such hedging. The magnitude of any of these transactions and activities and

their effect, if any, on the market price of our common stock or the Convertible Senior Notes will depend in part on market conditions and cannot be ascertained at this time, but any of these

activities could adversely affect the value of the shares of our common stock (including during any period used to determine the amount of consideration deliverable upon conversion of the

notes with respect to any fractional shares).

Conversion of the Convertible Senior Notes will dilute your ownership interest.

The conversion of some or all of the Convertible Senior Notes will dilute the ownership interests of our shareholders and could adversely affect the prevailing market price of the shares

of our common stock. In addition, the existence of the Convertible Senior Notes may encourage short selling by market participants because the conversion of the Convertible Senior Notes

could depress the price of the our common stock.

The fundamental change purchase feature of the Convertible Senior Notes may delay or prevent an otherwise beneficial attempt to purchase us.

The terms of the Convertible Senior Notes require us to purchase them for cash in the event of a fundamental change. A takeover of our Company would trigger the requirement that we

purchase the Convertible Senior Notes. This may have the effect of delaying or preventing a takeover that would otherwise be beneficial to investors.

Our governing corporate documents and Maryland law contain certain anti-takeover provisions that could prevent a change of control that may be favorable to shareholders.

We are a Maryland corporation. Anti-takeover provisions of Maryland law and provisions contained in our charter and by-laws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire

control of us, even if a change in control would be beneficial to shareholders. These provisions include the following:
 

 •  authorization of the board of directors to issue "blank check" preferred stock;
 

 •  prohibition of cumulative voting in the election of directors;
 

 •  our classified board of directors;
 

 •  limitation of the persons who may call special meetings of shareholders;
 

 •  prohibition on shareholders acting without a meeting other than through unanimous written consent;
 

 •  supermajority voting requirement on various charter and by-law provisions; and
 

 •  establishment of advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted on by shareholders at shareholder
meetings.

These provisions could delay, deter or prevent a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us, depriving shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for Class A

common stock. These provisions could therefore materially adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive office is located in Annapolis, Maryland, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government Segments, and includes a satellite operations center. Our office

in Seattle, Washington is used primarily for servicing and hosting our wireless and VoIP E9-1-1 public safety support services. The design and development of our software based systems and

applications are located in Annapolis, Maryland and also in our Aliso Viejo, California, Calgary, Alberta, and Tianjin, China offices. Our Government Segment manufacturing facility is

located Tampa, Florida. In
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addition to our leased locations listed below, we also lease a hosting facility in Phoenix, Arizona, which is utilized by our Commercial Segment and a facility in Oakland, California. We also

own a 7-acre teleport facility in Manassas, Virginia for teleport services for our Government Segment customers. On March 1, 2012, we agreed to a new lease arrangement for our Annapolis,

Maryland, headquarters facility, which will extend the term through at least December 31, 2014.

The following table lists our most significant leased facilities at December 31, 2011:
 
Location:   Size:   Lease Expiration:
Annapolis, Maryland   52,000 square feet  April 2012 and April 2013
Seattle, Washington   57,000 square feet  September 2017
Tampa, Florida   45,600 square feet  December 2014
Hanover, Maryland   36,000 square feet  August 2017
Torrance, California   35,000 square feet  January 2018
Aliso Viejo, California   29,000 square feet  June 2013
Manassas, Virginia   10,000 square feet  February 2013
Suwanee, Georgia   9,500 square feet  April 2013

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, some of our customers have sought indemnification under their contractual arrangements with us for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of

certain patents through the use of our products and services and the use of our products and services in combination with products and services of other vendors. In some cases we have agreed

to assume the defense of the case. In others, the Company will continue to negotiate with these customers in good faith because the Company believes its technology does not infringe the cited

patents and due to specific clauses within the customer contractual arrangements that may or may not give rise to an indemnification obligation. The Company cannot currently predict the

outcome of these matters and the resolutions could have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.

Part II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol "TSYS" since our initial public offering on August 8, 2000. The following table sets forth,

for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our Class A Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market:
 
   High    Low  
2012     
First Quarter 2012 (through February 29, 2012)   $ 3.09    $ 2.25  
2011     
First Quarter 2011   $ 5.12    $ 3.81  
Second Quarter 2011   $ 5.32    $ 4.03  
Third Quarter 2011   $ 5.57    $ 3.13  
Fourth Quarter 2011   $ 4.03    $ 2.10  
2010     
First Quarter 2010   $ 10.55    $ 7.07  
Second Quarter 2010   $ 8.14    $ 4.14  
Third Quarter 2010   $ 4.90    $ 2.96  
Fourth Quarter 2010   $ 6.04    $ 3.60  

There are approximately 11,000 shareholders of our Class A Common Stock and as of February 29, 2012, approximately 260 were holders of record. As of February 29, 2012, there were

8 holders of record of our Class B Common Stock.
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Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any future earnings to fund the development, growth and operation of our business.

Additionally, under the terms of our loan arrangements, our lender's prior written consent is required to pay cash dividends on our common stock. We do not currently anticipate paying any

cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's Class A Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Global Market U.S. Index

and a mobile data index prepared by the Company of the following relevant publicly traded companies in the commercial and government sectors in which we operate: CACI International Inc.;

Comtech Telecommunications Corp.; Comverse Technology, Inc.; General Dynamics Corp.; Globecomm Systems, Inc.; Harris Corp.; Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.; NCI Inc.;

NeuStar, Inc.; Rockwell Collins, Inc.; LM Ericsson Telephone Company; Telenav, Inc.; and ViaSat, Inc. (the "New Peer Group")

The composition of the Mobile Data Index has been changed from last year (the "Old Peer Group") as follows: (1) the business models and operations for Openwave Systems, Inc. and

Motricity, Inc. have changed such that correlated data would not be meaningful in comparison; and (2) CACI International Inc., Harris Corp., Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. and

Rockwell Collins, Inc. were added to the remaining companies to comprise the "New Peer Group" because their government systems and services lines have become more comparable to our

Government Segment businesses.

The information provided is from January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2011.

This performance graph shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act

or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing. The stock price performance shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future

price performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The table that follows presents portions of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the following selected financial data together with our audited Consolidated Financial

Statements and related notes and with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the more complete financial information included

elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2011 and

2010 from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, and which are included in Item 15 of this

Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, from our

audited financial statements which are not included in this Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future fiscal

year. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."
 
   Year Ended December 31,  

   2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  

   (in millions, except share and per share data)  
Statement of Operations Data:       

Revenue       
Services   $ 303.9   $ 262.3   $ 151.9   $ 101.4   $ 88.1  
Systems    121.5    126.5    148.2    118.8    56.1  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total revenue    425.4    388.8    300.1    220.2    144.2  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Direct cost of services revenue    171.0    152.2    84.1    61.6    52.2  
Direct cost of systems revenue    103.2    98.6    102.1    77.3    37.9  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total direct cost of revenue    274.2    250.8    186.2    138.9    90.1  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Services gross profit    132.9    110.1    67.8    39.8    35.9  
Systems gross profit    18.3    27.9    46.1    41.5    18.2  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total gross profit    151.2    138.0    113.9    81.3    54.1  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Research and development expense    37.1    30.1    22.3    16.2    13.1  
Sales and marketing expense    29.4    23.9    16.0    13.7    11.9  
General and administrative expense    46.2    37.2    35.4    28.2    19.3  
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment    12.1    9.7    6.0    5.9    6.2  
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets    5.5    4.7    0.9    0.1    0.1  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating costs and expenses    130.3    105.6    80.6    64.2    50.6  
Patent related gains, net of expenses    —    —    15.7    8.1    —  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Income from operations    20.9    32.4    49.0    25.2    3.5  
Interest expense    (7.3)   (9.2)   (1.8)   (0.9)   (1.8) 
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, including $2,458 write-off in 2007    (0.8)   (0.8)   (0.4)   (0.2)   (3.2) 
Other income (expense), net    (0.4)   1.6    0.3    0.2    0.5  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes    12.4    24.0    47.1    24.3    (1.0) 
(Provision) benefit for income taxes    (5.4)   (8.1)   (18.8)   33.3    —  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Income (loss) from continuing operations    7.0    15.9    28.3    57.6    (1.0) 
Loss from discontinued operations    —    —    —    —    (0.3) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income (loss)   $ 7.0   $ 15.9   $ 28.3   $ 57.6   $ (1.3) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Income (loss) from continuing operations per share   $ 0.12   $ 0.30   $ 0.59   $ 1.34   $ (0.02) 
Loss from discontinued operations per share    —    —    —    —    (0.01) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income (loss) per share — basic   $ 0.12   $ 0.30   $ 0.59   $ 1.34   $ (0.03) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Income (loss) from continuing operations per share
1

  $ 0.12   $ 0.28   $ 0.53   $ 1.23   $ (0.02) 
Loss from discontinued operations per share    —    —    —    —    (0.01) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income (loss) per share — diluted   $ 0.12   $ 0.28   $ 0.53   $ 1.23   $ (0.03) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Basic shares used in computation (in thousands)    56,722    53,008    47,623    43,063    41,453  
Diluted shares used in computation (in thousands)    58,581    56,032    53,946    46,644    41,453  
 
1
 Shares issuable via the convertible notes are included if diluted, in which case tax-effected interest expense on the debt is excluded from the determination of Net income per share — diluted,
see Note 3 presented in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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   As of December 31,  

   2011    2010    2009    2008    2007  

   (in millions)  
Balance Sheet Data:           
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40.9    $ 45.2    $ 61.4    $ 39.0    $ 16.0  
Working capital    87.0     89.6     77.7     79.1     35.0  
Total assets    489.6     462.8     472.2     182.0     82.1  
Capital leases and long-term debt (including current portion)    140.8     160.5     183.0     11.8     16.1  
Total liabilities    238.9     247.3     286.4     67.7     38.2  
Total stockholders' equity    250.7     215.5     185.8     114.3     44.0  

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates

and judgments. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of

which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates

under different assumptions or conditions. We have identified our most critical accounting policies and estimates to be those related to the following:

Revenue Recognition. Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2009-14 (ASC topic 985) "Certain Revenue Arrangements That

Include Software Elements" and the ASU 2009-13 (ASC topic 605) "Revenue Recognition — Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements" on a prospective basis for any contract entered into

or significantly modified after January 1, 2011, the adoption of which did not have a material impact on the financial statements. The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following

criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable, and (iv) the fee is probable of collection.

Revenue is reported as described below:

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted and subscriber services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is recognized in the month earned. Maintenance fees are generally collected

in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period. Services revenue for consulting, training and the design, development, deployment, field support and maintenance of

communication systems is generated under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials contracts and cost plus

fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price service contracts are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing or

billing upon achieving certain specified milestones.

Systems Revenue. We design, develop, and deploy custom communications products, components, and systems. Custom systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include

hardware, installation, integration, and product licenses, which are either incidental or provide essential functionality.

We allocate the fees in a multi-element arrangement to each element based on the relative fair value of each element, using vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE") of the fair value

of each of the elements, if available. VSOE is generally determined based on the price charged when an element is sold separately. In the absence of VSOE of fair value, the fee is allocated

among each element based on third-party evidence ("TPE") of fair value, which is determined based on competitor pricing for similar deliverables when sold separately. When the Company is

unable to establish fair value using VSOE or TPE, the Company uses estimated selling price ("ESP") to allocate value to each element. The objective of ESP is to determine the price at which

the Company would transact a sale if the product or service were sold separately. The Company determines ESP for deliverables by considering multiple factors including, but not limited to,

prices it charges for similar offerings, market conditions, competitive landscape, and pricing practices.

Fees from the development and implementation of custom systems are generally performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and

materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts
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as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportional performance method, measured either by total costs

incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party

hardware represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated

losses under long-term contracts are recognized in their entirety at the date that it becomes probable of occurring. Revenue from hardware sales to monthly subscriber customers is recognized

as systems revenue. The Company has contracts and purchase orders where revenue is recognized at the time products or services are delivered, or when the product is shipped and the risk of

the loss is transferred to the buyer, net of discounts.

Software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are recognized as revenue

when the four criteria described above are met. For multiple element arrangements that contain only software and software-related elements, we allocate the fees to each element based on the

VSOE of fair value of each element. Systems containing software licenses include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product to

date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related revenue.

When a customer is billed or we receive payment and we have not met all of the criteria for revenue recognition, the billed or paid amount is recorded as deferred revenue on the

Company's consolidated balance sheet. As the revenue recognition criteria are met, the deferred amounts are recognized as revenue. We defer direct project costs incurred in certain situations

as dictated by authoritative accounting literature. The Company classifies deferred revenue and deferred project costs on the consolidated balance sheet as either current or long-term depending

on the expected product delivery dates or service coverage periods. Long-term deferred revenue is included in other liabilities and long-term deferred project costs are included in other assets

on the Company's consolidated balance sheet.

Under our contracts with the U.S. Government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense

Contract Audit Agency. We record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

Business Combinations. Pursuant to ASC 805 for Business Combinations, we account for each business combination under the "acquisition method." Accordingly, the total estimated

purchase prices were allocated to the net tangible and intangible assets acquired in connection with each acquisition, based on their estimated fair values as of the effective date of the

acquisition. The preliminary allocation of the purchase prices on each of the acquisitions were based upon management's preliminary valuation of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets

acquired and liabilities assumed and such estimates and assumptions are subject to change (generally one year from their acquisition date). The purchase price allocation process requires

management to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially at acquisition date with respect to intangible assets and deferred revenue obligations assumed.

Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have made are reasonable, they are based in part on historical experience and information obtained from the managements of the

acquired companies and are inherently uncertain. Examples of critical estimates in valuing certain of the intangible assets we have acquired or may acquire in the future include but are not

limited to:
 

 •  future expected cash flows from application subscriptions, software license sales, support agreements, consulting contracts and acquired developed technologies and patents;
 

 •  expected costs to develop the in-process research and development into commercially viable products and estimated cash flows from the projects when completed;
 

 •  the acquired company's trade name and trademarks as well as assumptions about the period of time the acquired trade name and trademarks will continue to be used in the combined
company's product portfolio; and

 

 •  discount rates

Unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which may affect the accuracy or validity of such assumptions, estimates or actual results.

Acquired Intangible Assets. The acquired intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives of between two and nineteen years, based on the straight-line method. We evaluate

acquired intangible assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values of such assets might not be recoverable. Our review of
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factors present and the resulting appropriate carrying value of our acquired intangible assets are subject to judgments and estimates by management. Future events such as a significant

underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets, and significant negative industry or economic

trends could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that our acquired intangible assets might be impaired. There were no impairment charges in 2011.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is evaluated annually for impairment using a

discounted cash flow model and other measurements of fair value such as market comparable transactions, etc. The authoritative guidance for the goodwill impairment model includes a two-

step process. First, it requires a comparison of the book value of net assets to the fair value of the reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them. If the fair value is determined to be less

than the book value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment. In the second step, a fair value for goodwill is estimated, based in part on the fair value of the

reporting unit used in the first step, and is compared to its carrying value. The shortfall of the fair value below carrying value, if any, would represent the amount of goodwill impairment.

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or sooner should there be an indicator of impairment. The Company periodically analyzes

whether any such indicators of impairment exist. Such indicators include a sustained, significant decline in the Company's stock price and market capitalization, a decline in the Company's

expected future cash flows, a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, unanticipated competition, and/or slower growth rate, among others.

For goodwill impairment testing, the Company has four reporting units: two Commercial Segment units, Navigation and Other Commercial (which comprises our text messaging and

location-based technology businesses, including E9-1-1 call routing); and two Government Segment units, the Government Solutions Group ("GSG") unit and the Cyber Intelligence unit.
 
   2011  
Navigation   $ 108,434  
Other Commercial    14,019  
Government Solutions Group    25,869  
Cyber Intelligence    28,155  

    
 

Total goodwill   $ 176,477  
    

 

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing during the fourth quarter of 2011. For all units, the Company uses a discounted cash flow ("DCF") analysis. In addition, a

market approach is also used where market comparables are available. Where multiple approaches are used, the Company may weight the results from different methods to estimate the

reporting unit's fair value. For two reporting units (Navigation and Government Solutions Group) a market comparables method was used in the 2011 valuation calculations. For Navigation,

market comparables were observable comparable public companies multiples and a recent market transaction multiple. For the Government Solutions Group, the Company used observable

public companies multiples.

Determining fair value requires the exercise of significant judgment, including judgment about appropriate discount rates, the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, as well as

relevant comparable company multiples for the market comparable approach and the relevant weighting of the methods utilized. The cash flows employed in the DCF analyses are based on the

Company's most recent long-range forecast and, for years beyond the forecast, the Company's estimates terminal value based on estimated exit multiples ranging from four to just under seven

times the final forecasted year earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. The discount rates used in the DCF analyses are intended to reflect the risks inherent in the future

cash flows of the respective reporting unit and range from approximately 13% to 16%. For the market comparable approaches, the Company evaluated comparable company public trading

values, using earnings multiples (ranging from approximately 7 to 8 times earnings) and a sales multiples (ranging from 3 to 4 times).

The Company's discounted cash flow models are based on our expectation of future market conditions for each of the reporting units, as well as discount rates that would be used by

market participants in an arms-length transaction. Future events could cause the Company to conclude that market conditions have declined or discount rates have increased to the extent that

the Company's goodwill could be impaired. It is not possible at this time to determine if any such future impairment charge would result.
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There was no indication of impairment in any of the Company's reporting units during the 2011 annual testing and accordingly, the second step of the goodwill impairment analysis was

not performed. At the time of our annual testing, the fair value of three of the four reporting units significantly exceeded their carrying value. The Navigation reporting unit's estimated fair

value exceeded its carrying value by approximately 25%. For this reporting unit, the three fair value methods used were the DCF, comparable public company multiples, and a recent market

transaction. The Company weighted the DCF and public comparables methods equally with a remaining 25% weight to the comparable market transaction method. Further, the Company

utilized a discount rate of approximately 13% in its DCF of the Navigation reporting unit. A 1% increase in the discount rate utilized would result in the estimated fair value in excess of

carrying value based solely on the DCF decreasing from approximately 10% to approximately 6%.

Stock Compensation Expense. We estimate the fair value of our employee stock awards at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which requires the use of

certain subjective assumptions. The most significant of these assumptions are our estimates of expected volatility of the market price of our stock and the expected term of the stock award. We

have determined that historical volatility is the best predictor of expected volatility and the expected term of our awards was determined taking into consideration the vesting period of the

award, the contractual term and our historical experience of employee stock option exercise behavior. We review our valuation assumptions at each grant date and, as a result, we could change

our assumptions used to value employee stock-based awards granted in future periods. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those

awards expected to vest. If our actual forfeiture rate were materially different from our estimate, the stock-based compensation expense would be different from what we have recorded in the

current period. Our employee stock-based compensation costs are recognized over the vesting period of the award and are recorded using the straight-line method.

Marketable Securities. The Company's marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale. The Company's primary objectives when investing are to preserve principal, maintain

liquidity, and obtain higher yield. The Company's intent is not specifically to invest and hold securities with longer term maturities. The Company has the ability and intent, if necessary, to

liquidate any of these investments in order to meet the Company's operating needs within the next twelve months. The securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price

with net unrealized gains and losses in stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. If the Company determines that a decline in fair value of the

marketable securities is other than temporary, a realized loss would be recognized in earnings. Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific identification method and are

recognized in earnings.

Software Development Costs. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the proprietary technology acquired, has been recorded as capitalized software development costs.

We also capitalize software development costs after we establish technological feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software beginning on the date when

the software is available for general release. We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products.

Costs are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products, technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software

product is completed in the same software language as the product to be ultimately marketed, performs all the major functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial

customer testing. Technological feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed. Costs that are capitalized include direct labor and

other direct costs. In 2011, 2010, and 2009, we capitalized $2.4 million, $5.7 million, and $1.0 million, respectively, of software development costs for software projects.

These costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product's estimated useful life, between three and five years. Amortization is also

computed using the ratio that current revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the revenue curve method). If this revenue curve

method results in amortization greater than the amount computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our policies to determine when to capitalize

software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market

acceptance that we expect and our future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of amortization that we record may increase compared to prior periods. The amortization of

capitalized software development costs is recorded as a cost of revenue.

The Company capitalizes all costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use when management commits to funding the project and the project completes the preliminary

project stage. Capitalization of such costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.
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Income Taxes. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary

differences between financial reporting basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. We also recognize deferred tax assets for tax net operating loss carryforwards. The deferred tax assets and

liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in effect when such amounts are projected to reverse or be utilized. The realization of total deferred tax assets is

contingent upon the generation of future taxable income in the tax jurisdictions in which the deferred tax assets are located. When appropriate, we recognize a valuation allowance to reduce

such deferred tax assets to amounts more likely than not to be realized. The calculation of deferred tax assets (including valuation allowances) and liabilities requires management to apply

significant judgment related to such factors as the application of complex tax laws and the changes in such laws. We have also considered our future operating results, which require

assumptions such as future market penetration levels, forecasted revenues and the mix of earnings in the jurisdictions in which we operate, in determining the need for a valuation allowance.

Changes in our assessment of the need for a valuation allowance could give rise to a change in such allowance, potentially resulting in material amounts of additional tax expense or benefit in

the period of change.

The Company recognizes the benefits of tax positions in the financial statements, if such positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority and

satisfy the appropriate measurement criteria. If the recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is generally measured and recognized as the tax benefit having the highest likelihood, based on

our judgment, of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. At December 31, 2011, we had unrecognized

tax benefits totaling approximately $3.3 million. The determination of these unrecognized amounts requires significant judgments and interpretation of complex tax laws. Different judgments

or interpretations could result in material changes to the amount of unrecognized tax benefits.

Legal and Other Contingencies. We are currently involved in various claims and legal proceedings. As required, we review the status of each significant matter and assess our potential

financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceeding is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss.

Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether the amount of an exposure is reasonably estimable. Because of uncertainties

related to these matters, accruals are based only on the best information available at the time. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to our

pending claims and litigation and may revise our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial

position.

Recent Acquisitions

Opportunistic acquisitions are part of our long-term corporate strategy. We pursue specific targets that complement our portfolio of existing products and services. Our aim is to explore

business combinations through exclusivity rather than participation in auction processes, which we believe enables favorable pricing and expedited execution. We believe we can fund our

future acquisitions with our internally available cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, cash generated from operations, amounts available under our existing debt capacity, additional

borrowings or from the issuance of additional securities. We evaluate the financial impact of any potential acquisition and associated financing with regard to earnings, operating margin, cash

flow and return on invested capital targets before deciding to move forward with an acquisition.

On January 31, 2011, the Company acquired privately-held Trident Space & Defense, LLC, a leading provider of engineering and electronics solutions for global space and defense

markets, located in Torrance, California. Total consideration for the acquisition was $29.5 million including $17.2 million paid in cash and three million shares of our Class A common stock

worth approximately $12.3 million. Substantially all of the Trident revenue stream is from the supply of highly reliable electronic parts, materials, radiation tolerant components, products and

services for aerospace, military and industrial markets. Trident adds engineering and design depth to our government solution operations. The Company believes Trident will help expand the

overall market reach of the combined entities. Most of Trident's business is from international customers and the Company expects Trident's engineers to enable enhancements to TCS solutions

for U.S. Military and access to U.S. space markets. The acquired business operations are included in our Government Segment.

No acquisitions were made in 2010. During 2009, our company completed four acquisitions:

For the Commercial Segment:

On May 19, 2009, we acquired substantially all of the assets of LocationLogic LLC (LocationLogic), a provider of infrastructure, applications and services for carriers and enterprises to

deploy location-based services.
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On December 15, 2009, we acquired Networks In Motion, Inc., ("NIM") a provider of wireless navigation solutions for GPS-enabled mobile phones.

For the Government Segment:

On November 3, 2009, we acquired Solvern Innovations, Inc., ("Solvern") a provider of comprehensive communications products and solutions, training, and technology services for

cyber security-based platforms.

On November 16, 2009, we purchased substantially all of the assets of Sidereal Solutions, Inc., ("Sidereal") a satellite communications technology engineering, operations and

maintenance support services company.

Operating results of each acquired business are reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Indicators of Our Financial and Operating Performance

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of performance indicators in order to manage our business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators

include:
 

 •  Revenue. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services including recurring monthly service and subscriber fees, maintenance fees, software licenses and related service
fees for the design, development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and services derived from the delivery of information processing,
communication systems and components for governmental agencies.

 

 •  Gross profit (revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash expenses). The major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, third-party
hardware and software, network operation center and co-location facility operating expenses, amortization of capitalized software development costs, stock-based compensation, and
overhead expenses. The costs of hardware and third-party software are primarily associated with the delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative
volume, mix of projects, level of service support required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered. Amortization of capitalized software development costs,
including acquired technology, is associated with the recognition of revenue from our Commercial Segment.

 

 •  Operating expenses. Our operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, professional fees, facility costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as well as
certain non-cash expenses such as stock based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and equipment, and amortization of acquired intangible assets.

 

 •  Liquidity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. Other important sources of our liquidity are our capacity to borrow, through our bank
credit and term loan facility and other markets; lease financing for the purchase of equipment; and access to the public equity market.

 

 •  Balance sheet. We view cash, working capital, and accounts receivable balances and days revenue outstanding as important indicators of our financial health.

Results of Operations

We develop and deliver highly reliable and secure wireless communication technology. Our mobile cloud computing services provide wireless applications and operator infrastructure for

E9-1-1 call routing, navigation, asset and social applications, telematics, and text messaging. Our engineered satellite-based solutions incorporate cyber security expertise, and include base

station management, deployable solutions for mission-critical communications with expert field support, and professional services including training.

Impact of Acquisitions

The comparability of our operating results in 2011 to 2010 and 2010 to 2009 is affected by the acquisition of Trident which completed on January 31, 2011 and our four 2009

acquisitions. Where changes in our results of operations from fiscal 2011 compared to 2010 and 2010 to 2009 are clearly related to the acquisitions, such as revenue and increases in

amortization of intangibles, we quantify the effects in the discussion that follows. The impact of our 2009 acquisitions on revenue and cost and expense totals was small because the most

significant acquisition activity occurred in the mid
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to late fourth quarter of 2009. Operation of the acquired businesses has been fully integrated into our existing operations. Our acquisitions did not result in our entry into a new line of business

or product category; they added products, services and technical depth with features and functionality similar to our previous operations.

Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit

The following discussion addresses the revenue, cost of revenue, and gross profit from our company's two business segments.

Commercial Segment
 
        2011 vs. 2010      2010 vs. 2009  

($ in millions)  2011   2010       $          %      2009       $          %     
Services revenue  $ 174.7   $ 169.0   $ 5.7    3%  $ 89.7   $ 79.3    88% 
Systems Revenue   16.5    32.7    (16.2)   (50%)   37.6    (4.9)   (13%) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Commercial Segment Revenue   191.2    201.7    (10.5)   (5%)   127.3    74.4    58% 
Direct cost of services   81.0    85.7    (4.7)   (5%)   35.3    50.4    143% 
Direct cost of systems   13.3    14.4    (1.1)   (8%)   10.6    3.8    36% 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Commercial Segment cost of revenue   94.3    100.1    (5.8)   (6%)   45.9    54.2    118% 
Services gross profit   93.7    83.3    10.4    12%   54.4    28.9    53% 
Systems gross profit   3.2    18.3    (15.1)   (83%)   27.0    (8.7)   (32%) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Commercial Segment gross profit
1

 $ 96.9   $ 101.6   $ (4.7)   (5%)  $ 81.4   $ 20.2    25% 
   

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

 

Segment gross profit as a percentage of revenue   51%   50%     64%   
 
1 See discussion of segment reporting in Note 21 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Commercial Services Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

Our commercial services revenue includes hosted wireless Location Based Service ("LBS") applications including turn-by-turn navigation, people-finder, and asset tracker, and public

safety E9-1-1 service for wireless and Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") service providers, and hosted wireless LBS infrastructure including Position Determining Entity ("PDE") service.

This revenue primarily consists of monthly recurring service fees recognized in the month earned. Subscriber service revenue is generated by client software applications for wireless

subscribers, generally on a per-subscriber per month basis. Hosted LBS service and E9-1-1 fees are generally priced based on units served during the period, such as the number of customer

cell sites, the number of connections to Public Service Answering Points ("PSAPs"), or the number of customer subscribers or sessions using our technology. Maintenance fees on our systems

and software licenses are usually collected in advance and recognized ratably over the contractual maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue.

Custom software development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or fixed-fee contracts.

Commercial services revenue increased $5.7 million, or 3% in 2011 over 2010 due to an overall increase in LBS solutions, increased wireless and VoIP E-9-1-1 revenue and an increase

in software maintenance revenue. Commercial services revenue increased $79.3 million, or 88% in 2010 over 2009 from increased subscriber revenue for LBS applications, as a result of the

LocationLogic and NIM acquisitions in 2009, additional service connection deployments of our E9-1-1 services for cellular and VoIP service providers, and an increase in software

maintenance revenue. Approximately $83 million of 2010 subscriber services revenue may be ascribed to the businesses acquired during 2009.

The direct cost of our services revenue consists primarily of compensation and benefits, network access, data feed and circuit costs, and equipment and software maintenance. Direct costs

of services revenue decreased $4.7 million, or 5% in 2011 over 2010 mainly due to lower labor costs due to reassignment of some personnel to research and development work ("R&D"), and

lower licensed application content and other direct costs. Direct costs of services revenue increased $50.4 million, or 143% in 2010 over 2009, primarily due to the addition of labor and other

direct costs of the businesses acquired in 2009, and custom development work responding to customer requests and deployment requirements for VoIP E9-1-1 technology. The direct cost of

services includes amortization of capitalized software development costs of $6.9 million, $6.7 million, and $0.3 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
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Commercial services gross profit was $10.4 million, or 12% higher in 2011 than in 2010 due to lower 3
rd

 party data costs, a shift of software development resources from customer

specific engineering work in 2010 to R&D efforts in 2011, general cost controls and higher revenue. Commercial services gross profit was $28.9 million, or 53% higher in 2010 than in 2009 as

a result of higher revenue, improved operating efficiencies, and the full year inclusion of the 2009 acquisitions.

Commercial Systems Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

We sell communications systems to wireless carriers incorporating our licensed software for enhanced services mainly for enablement of location-based wireless services and text

messaging. Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customers' networks during the relevant period. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage

increases, the carrier must purchase additional capacity under its license agreement and we receive additional revenue. Also, during 2011 TCS launched Next Generation 9-1-1 technology,

enabling the public to transmit text, images and video to PSAPs for increased reliability and precise wireless 9-1-1 communications, and began deployment of systems for initial customers.

Commercial systems revenue decreased $16.2 million, or 50%, in 2011 from 2010, primarily due to lower sales of text messaging software licenses for incremental customer volume

capacity. The rate of growth in customer use of text messaging has declined, affecting our sales of new licenses. Commercial systems revenue decreased $4.9 million, or 13% in 2010 compared

to 2009 primarily due to lower sales of text messaging software licenses, partly offset by higher revenue from sales of location-based infrastructure systems.

The direct cost of commercial systems revenue consists primarily of compensation and benefits, third-party hardware and software purchased for integration and resale, travel expenses,

and consulting fees as well as the amortization of acquired and capitalized software development costs. The direct cost of commercial systems decreased $1.1 million, or 8% in 2011 compared

to 2010. The direct cost of the license component of license revenue is normally very low, and the gross profit very high since much of the software development costs were expensed in prior

periods, so that changes in the license component of the systems revenue mix significantly affect average gross margin in a period. Direct cost of commercial systems increased $3.8 million, or

36% in 2010 compared to 2009, reflecting an increase in labor and direct costs for customer-requested custom messaging and location-based system development projects. The direct cost of

systems includes amortization of capitalized software development costs of $3.9 million, $2.6 million, and $2.8 million, respectively, in 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Our commercial systems gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2011 decreased $15.1 million, or 83% over 2010. Commercial systems gross profit for the year ended

December 31, 2010 decreased $8.7 million, or 32% over 2009. Commercial systems gross margins are lower as messaging license sales declined and were a lower portion of the revenue mix.

Government Segment
 
        2011 vs. 2010      2010 vs. 2009  

($ in millions)  2011   2010       $          %      2009       $          %     
Services revenue  $ 129.2   $ 93.3   $ 35.9    38%  $ 62.2   $ 31.1    50% 
Systems Revenue   105.0    93.8    11.2    12%   110.6    (16.8)   (15%) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Government Segment Revenue   234.2    187.1    47.1    25%   172.8    14.3    8% 
Direct cost of services   90.0    66.5    23.5    35%   48.8    17.7    36% 
Direct cost of systems   89.9    84.2    5.7    7%   91.5    (7.3)   (8%) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Government Segment cost of revenue   179.9    150.7    29.2    19%   140.3    10.4    7% 
Services gross profit   39.2    26.8    12.4    46%   13.4    13.4    100% 
Systems gross profit   15.1    9.6    5.5    57%   19.1    (9.5)   (50%) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

 

Total Government Segment gross profit
1

 $ 54.3   $ 36.4   $ 17.9    49%  $ 32.5   $ 3.9    12% 
   

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

 

Segment gross profit as a percentage of revenue   23%   19%     19%   
 
1 See discussion of segment reporting in Note 21 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Government Segment revenue for 2011 increased $47.1 million, or 25% over 2010, of which $27 million came from the Trident acquisition. For 2010, Government Segment revenue

increased 8%, all of which was organic, reflecting an increase in services and a decline in systems revenue. Since 2006 we have been one of six vendors selected by the U.S. Army to provide

secure wireless communication solutions under a five-year Worldwide Satellite Systems ("WWSS") contract vehicle, with a maximum value of up to $5 billion for the six vendors. The WWSS

contract vehicle was extended to July 2013 and is expected to continue to contribute significant government systems sales through 2013. Since 2006, we have received funded orders totaling

over $500 million and at December 31, 2011 we have over $800 million unfunded open orders under this contract vehicle. The Company's Government Segment has been selected for

participation as a prime or sub-contractor to provide satellite-based technology under several other contract vehicles. Our overall Government Segment gross profit increased $17.9 million of

which $8.4 million was from the Trident acquisition.

Government Services Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

Government services revenue primarily consists of professional communications engineering and field support, cyber security training, program management, help desk outsource,

network design and management for government agencies, as well as operation of teleport (fixed satellite ground terminal) facilities for data connectivity via satellite, including resale of

satellite airtime. Systems maintenance fees are usually collected in advance and recognized ratably over the contractual maintenance periods. Government services revenue increased $35.9

million, or 38% in 2011 over 2010 as a result of new and expanded-scope contracts for field support and maintenance, growth in cyber-security training, professional services, and satellite

airtime services using our teleport facilities. Government services revenue increased $31.1 million, or 50% in 2010 over 2009. The increases in 2010 were generated as a result of the revenue

contributions from the Solvern and Sidereal acquisitions in late 2009, as well as by new and expanded-scope contracts for satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and field

support.

Direct cost of government service revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel incurred in delivering these services, as well as satellite space segment purchased for resale.

These costs increased as a result of the increased volume of service in all three years.

Gross profit from government services increased $12.4 million, or 46% in 2011 over 2010 due mainly to the increase in sales volume including a contribution from Trident. Gross profit

from government services increased $13.4 million, about double 2009's services gross profit. Higher gross profit in 2010 over 2009 was realized from volume increases in professional services,

including from businesses acquired in late 2009, as well as higher satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and new and expanded-scope contracts for field support and

maintenance.

Government Systems Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of information processing and communication systems, primarily deployable satellite-

based and line-of-sight deployable systems, and integration of these systems into customer networks. These are largely variations on our SwiftLink products, which are lightweight, secure,

deployable communication kits, sold mainly to units of the U.S. Departments of Defense and other federal agencies. For 2011, government systems sales increased $11.2 million, or 12% over

2010 reflecting $24 million of sales of our electronic parts and materials from the acquired Trident operations offsetting lower sales volume of our SwiftLink and other deployable

communications, which was affected by federal government budget funding delays, and lower volume of pass-through sales. Government systems sales decreased $16.8 million, or 15% in

2010 compared to 2009, reflecting changes in sales volume of our SwiftLink and deployable communications systems due to lower volume of sales due to federal budget pressures on defense

vendors and the timing of government project funding.

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of purchased system components, compensation and benefits, the costs of third-party contractors, and travel. These costs have varied

over the three years presented as a direct result of changes in volume. These equipment and third-party costs are variable for our various types of products, and margins may fluctuate between

periods based on pricing and product mix.

Our government systems gross profit increased $5.5 million, or 57% in 2011 over 2010 due mainly to the addition of the acquired Trident operations. Government systems gross profit

was down $9.5 million, or 50% in 2010 over 2009 due to lower volume and a proportion of lower margin equipment pass-through sales.
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Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expense:
 

         

2011 vs.
2010      

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011   2010   $    %   2009   $    %  
Research and development expense   $ 37.1   $ 30.1   $ 7.0     23%  $ 22.3   $ 7.8     35% 
Percent of revenue    9%   8%      7%    

Our R&D expense consists of compensation, benefits, and a proportionate share of facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing software products are expensed prior to

establishing technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software products when a detailed program design is completed. We incur research and development costs

to enhance existing packaged software products as well as to create new software products including software hosted in network operations centers. These costs primarily include compensation

and benefits as well as costs associated with using third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are incurred until technological feasibility has been reached and

we believe that capitalized costs will be recoverable, upon which we capitalize and amortize them over the product's expected life.

We incur R&D expense for software mainly used by commercial network operators and government customers. Throughout the reporting periods our research and development was

primarily focused on wireless location-based infrastructure, middleware, and applications including navigation, people-locator, cellular and Voice over IP E9-1-1 and Next Generation 9-1-1,

text messaging deliverables and highly reliable tactical communication solutions. We continually assess our spending on R&D to ensure resources are focused on technology that is expected to

achieve the highest level of success.

Research and development expense increased $7.0 million, or 23% in 2011 from 2010 and increased $7.8 million, or 35% in 2010 from 2009, primarily as a result of increased

expenditures to improve location-based application and 9-1-1 software, tactical and cellular communication solutions, including the deliverables of and application businesses acquired in 2009.

Our research and development expenditures and acquisitions have yielded a portfolio of more than 200 patents, and more than 300 patent applications are pending, primarily for wireless

messaging and location technology. We believe that the intellectual property represented by these patents is a valuable asset that will contribute positively to our results of operations in 2012

and beyond.

Sales and Marketing Expense:
 

         

2011 vs.
2010      

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011   2010   $    %   2009   $    %  
Sales and marketing expense   $ 29.4   $ 23.9   $ 5.5     23%  $ 16.0   $ 7.9     49% 
Percent of revenue    7%   6%      5%    

Our sales and marketing expenses include fixed and variable compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel costs, advertising and public relations costs as well as a proportionate

share of facility-related costs which are expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements and attending and sponsoring industry conferences including our annual

SwiftLink Users Forum. We sell our solutions through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. We have also historically leveraged our relationships with original equipment

manufacturers to market our software products to wireless carrier customers. We sell our products and services to agencies and departments of the U.S. Government primarily through direct

sales professionals. Sales and marketing costs increased $5.5 million, or 23% in 2011 over 2010 and increased $7.9 million, or 49% in 2010 compared to 2009 due to additions of direct sales

and marketing personnel, expanded participation in key trade events, and the incremental $2 million of costs associated with the Trident operations acquired in 2011. Increased expense in 2010

over 2009 mainly reflects support of businesses acquired in late 2009.
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General and Administrative Expense:
 

         

2011 vs.
2010      

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011   2010   $    %   2009   $    %  
General and administrative expense   $ 46.2   $ 37.2   $ 9.0     24%  $ 35.4   $ 1.8     5% 
Percent of revenue    11%   10%      12%    

General and administrative expense primarily represents management, finance, legal (including intellectual property management), human resources and internal information system

functions. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional fees, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as incurred. General and

administrative expenses increased $9.0 million, or 24% in 2011 over 2010 due to $4.8 million of incremental costs associated with the Trident operations, legal and professional costs

associated with the protection and monetization of intellectual property, and higher variable compensation cost. The increase of $1.8 million, or 5% in 2010 over 2009 includes increased costs

to support our 2009 acquired businesses, as well as investments for process control, legal and professional costs associated with protection and monetization of intellectual property, offset by

lower expenses for variable compensation expense and the absence in 2010 of $3 million of fees and expenses incurred in 2009 in connection with closing acquisitions.

Depreciation and Amortization of Property and Equipment:
 

           

2011 vs.
2010       

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %   2009    $    %  
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment   $ 12.1    $ 9.7    $ 2.4     25%  $ 6.0    $ 3.7     62% 
Average gross cost of property and equipment   $ 104.6    $ 81.9    $ 22.7     28%  $ 60.7    $ 21.2     35% 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated with our investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment,

software, furniture and fixtures, and leasehold improvements, as well as amortization of capitalized software developed for internal use, including hosted applications. We compute depreciation

and amortization using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally five years for furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three to seven years for

other types of assets including computers, software, and telephone equipment. Depreciation expense has increased year-over-year as a result of cumulative capital expenditures made over time.

Our depreciable asset base increased in 2011 as a result of additions to property and equipment through the Trident acquisition and about $26 million of capital spending. Our depreciable asset

base increased in 2010 primarily as a result of about $28 million of capital spending. In 2009, our depreciable asset base increased primarily as a result of organic capital spending of about $10

million and property and equipment acquired with our four 2009 business acquisitions.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets:
 

           

2011 vs.
2010       

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %   2009    $    %  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets   $ 5.5    $ 4.7    $ 0.8     17%  $ 0.9    $ 3.8     422% 

The amortization of acquired intangible assets relates to our 2011 acquisition of the Trident operations, the 2009 LocationLogic, Networks In Motion, Solvern, and Sidereal acquisitions

and the 2004 Kivera acquisition. These assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of between two and nineteen years. The expense in 2011 increased $0.8 million due to the

additional amortization of the customer lists and technology acquired with Trident. The expense recognized in 2010 represents a full year of amortization of customer lists, customer

relationships, coursework, and patents acquired during 2009, while the 2009 expense is includes partial year of such expense.
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Patent-Related Gains, Net of Expenses:
 

           

2011 vs.
2010        

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %    2009    $    %  
Patent-related gains, net of expenses   $ —    $ —    $ —     —    $ 15.7    $ (15.7)    (100%) 

In December 2009, the company reached a settlement of patent litigation under which Sybase paid TCS $23 million in January 2010 to license its patents related to cell phone carrier

messaging technology. We incurred $7.3 million in legal and other expenses related to the settlement, yielding a net of $15.7 million to us.

Interest Expense:
 

           

2011 vs.
2010       

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %   2009    $    %  
Interest expense incurred on bank and other notes payable   $ 1.9    $ 4.0    $ (2.1)    (53%)  $ 0.7    $ 3.3     471% 
Interest expense incurred on 4.5% convertible notes financing    4.7     4.6     0.1     2%   0.6     4.0     667% 
Interest expense incurred on capital lease obligations    0.9     0.8     0.1     13%   0.4     0.4     100% 
Amortization of deferred financing fees    0.8     0.8     —     —    0.4     0.4     100% 
Less: capitalized interest    (0.2)    (0.2)    —     —    (0.1)    (0.1)    100% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

     
 

    
 

  

Total Interest and financing expense   $ 8.1    $ 10.0    $ (1.9)    (19%)  $ 2.0    $ 8.0     400% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

     

 

    

 

  

Interest expense is incurred under our bank and other notes payable, convertible notes financing, and capital lease obligations. Financing expense reflects amortization of deferred up-

front financing expenditures at the time of contracting for financing arrangements, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility. Our interest and financing

expense was lower in 2011 than 2010 mainly due to $19 million of debt principal reduction, including the final $10 million of payments on the NIM acquisition notes and reduced average bank

debt principal. Our interest and financing expense increased in 2010 and 2009 as a result of borrowings mainly for 2009 acquisitions.

Interest on our bank term loan is at 0.5% plus the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) the bank's prime rate, or an effective rate of 4.5% in 2011. Interest on our capital leases is primarily

at stated rates averaging about 6%. Interest on our line of credit borrowing is at the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) the bank's prime rate. Interest and fees on our line of credit in 2011,

2010, and 2009 was de minimis. Further details of our bank facility are provided under "Liquidity and Capital Resources."

In November 2009, the Company issued $103.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014. Interest on the notes is payable semiannually on

November 1 and May 1 of each year, beginning May 1, 2010. The notes will mature on November 1, 2014, unless previously converted in accordance with their terms. The notes are TCS's

senior unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of its present and future senior unsecured debt and senior to any future subordinated debt. The notes are structurally subordinate to

all present and future debt and other obligations of TCS's subsidiaries and will be effectively subordinate to all of TCS's present and future secured debt to the extent of the collateral securing

that debt. The notes are not redeemable by TCS prior to the maturity date.

In December 2009, we issued $40 million in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition of NIM. Interest on the NIM promissory notes was simple interest at

6%, and the notes were paid in full in three installments: $30 million paid December 15, 2010, $5 million paid on June 15, 2011, and the final installment of $5 million was paid on

December 15, 2011.

Our capital lease obligations include interest at various amounts depending on the lease arrangement. Our interest under capital leases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease

obligations in each year, and the interest under those leases, has remained relatively constant since 2007. The interest cost of capital lease financings increased over period reported due to

additional funding.
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Other Income (Expense), Net
 

           

2011 vs.
2010       

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %   2009    $    %  
Foreign currency translation/ transaction (loss) gain   $ (0.1)   $ —    $ (0.1)    NM   $ —    $ —     NM  
Miscellaneous other (expense) income    (0.3)    1.6     (1.9)    (119%)   0.3     1.3     433% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

     
 

    
 

  

Total Other income (expense), net   $ (0.4)   $ 1.6     (2.0)    (125%)  $ 0.3     1.3     433% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

     

 

    

 

  

(NM = Not meaningful)

Other income (expense), net, includes adjustments to the estimated payments under earnout arrangements that were part of the consideration for two 2009 acquisitions, as well as interest

income, realized gain or loss on disposals of property and equipment, realized gain or loss on investment accounts and foreign currency transaction gain or loss, which is dependent on

exchange rate fluctuations. Other income (expense), net also includes the effects of foreign currency revaluation on our cash, receivables, and deferred revenues that are stated in currencies

other than U.S dollars.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the difference between the

financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted marginal tax rate. Upon the adoption of ASC 740 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company's

uncertain tax positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include interest and penalties and increased to $3.3 million as of December 31,

2011. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by reducing the value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on

any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for 2011 and the

consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12

months. The Company files income tax returns in U.S. and various state and foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2011, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back

to 1999, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards.

ASC 740 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of the net

deferred tax asset will not be realized. This process requires the Company's management to make assessments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. The Company

records valuation allowances on deferred tax assets if determined it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Additionally, the Company establishes reserves for uncertain tax

positions based upon our judgment regarding potential future challenges to those positions. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law,

significant changes in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each

year's liability by taxing authorities. These changes could have a significant impact on the Company's financial position.

Deferred tax assets consist primarily of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as well as deductible temporary differences. Prior to 2008, the Company provided a full valuation

allowance for federal and state deferred tax assets based on management's evaluation that the Company's ability to realize such assets did not meet the criteria of "more likely than not". The

Company has continuously evaluated additional facts representing positive and negative evidence in the determination of its ability to realize the deferred tax assets.

Net Income
 

           

2011 vs.
2010       

2010 vs.
2009  

($ in millions)   2011    2010    $    %   2009    $    %  
Net income   $ 7.0    $ 15.9    $ (8.9)    (56%)  $ 28.3    $ (12.4)    (44%) 
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For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company's higher revenue and gross profit were offset by higher non-cash charges, research and development, and selling, and general and

administrative expenses and other factors discussed above. The impact on 2010 net income from Company's higher revenue and gross profit was offset by the absence of the effect the 2009

one-time gain of $15.7 million net from the sale of a patent, by an increase in interest expense as a result of 2009 borrowings, and by an increase in operating expenses and depreciation and

amortization expenses, primarily as a result of the 2009 acquisitions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow:
 
($ in millions)   2011    2010    2009  
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in):       

Net income   $ 7.0    $ 15.9    $ 28.3  
Add back non-cash charges    41.4     34.9     15.8  
Deferred tax provision (benefit)    4.4     7.3     16.5  
Tax benefit from stock compensation plan    (4.7)    —     —  
Net changes in working capital    (16.4)    15.3     (6.3) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Net operating activities    31.7     73.4     54.3  
Investing activities:       
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (16.1)    —     (148.2) 
Proceeds (purchases) of marketable securities, net    16.1     (36.7)    —  
Earnout payments related to 2009 acquisition    (3.2)    —     —  
Purchases of property and equipment    (26.4)    (28.3)    (10.1) 
Capital purchases funded through leases    5.3     9.0     7.6  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Purchases of property and equipment, excluding assets funded by leasing    (21.1)    (19.3)    (2.5) 
Capitalized development costs of software for sale to customers    (2.4)    (5.7)    (1.0) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Net investing activities    (26.7)    (61.7)    (151.7) 
Financing activities:       
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations    (25.0)    (41.6)    (30.0) 
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes financing    —     —     103.5  
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings    9.5     10.0     50.0  
Purchase of call options    —     —     (23.8) 
Sale of common stock warrants    —     —     12.9  
Proceeds from exercise of warrants    —     —     1.7  
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation plan    4.7     —     —  
Proceeds from exercise of employee options    1.5     3.7     5.5  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Net financing activities    (9.3)    (27.9)    119.8  
Net change in cash and cash equivalents   $ (4.3)   $ (16.2)   $ 22.4  

    

 

    

 

    

 

Days revenue outstanding in accounts receivable including unbilled receivables    71     74     88  

Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using cash generated by our operations, borrowings as described in "Financing

activities" below, capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases, and issuance of public equity. At December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately $84 million of total liquidity, including

cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and unused borrowing availability under the bank Line of Credit.

Sources and uses of cash: The Company's cash and cash equivalents balance (excluding marketable securities which management considers to be substantially the same as cash

equivalents) was approximately $40.9 million at December 31, 2011, a $4.3 million decrease from $45.2 million at December 31, 2010.

Operating activities: Cash generated by operations was $31.7 million in 2011 compared to $73.4 million in 2010. The decrease was driven by an increase in working capital. The increase

in 2011 working capital was mainly due to an increase in accounts receivable relating to the timing of revenue and customer payments under business agreement
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terms, as well as an increase in deferred project costs and other current assets and a decrease in a decrease in deferred revenue due to timing of percentage of completion projects. Cash from

operations for 2010 included the receipt of $15.7 million for a 2009 patent-related gain, and a reduction in working capital. Cash from operating profits during 2011, 2010, and 2009 has been

largely sheltered from income taxes due to the use of loss carry-forwards generated in prior years.

Investing activities: In 2011, $17.2 million, including $1.1 million of cash acquired, was used for the acquisition of Trident. During the year ended 2011, the Company received net $16.1

million from the sale and maturity of marketable securities. Also, during the first quarter of 2011, the Company made a $3.2 million earnout payment related to a 2009 acquisition. During the

year ended 2010, the Company invested $36.7 million in marketable securities. During 2009, cash of $148.2 million, net of cash acquired, was used for the completion of the acquisitions of

LocationLogic, Solvern, Sidereal and NIM. Fixed asset additions not funded with capital lease financing in 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $21.1, $19.3, and $2.5 million, respectively. Investments

made in the development of carrier software for sale to customers which had reached the stage of development calling for capitalization was approximately $2.4 million in 2011, $5.7 million in

2010, and $1 million in 2009, reflecting the scope and mix of software projects.

Financing activities: Financing activities for 2011 included $25 million of debt principal payments, including the final $10 million on the NIM promissory notes and $15 million towards

the term loan with the our commercial bank and our leasing arrangements partly offset by $9.5 million of funding from our line of credit. Financing activities for 2010 included the draw of $10

million of the remaining funds that were available under our $40 million 2009 Term Loan agreement with our commercial banks, and capital leasing, offset by debt principal payments. The

Company paid $30 million on notes payable to the sellers of NIM in 2010. Fixed asset purchases funded through capital leases were $5.3 million, $9.0 million and $7.6 million, respectively,

for 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Capital Resources: We have a $35 million revolving Line of Credit with our principal bank through June 2012 with borrowing available at the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per

annum at December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, $9.5 million was outstanding under our Line of Credit and we had approximately $24 million of unused borrowing availability.

Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based principally on accounts receivable levels and working capital ratio, each as defined in the Line of Credit agreement. The Line of Credit

available is also reduced by the amount of cash management services sublimit, which was $1.6 million December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2010, we had no borrowings under our Line of

Credit and had approximately $33 million of unused borrowing availability.

The Line of Credit includes three sub-facilities: (i) a letter of credit sub-facility pursuant to which the bank may issue letters of credit, (ii) a foreign exchange sub-facility pursuant to

which the Company may purchase foreign currency from the bank, and (iii) a cash management sub-facility pursuant to which the bank may provide cash management services (which may

include, among others, merchant services, direct deposit of payroll, business credit cards and check cashing services) and in connection therewith make loans and extend credit to the Company.

The principal amount outstanding under the Line of Credit accrues interest at a floating per annum rate equal to the rate which is the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) the bank's most recently

announced "prime rate," even if it is not the Interest Rate. The principal amount outstanding under the Line of Credit is payable either prior to or on the maturity date and interest on the Line of

Credit is payable monthly.

The current bank Loan Agreement is secured by substantially all of the Company's tangible and intangible assets. The principal amount outstanding under the Term Loan accrues interest

at the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) a floating per annum rate equal to one-half of one percentage point (0.5%) above the Interest Rate (3.25% at December 31, 2011). The principal

amount outstanding under the Term Loan is payable in sixty equal monthly installments of principal of $0.6 million beginning January 2010 through June 2014 plus an additional forty five

equal monthly installments of principal of $0.2 million beginning October 2010 through June 2014. Interest is payable on a monthly basis. Funds from the initial $30 million draw on the Term

Loan were used primarily to retire a September 2009 term loan and funds from the additional $10 million drawn in September 2010 were used for general corporate purposes.

The Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary events of default. Availability under the Line of Credit is subject to certain conditions, including

the continued accuracy of the Company's representations and warranties. The Loan Agreement also contains subjective covenants that requires (i) no material impairment in the perfection or

priority of the bank's lien in the collateral of the Loan Agreement, (ii) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company, or (iii) no

material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement also
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contains covenants requiring the Company to maintain a minimum adjusted quick ratio and a fixed charge coverage ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others,

restrictions on the Company's ability to dispose part of their business or property; to change their business, liquidate or enter into certain extraordinary transactions; to merge, consolidate or

acquire stock or property of another entity; to incur indebtedness; to encumber their property; to pay dividends or other distributions or enter into material transactions with an affiliate of the

Company. As of December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with the covenants related to the Loan Agreement.

Our Line of Credit arrangement is through June 2012, which we expect to extend on similar terms, and we have borrowing capacity available to us under a capital lease facility. Our

convertible debt matures in December 2014. We may raise capital in the public markets as a means to meet our capital needs and to invest in our business, or raise capital in private

transactions. We can offer no assurances that we will be able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at all.

On November 10, 2009, the Company sold $103.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5% Convertible Senior Notes (the "Notes") due 2014. The Notes are not registered and were

offered under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. Concurrent with the issuance of the Notes, we entered into convertible note hedge transactions and warrant transactions, also detailed

below, that are expected to reduce the potential dilution associated with the conversion of the Notes. Holders may convert the Notes at their option on any day prior to the close of business on

the second "scheduled trading day" (as defined in the Indenture) immediately preceding November 1, 2014. The conversion rate will initially be 96.637 shares of Class A common stock per

$1,000 principal amount of Notes, equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $10.35 per share of Class A common stock. The effect of the convertible note hedge and warrant

transactions, described below, is an increase in the effective conversion premium of the Notes to 60% above the November 10th closing price, to $12.74 per share.

The convertible note hedge transactions cover, subject to adjustments, 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock. Also, in connection with the sale of the Notes, the Company entered

into separate warrant transactions with certain counterparties (collectively, the "Warrant Dealers"). The Company sold to the Warrant Dealers the warrants to purchase in the aggregate

10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock, subject to adjustments, at an exercise price of $12.74 per share of Class A common stock.

The convertible note hedge and the warrant transactions are separate transactions, each entered into by the Company with the counterparties, which are not part of the terms of the Notes

and will not affect the holders' rights under the Notes. The cost of the convertible note hedge transactions to the Company was approximately $23.8 million, and has been accounted for as an

equity transaction in accordance with ASC 815-40, Contracts in Entity's own Equity. The Company received proceeds of approximately $13 million related to the sale of the warrants, which

has also been classified as equity as the warrants meet the classification criteria under ASC 815-40-25, in which the warrants and the convertible note hedge transactions require settlements in

shares and provide the Company with the choice of a net cash or common shares settlement. As the convertible note hedge and warrants are indexed to our common stock, we recognized them

in permanent equity in Additional paid-in capital, and will not recognize subsequent changes in fair value as long as the instruments remain classified as equity.

On December 15, 2009, the Company issued $40 million in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition of NIM. The promissory notes bear simple interest at 6%

and are due in three installments: $30 million paid in December 2010, $5 million on the 18 month anniversary of the closing, and $5 million on the 24 month anniversary of the closing. The

promissory notes were paid in full according to the terms.

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources including cash generated from operations as well as cash on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital,

and capital expenditure and debt service needs for the next twelve months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, we did not have any standby letters of credit outstanding. For 2009, we had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $1.6 million in support of

processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendor, and security for office space.
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Contractual Commitments

As of December 31, 2011, our most significant commitments consisted of term debt, non-cancelable operating leases, purchase obligations, and obligations under capital leases.

Contractual acquisition earnouts consist of contingent consideration included as part of the purchase price of certain acquisitions. We lease certain furniture and computer equipment under

capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Purchase obligations represent contracts for parts and services in connection with our government

satellite services and systems offerings. As of December 31, 2011 our commitments consisted of the following:
 

($ in millions)   

Within 12
 

Months    

1-3
 

Years    

3-5
 

Years    

More than
 

5 Years    Total  
4.5% Convertible notes obligation   $ 4.7    $ 112.8    $ —    $ —    $ 117.5  
Commercial bank debt    10.2     14.5     —     —     24.7  
Operating leases    5.9     8.4     5.4     1.8     21.5  
Purchase obligations    19.3     0.2     —     —     19.5  
Capital lease obligations    6.6     7.5     0.9     —     15.0  
Contractual acquisition earnouts    3.6     —     —     —     3.6  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total contractual commitments   $ 50.3     143.4    $ 6.3    $ 1.8    $ 201.8  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The preceding table does not reflect unrecognized tax benefits as of year ended 2011 of $3.3 million as the Company is unable to estimate the timing of related future payments. The

Company does anticipate the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase in the next twelve months, see Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer own a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a member. The financial and many other terms of

the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at the sole discretion of our

Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not

favorable to us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along

with alternatives that are or may become available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive lease at this new development site.

Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed above under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources," we have a $35 million line of credit. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse movement (increase) in the prime rate would have

increased our interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 by approximately $0.4 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of

operations or cash flows.

At December 31, 2011, we had $40.9 million of cash and cash equivalents and $19.2 million of marketable securities, or a total of $60.1 million. Cash and cash equivalents consisted of

demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. Marketable securities consisted of corporate bonds, mortgage and asset backed securities, and agency bonds, see

Note 5. However, these investments have short maturities mitigating their sensitivity to interest rates. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse movement (decrease) in interest rates would have

decreased our net income for 2011 by approximately $0.6 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Foreign Currency Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we generated $33.3 million of revenue outside the U.S. A majority of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dollars

and a change in exchange rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately $0.4 million of billed and $0.2

million unbilled accounts receivable that would expose us to foreign currency exchange risk. During 2011, our average receivables and deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange

risk were $1.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively. We recorded an immaterial amount of transaction income on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred revenue for the year

ended December 31, 2011.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. There are inherent limitations to the

effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly,

even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of

the Exchange Act) were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, including

our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control

— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011. Management reviewed the results of their assessment with our Audit Committee. The effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in Item 9A of

this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2011, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to

materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems Inc. internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). TeleCommunication Systems Inc.'s management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods

are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the COSO

criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication

Systems, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2011 of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated March 7, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/    Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 7, 2012
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Part III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned "Board of Directors" and "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

and Management" to be included in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on June 14, 2012 (the "Proxy

Statement").

The Company's Code of Ethics and Whistleblower Procedures may be found at http://www1.telecomsys.com/investor_info/corp_governance.cfm.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned "Board of Directors" and "Executive Compensation" to be included in the

Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" to be

included in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "General Information

Concerning the Board of Directors" to be included in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned "Principal Accountant Fees and Services" to be included in the Proxy

Statement.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule required by Item 15 is included in Exhibit 12 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exhibits

The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of

income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. Our audit also included the financial statement schedule 12.1, listed in the index

as Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and

schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. at December 31,

2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), TeleCommunication System Inc.'s internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated March 7, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland

March 7, 2012
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

 

   

December 31,
2011   

December 31,
2010  

Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,898   $ 45,220  
Marketable securities    19,232    36,307  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $368 in 2011 and $447 in 2010    64,716    52,073  
Unbilled receivables    31,247    32,358  
Inventory    7,143    5,440  
Deferred tax assets    8,602    8,179  
Deferred project costs and other current assets    16,158    8,961  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    187,996    188,538  
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization of $59,736 in 2011 and $56,696 in 2010    53,506    39,337  
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of

$30,012 in 2011 and $19,241 in 2010    31,151    39,427  
Acquired intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of

$11,726 in 2011 and $6,190 in 2010    31,675    28,264  
Goodwill    176,477    159,143  
Other assets    8,834    8,100  

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $ 489,639   $ 462,809  
    

 

   

 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable and accrued expenses   $ 44,877   $ 42,833  
Accrued payroll and related liabilities    16,990    13,570  
Deferred revenue    14,358    18,063  
Current portion of bank borrowings and capital lease obligations    24,761    24,519  

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    100,986    98,985  
Notes payable and capital lease obligations, less current portion    125,491    135,981  
Deferred tax liabilities    7,017    8,382  
Other liabilities    5,396    3,916  
Stockholders' equity:    

Class A Common Stock; $0.01 par value:    
Authorized shares — 225,000,000; issued and outstanding shares of 51,998,089 in 2011 and 47,749,762 in 2010    521    478  

Class B Common Stock; $0.01 par value:    
Authorized shares — 75,000,000; issued and outstanding shares of 5,347,769 in 2011 and 5,741,334 in 2010    53    57  

Additional paid-in capital    325,744    297,585  
Accumulated other comprehensive income    32    30  
Accumulated deficit    (75,601)   (82,605) 

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders' equity    250,749    215,545  
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity   $ 489,639   $ 462,809  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

 
   Year Ended December 31,  

   2011   2010   2009  
Revenue    

Services   $ 303,921   $ 262,279   $ 151,944  
Systems    121,491    126,524    148,143  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total revenue    425,412    388,803    300,087  
Direct costs of revenue     

Direct cost of services revenue    170,977    152,227    84,122  
Direct cost of systems revenue    103,198    98,613    102,111  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total direct cost of revenue    274,175    250,840    186,233  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Services gross profit    132,944    110,052    67,822  
Systems gross profit    18,293    27,911    46,032  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total gross profit    151,237    137,963    113,854  
Operating expenses     

Research and development expense    37,098    30,074    22,351  
Sales and marketing expense    29,394    23,880    15,967  
General and administrative expense    46,218    37,175    35,387  
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment    12,135    9,758    6,035  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets    5,535    4,664    870  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    130,380    105,551    80,610  
Patent-related gains, net of expenses    —    —    15,700  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Income from operations    20,857    32,412    48,944  
Interest expense    (7,283)   (9,225)   (1,794) 
Amortization of deferred financing fees    (798)   (750)   (401) 
Other income (expense), net    (360)   1,589    315  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Income before income taxes    12,416    24,026    47,064  
Provision for income taxes    (5,412)   (8,147)   (18,795) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 7,004   $ 15,879   $ 28,269  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Net income per share-basic   $ 0.12   $ 0.30   $ 0.59  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Net income per share-diluted   $ 0.12   $ 0.28   $ 0.53  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic    56,722    53,008    47,623  
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted    58,581    56,032    53,946  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

 

  

Class A
 

Common
 

Stock   

Class B
 

Common
 

Stock   

Additional
 

Paid-In
 

Capital   

Accumulated
 

Other
 

Comprehensive
 

Income (Loss)   

Accumulated
 

Deficit   Total  
Balance at January 1, 2009  $ 385   $ 69   $ 240,559   $ 12   $ (126,753)  $114,272  
Options exercised for the purchase of 1,361,674 shares of Class A Common Stock   14    —    4,952    —    —    4,966  
Issuance of 88,096 shares of Class A Common Stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan   1    —    578    —    —    579  
Exercise of warrants to purchase 700,002 shares of Class A Common Stock   7    —    1,673    —    —    1,680  
Issuance of 1,393,715 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition of the assets of

LocationLogic LLC   14    —    10,313    —    —    10,327  
Issuance of 1,008,603 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition of Solvern

Innovations, Inc.   10    —    9,098    —    —    9,108  
Issuance of 244,200 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition of the assets of

Sidereal Solutions, Inc.   2    —    1,963    —    —    1,965  
Issuance of 2,236,258 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition of Networks In

Motion, Inc   22    —    19,545    —    —    19,567  
Purchase of call spread options   —    —    (23,775)   —    —    (23,775) 
Sale of common stock warrants   —    —    12,959    —    —    12,959  
Conversion of 600,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to Class A Common Stock   6    (6)   —    —    —    —  
Issuance of Restricted Class A Common Stock   1    —    9    —    —    10  
Stock-based compensation expense   —    —    5,859    —    —    5,859  
Net income for 2009   —    —    —    —    28,269    28,269  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance at December 31, 2009  $ 462   $ 63   $ 283,733   $ 12   $ (98,484)  $185,786  
Options exercised for the purchase of 722,368 shares of Class A Common Stock   7    —    2,379    —    —    2,386  
Issuance of 308,790 shares of Class A Common Stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan   3    —    1,274    —    —    1,277  
Issuance of 26,579 Restricted Class A Common Stock   —    —    27    —    —    27  
Conversion of 535,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to Class A Common Stock   6    (6)   —    —    —    —  
Stock-based compensation expense   —    —    10,172    —    —    10,172  
Net unrealized gain on securities and other   —    —    —    18    —    18  
Net income for 2010   —    —    —    —    15,879    15,879  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance at December 31, 2010  $ 478   $ 57   $ 297,585   $ 30   $ (82,605)  $215,545  
Issuance of 3,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition of the Trident

Space & Defense, LLC   30    —    12,240    —    —    12,270  
Options exercised for the purchase of 488,337 shares of Class A Common Stock   5    —    422    —    —    427  
Issuance of 311,581 shares of Class A Common Stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan   3    —    1,079    —    —    1,082  
Issuance of 54,844 Restricted Class A Common Stock   1    —    —    —    —    1  
Conversion of 393,565 shares of Class B Common Stock to Class A Common Stock   4    (4)   —    —    —    —  
Stock-based compensation expense   —    —    9,672    —    —    9,672  
Excess tax benefit from share-based payments arrangements   —    —    4,746    —    —    4,746  
Net unrealized gain on securities and other   —    —    —    2    —    2  
Net income for 2011   —    —    —    —    7,004    7,004  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance at December 31, 2011  $ 521   $ 53   $ 325,744   $ 32   $ (75,601)  $250,749  
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)

 
   Year Ended December 31  

Operating activities:   2011   2010   2009  
Net income   $ 7,004   $ 15,879   $ 28,269  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment    12,135    9,758    6,035  
Amortization of capitalized software development costs    10,771    9,303    3,069  
Stock based compensation expense    9,672    10,172    5,859  
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements    (4,746)   —    —  
Deferred tax provision    4,428    7,291    16,496  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets    5,535    4,664    870  
Amortization of investment premiums and accretion of discounts, net    931    361    —  
Impairment of marketable securities, capitalized software and other assets    —    225    811  
Amortization of deferred financing fees    798    750    401  
Other non-cash adjustments    1,539    (311)   (23) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     

Accounts receivable, net    (10,258)   13,472    9,623  
Unbilled receivables    1,111    (8,790)   2,681  
Inventory    (1,703)   3,891    (6,616) 
Deferred project costs and other current assets    (2,251)   19,093    (18,222) 
Other assets    3,882    (149)   (6,986) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    779    (12,665)   7,914  
Accrued payroll and related liabilities    2,804    (6,351)   (2,065) 
Deferred revenue    (5,893)   8,125    5,144  
Other liabilities    (4,890)   (1,345)   1,003  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Subtotal — Changes in operating assets and liabilities    (16,419)   15,281    (7,524) 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net cash provided by operating activities    31,648    73,373    54,263  
Investing activities:     
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (16,066)   —    (148,239) 
Earnout payment related to 2009 acquisition    (3,213)   —    —  
Purchases of marketable securities    (24,104)   (38,850)   —  
Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable securities    40,250    2,199    —  
Purchases of property and equipment    (21,090)   (19,329)   (2,494) 
Capitalized software development costs    (2,478)   (5,683)   (981) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (26,701)   (61,663)   (151,714) 
Financing activities:     
Payments on notes payable and capital lease obligations    (25,024)   (41,579)   (30,002) 
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt offering    —    —    103,500  
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings    9,500    10,000    50,000  
Purchase of call options    —    —    (23,775) 
Sale of common stock warrants    —    —    12,959  
Proceeds from exercise of warrants    —    —    1,673  
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements    4,746    —    —  
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options and sale of stock    1,509    3,663    5,545  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (9,269)   (27,916)   119,900  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net (decrease) increase in cash    (4,322)   (16,206)   22,449  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period    45,220    61,426    38,977  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period   $ 40,898   $ 45,220   $ 61,426  
    

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

1.    Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and delivers highly reliable and secure wireless communication technology. While we manage and have historically reported two business

segments, digital communication technology is converging, so that engineers from either segment are increasingly collaborating to address solution needs for customers of the other segment.

We report two operating segments, Commercial (45% of 2011 revenue) and Government (55% of 2011 revenue).

Commercial Segment:    Our commercial services and systems enable wireless carriers to deliver location-based information, internet content, and short text messages to and from

wireless phones. Our hosted and managed services include mobile location-based applications including turn-by-turn navigation, E9-1-1 call routing; that is, customers use our

software functionality through connections to and from network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or

other metrics. Customers include wireless carrier network operators, Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") service providers, state and local governments deploying Next

Generation 9-1-1 technology, and automotive industry suppliers. We earn carrier software-based revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees, and

maintenance fees, pricing for which is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier.

Government Segment:    We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network communication systems, including our SwiftLink deployable systems which integrate

high speed, satellite, and Internet Protocol ("IP") technology, with secure Government-approved cryptologic devices. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities,

resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment), provide professional services including field support of our systems, and cyber security training and services to the

U.S. Department of Defense and other federal, state and local government agencies, and foreign customers. We have delivered more than 3,000 deployable communication

systems for use in security, defense, and other secure communication applications around the world. We are one of six prime contractors on the U.S. Army's Worldwide Satellite

Systems ("WWSS") contract vehicle, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in procurements through mid-2013.

Use of Estimates.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation.  The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.  Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash equivalents are

reported at fair value, which approximates cost.

Marketable Securities.  The Company's marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale. The Company's primary objectives when investing are to preserve principal, maintain

liquidity, and obtain higher yield. The Company's intent is not specifically to invest and hold securities with longer term maturities. The Company has the ability and intent, if necessary, to

liquidate any of these investments in order to meet the Company's operating needs within the next twelve months. The securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price

with net unrealized gains and losses in stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. If the Company determines that a decline in fair value of the

marketable securities is other than temporary, a realized loss would be recognized in earnings. Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific identification method and are

recognized in earnings. We recorded immaterial net gains on the sale and maturity of marketable securities for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 in Other income (expense), net.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable.  Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to

determine the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance

by reviewing the status of significant past-due receivables and by
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt trends. Changes to our allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and

administrative expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Our credit and collection policies and the financial strength of our customers are critical to us in maintaining

a relatively small amount of write-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements with our customers. Receivables that are ultimately deemed

uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventory.  We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our deployable communications systems. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is

based on the weighted average method. The cost basis for finished units includes manufacturing cost.

Property and Equipment.  Property and equipment represents costs associated with our investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture

and fixtures, leasehold improvements, as well as capitalized software developed for internal use, including hosted applications. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally five years for furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements

and three to seven years for other types of assets including computers, software, and telephone equipment.

Goodwill.  We assess goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or sooner should there be an indicator of impairment. We periodically analyze whether there are

any indicators of impairment, such as a sustained, significant decline in the Company's stock price and market capitalization, a decline in the Company's expected future cash flows, a

significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate, unanticipated competition, and/or slower than expected growth rate, among others factors. The valuation model involves a

significant amount of judgment in determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. There is also a degree of uncertainty associated with these judgments, estimates and key assumptions.

If we cannot accurately predict the amount and timing of any of these factors or other business risks, we may be required to record a significant non-cash charge in our financial statements

during the period in which any impairment is determined, negatively impacting our results of operations.

We performed our annual goodwill impairment testing during the fourth quarter of 2011. For all units, we used a discounted cash flow analysis. In addition, a market approach was also

used where market comparables were available. Where multiple approaches were used, the Company may weight the results from different methods to estimate the reporting unit's fair value.

The discounted cash flow models are based on the Company's most recent long-range forecast and, for years beyond the forecast, the Company's estimates terminal value based on estimated

exit multiples ranging from four to just under seven times the final forecasted year earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. For the market comparable approaches, the

Company evaluated comparable company public trading values, using earnings and a sales multiples. We also used a recent market transaction to evaluate the fair value of one of our reporting

units.

At December 31, 2011, goodwill was $176,477. Our assessment of goodwill in the current reporting period indicated that the fair value of our reporting units exceeded their carrying

value.

Software Development Costs.  Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the proprietary technology acquired, has been recorded as capitalized software development

costs. We also capitalize software development costs after we establish technological feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software beginning on the date

when the software is available for general release.

Costs are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products, technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software

product is completed in the same software language as the product to be ultimately marketed, performs all the major functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial

customer testing. Technological feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed. Costs that are capitalized include direct labor and

other direct costs. These costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product's estimated useful life, between three and five years. Amortization is

also computed using the ratio that current revenue for the product

 

F-8



 

Table of Contents

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount computed

using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our policies to determine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given

period require us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market acceptance that we expect and our future revenue estimates for these

products change, the amount of amortization that we record may increase compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs was recorded as a cost of

revenue. The direct costs of services and systems included amortization of capitalized software developments costs of $6,901 and $3,870 in 2011, respectively, $6,741 and $2,562 in 2010,

respectively, and $306 and $2,763 in 2009, respectively.

Acquired technology is amortized over the product's estimated useful life based on the valuation procedures performed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using the

straight-line method or the revenue curve method, whichever is greater.

The Company capitalizes costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use when management commits to funding the project and the project completes the preliminary

project stage. Capitalization of such costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

Acquired Intangible Assets.  Our acquired intangible assets have useful lives of 2 to 19 years, including assets acquired in 2009 and 2011. We are amortizing these assets using the

straight-line method. We have not incurred costs to renew or extend the term of acquired intangible assets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.  Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of an asset or group of assets may not be fully recoverable.

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate

from these assets. If the assets are impaired, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the assets using the appropriate

valuation technique of market, income or cost approach. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair values, less estimated costs of disposal.

Deferred Compensation Plan.  The Company has a non-qualified deferred compensation arrangement to fund certain supplemental executive retirement and deferred income plans.

Under the terms of the arrangement, the participants may elect to defer the receipt of a portion of their compensation and each participant directs the manner in which their investments are

deemed invested. The funds are held by the Company in a rabbi trust which include fixed income funds, equity securities, and money market accounts, or other investments for which there is

an active quoted market, and are classified as trading securities. The funds are included in Other assets and the deferred compensation liability is included in Other long-term liabilities on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Other Comprehensive Income.  Other comprehensive income refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under GAAP are included as a component of shareholders' equity but are

excluded from net income. The Company's other comprehensive income consists of foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities classified

as available-for-sale.

The following table summarizes components of total comprehensive income at December 31:
 
   2011    2010    2009  
Net income   $ 7,004    $ 15,879    $ 28,269  
Other comprehensive income:       

Change in foreign currency translation    1     1     —  
Change in unrealized gains on marketable securities    1     17     —  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total comprehensive income   $ 7,006    $ 15,897    $ 28,269  
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Revenue Recognition.  Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2009-14 (ASC topic 985) "Certain Revenue Arrangements That

Include Software Elements" and the ASU 2009-13 (ASC topic 605) "Revenue Recognition — Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements" on a prospective basis for any contract entered into

or significantly modified after January 1, 2011, the adoption of which did not have a material impact on the financial statements. The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following

criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable, and (iv) the fee is probable of collection.

Revenue is reported as described below:

Services Revenue.  Revenue from hosted and subscriber services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is recognized in the month earned. Maintenance fees are generally

collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period. Services revenue for consulting, training and the design, development, deployment, field support and maintenance of

communication systems is generated under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials contracts and cost plus

fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price service contracts are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing or

billing upon achieving certain specified milestones.

Systems Revenue.  We design, develop, and deploy custom communications products, components, and systems. Custom systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include

hardware, installation, integration, and product licenses, which are either incidental or provide essential functionality.

We allocate the fees in a multi-element arrangement to each element based on the relative fair value of each element, using vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE") of the fair value

of each of the elements, if available. VSOE is generally determined based on the price charged when an element is sold separately. In the absence of VSOE of fair value, the fee is allocated

among each element based on third-party evidence ("TPE") of fair value, which is determined based on competitor pricing for similar deliverables when sold separately. When the Company is

unable to establish fair value using VSOE or TPE, the Company uses estimated selling price ("ESP") to allocate value to each element. The objective of ESP is to determine the price at which

the Company would transact a sale if the product or service were sold separately. The Company determines ESP for deliverables by considering multiple factors including, but not limited to,

prices it charges for similar offerings, market conditions, competitive landscape, and pricing practices.

Fees from the development and implementation of custom systems are generally performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and

materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportional

performance method, measured either by total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor costs incurred compared to estimated total

direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing or billing upon

achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are recognized in their entirety at the date that it becomes probable of occurring. Revenue from hardware

sales to monthly subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue. The Company has contracts and purchase orders where revenue is recognized at the time products or services are

delivered, or when the product is shipped and the risk of the loss is transferred to the buyer, net of discounts.

Software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are recognized as revenue

when the four criteria described above are met. For multiple element arrangements that contain only software and software-related elements, we allocate the fees to each element based on the

VSOE of fair value of each element. Systems containing software licenses include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product to

date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related revenue.

When a customer is billed or we receive payment and we have not met all of the criteria for revenue recognition, the billed or paid amount is recorded as deferred revenue on the

Company's consolidated balance sheet. As the revenue recognition criteria are met, the deferred amounts are recognized as revenue. We defer direct project costs incurred in certain situations

as dictated by authoritative accounting literature. The Company classifies deferred revenue
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and deferred project costs on the consolidated balance sheet as either current or long-term depending on the expected product delivery dates or service coverage periods. Long-term deferred

revenue is included in other liabilities and long-term deferred project costs are included in other assets on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Under our contracts with the U.S. Government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense

Contract Audit Agency. We record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

Advertising Costs.  Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $128, $124, and $54, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Capitalized Interest.  Total interest incurred, including amortization of deferred financing fees, was $8,249, $10,178, and $2,216 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and

2009, respectively. Approximately $168, $203, and $21 of total interest incurred was capitalized as a component of software development costs during the year ended December 31, 2011,

2010, and 2009 respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation.  We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 18. Both the incentive stock option plan and the employee

stock purchase plan, are considered equity plans. The fair value of stock option grants are estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model and expensed on a straight-

line basis over the requisite service period of the options, which is generally three to five years. The employee stock purchase plan gives all employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our

Class A common stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value.

Research and Development Expense.  We incur research and development costs which are primarily comprised of compensation expenses for engineers engaged in the development

and enhancement of software and integrated system products. Research and development cost is expensed as incurred or accounted for as set forth in "Software Development Cost" above.

Income Taxes.  Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes as prescribed by ASC 740. Under this method,

deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

The Company recognizes the benefits of tax positions in the financial statements if such positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority and

satisfy the appropriate measurement criteria. If the recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is generally measured and recognized as the tax benefit having the highest likelihood, based on

the Company's judgment, of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. At December 31, 2011, we had

unrecognized tax benefits totaling approximately $3.3 million. The determination of these unrecognized amounts requires significant judgments and interpretation of complex tax laws.

Different judgments or interpretations could result in material changes to the amount of unrecognized tax benefits.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments.  The Company applies valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market prices), the income approach (present value of

future income or cash flows), and the cost approach (cost to replace the service capacity of an asset or replacement cost) and uses a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a brief description of those three levels:

Level 1:  Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in

active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3:  Observable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions.
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The Company's major categories of financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements, including cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities that are held as

available-for-sale, are measured on a recurring basis. Certain assets and liabilities, including long-lived assets, intangible assets and goodwill, are measured at fair value on a non-recurring

basis. Additional disclosures regarding our fair value measurements are included in Note 15.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.  In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2011-5 Topic 220 "Comprehensive Income." This guidance

updates the presentation of comprehensive income and eliminates the option of presenting the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders'

equity. It requires presentation of reclassification adjustments from Other comprehensive income to Net income on the face of the financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal

years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and early adoption is permitted. This guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows

or financial position. but will slightly change the Company's financial statement presentation.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12 "Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05". This guidance defers the presentation of reclassification adjustments out of accumulated Other comprehensive income

net on the face of the financial statement. This guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and early adoption is permitted. This guidance is

not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. It will however change the Company's financial statement presentation.

2.    Acquisitions

Effective January 31, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of the outstanding ownership units of Trident Space & Defense, LLC ("Trident".) The Trident acquisition was

accounted for using the acquisition method; accordingly, the total purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and assumed liabilities based on management's preliminary determination

of the fair values as of January 31, 2011.

The purchase price was $29,460, comprised of $17,190 paid in cash and 3.0 million Class A common shares valued at $12,270. The total purchase price was allocated based on the

estimated fair value of the acquired tangible and intangible assets and assumed liabilities, with the excess of the purchase price over the assets acquired and liabilities assumed being allocated

to goodwill. The weighted average amortization period for the acquired intangible assets is 9.6 years. The valuation has resulted in the recognition of $17,334 of goodwill, which will be

deductible for tax purposes.

Trident is headquartered in Torrance, CA and is a leading provider of engineering and electronics solutions for global space and defense markets. Trident adds engineering and design

depth, access to our government solution operations. The Company believes Trident will help expand the overall market reach of the combined entities. Most of Trident's business is from

international customers and the Company expects Trident's engineers to enable enhancements to TCS solutions for the U.S. military and access to U.S. space markets. Substantially all of the

Trident revenue stream is derived from the sale of high reliability component parts to the aerospace, military and industrial markets. Trident's operating results since the January 31 transaction

are included in the Government Segment and in the Company's consolidated financial statements. A pro forma statement of operations is not presented because the acquisition did not have a

significant impact on the results of operations or income per share for 2011.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition:
 
Cash   $ 1,124  
Accounts receivable    2,400  
Other current assets    5,637  
Deferred tax assets    779  
Property and equipment    89  
Acquired intangible assets    8,947  
Other long-term assets    5,413  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    (3,090) 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities    (616) 
Deferred revenue    (2,188) 
Other liabilities    (6,369) 

    
 

Subtotal    12,126  
Goodwill    17,334  

    
 

Net assets acquired   $ 29,460  
    

 

The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011 reflects this preliminary allocation. The Company is currently completing its analysis of the fair value of the identifiable

intangible assets, as well as consideration of the deferred tax assets acquired in the acquisition. The Company's analysis will be finalized in a timely manner, not to exceed 12 months from the

acquisition date.

During 2009, the Company completed four acquisitions. The combined purchase price for the LocationLogic, LLC, Solvern Innovations, Inc., and Sidereal Solutions, Inc. acquisitions

was $70.6 million, including cash and approximately 2.6 million of the Company's Class A common stock, as well as contingent consideration. In allocating the purchase price for these

acquisitions, based on estimated fair values, the Company recorded $48.9 million of goodwill, $21.1 million in intangibles assets and capitalized software development costs, and $0.6 million

in other net assets.

On December 15, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of Networks in Motion, Inc. ("NIM") for $110 million in cash, plus or minus customary working capital and excess cash

adjustments, approximately 2.2 million shares of Class A common stock, and a $40 million promissory note which was paid in full on December 15, 2011.

The final allocation of fair value of consideration for NIM, December 15, 2009, (in thousands) is:
 
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 1,691  
Accounts receivable    12,864  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    7,621  
Property and equipment    3,293  
Capitalized software development costs    34,405  
Other intangibles — customer relationships    20,138  
Other assets    147  
Accounts payable    (3,647) 
Other accrued liabilities    (5,973) 
Deferred revenue    (445) 
Deferred tax liability, net    (7,465) 

    
 

Subtotal    62,629  
Goodwill    108,434  

    
 

Total purchase price   $ 171,063  
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Since the NIM acquisition was assessed as a significant and material acquisition for disclosure purposes, the following pro forma information is presented to include the effects of the

NIM acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting and the related TCS Class A common stock and promissory notes issued as part of consideration., as thought NIM was

consolidated as of the beginning of 2009. The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented to include the effects of $103.5 million Convertible Notes offering, as described in Note

12, and its related hedging and warrant agreements, as if the note financing was completed at the beginning of 2009. The pro forma financial information also includes the business combination

accounting effects resulting from the acquisition, including amortization of acquired intangible assets, adjustments to amortization of borrowing costs, and interest expense and the related tax

effects.

The pro forma financial information is not intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated results of operations or financial condition of TCS that would have been reported had

the acquisition been completed as of the date presented, and should not be construed as representative of the future consolidated results of operations or financial condition of a consolidated

entity.
 
   Pro forma 2009  
Pro forma information (in thousands, except share and per share data)   
Revenue   $ 369,413  
Net income   $ 30,855  
Weighted average common share outstanding    49,762  
Diluted weighted average share outstanding    64,853  
Basic earnings per share   $ 0.62  

    

 

Diluted earnings per share   $ 0.52  
    

 

3.    Income Per Share

Basic income per share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Stock options to purchase approximately 9.5 million, 6.0 million and

2.0 million shares were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

For 2011 and 2010, shares issuable upon conversion of convertible debt were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would have been

anti-dilutive. They were included in the weighted average diluted shares for the year ended December 31, 2009 as they were dilutive during 2009. Concurrent with the issuance of the

convertible notes the Company entered into convertible note hedge and warrant transactions. If the Company's share price is greater than $12.74 per share for any period presented, the warrants

would be dilutive to the Company's earnings per share. If the Company's share price is greater than $10.35 than the note hedge would be anti-dilutive to the Company's earnings. For the year

ended December 31, 2011, the Company's share price was less than the warrant exercise price of $12.74 therefore no value was assigned as anti-dilutive in the table below.

These potentially dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock, and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 18, using the treasury-stock method and from convertible notes as

discussed in Note 12, using the "if converted" method.
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The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31:
 
   2011    2010    2009  
Numerator:       
Net income, basic   $ 7,004    $ 15,879    $ 28,269  

Adjustment for assumed dilution:       
Interest on convertible notes, net of taxes    —     —     380  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Net income, diluted   $ 7,004    $ 15,879    $ 28,649  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Denominator:       
Total basic weighted-average common shares outstanding    56,722     53,008     47,623  
Net effect of dilutive stock options based on treasury stock method    1,859     3,024     4,797  
Net effect of dilutive warrants based on treasury stock method    —     —     292  
Net effect of dilutive 4.5% convertible notes    —     —     1,234  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Adjusted weighted average diluted shares    58,581     56,032     53,946  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Net income per share — basic   $ 0.12    $ 0.30    $ 0.59  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Net income per share — diluted   $ 0.12    $ 0.28    $ 0.53  
    

 

    

 

    

 

4.    Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $5,276, $9,031, and $7,566 during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Interest paid totaled $6,675, $8,627, and $1,138 during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Income taxes and estimated state income taxes paid totaled $491, $3,137, and $1,366 during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

5.    Marketable Securities

The following is a summary of available-for-sale marketable securities at December 31, 2011:
 

   

Amortized Cost
Basis    

Gross
Unrealized

Gains    

Gross
Unrealized

Losses    

Estimated
Fair Value  

Corporate bonds   $ 16,114    $ 44    $ (20)   $ 16,138  
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities    2,101     —     (6)    2,095  
Agency bonds    1,000     —     (1)    999  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total marketable securities   $ 19,215    $ 44    $ (27)   $ 19,232  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The following table summarizes the original cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale marketable securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2011:
 

   

Original
 

Cost    Fair Value  
Due within 1 year or less   $ 9,632    $ 9,267  
Due within 1-2 years    7,184     7,001  
Due within 2-3 years    2,986     2,964  

    
 

    
 

  $ 19,802    $ 19,232  
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The following is a summary of available-for-sale marketable securities at December 31, 2010:
 

   

Amortized Cost
Basis    

Gross
Unrealized

Gains    

Gross
Unrealized

Losses    

Estimated
Fair Value  

Corporate bonds   $ 25,578    $ 46    $ (25)   $ 25,599  
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities    4,962     5     (5)    4,962  
Agency bonds    5,000     1     (5)    4,996  
Commercial paper    750     —     —     750  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total marketable securities   $ 36,290    $ 52    $ (35)   $ 36,307  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The following table summarizes the original cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale marketable securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2010:
 

   

Original
 

Cost    Fair Value  
Due within 1 year or less   $ 12,086    $ 12,000  
Due within 1-2 years    17,562     17,368  
Due within 2-3 years    6,997     6,939  

    
 

    
 

  $ 36,645    $ 36,307  
    

 

    

 

6.    Unbilled Receivables

Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles over the amounts billed at contract milestones. Substantially all

unbilled receivables are expected to be billed and collected within twelve months.

7.    Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following at December 31:
 
   2011    2010  
Component parts   $ 5,895    $ 2,564  
Finished goods    1,248     2,876  

    
 

    
 

Total inventory   $ 7,143    $ 5,440  
    

 

    

 

8.    Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:
 
   2011    2010  
Computer equipment   $ 53,737    $ 53,365  
Computer software    46,884     34,539  
Furniture and fixtures    3,379     3,217  
Leasehold improvements    8,135     3,805  
Land    1,000     1,000  
Vehicles    107     107  

    
 

    
 

Total property and equipment at cost    113,242     96,033  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization    (59,736)    (56,696) 

    
 

    
 

Net property and equipment   $ 53,506    $ 39,337  
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9.    Acquired Intangible Assets, Capitalized Software Development Costs, and Goodwill

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs consisted of the following:
 
  December 31, 2011   December 31, 2010  

  

Gross
 

Carrying
 

Amount   

Accumulated
 

Amortization   Net   

Gross
 

Carrying
 

Amount   

Accumulated
 

Amortization   Net  
Acquired intangible assets:       

Customer lists and other  $ 21,899   $ 5,596   $ 16,303   $ 12,952   $ 2,928   $ 10,024  
Customer relationships   20,138    5,502    14,636    20,138    2,818    17,320  
Trademarks and patents   1,364    628    736    1,364    444    920  

Software development costs, including acquired technology   61,163    30,012    31,151    58,668    19,241    39,427  
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Total acquired intangible assets and software dev. costs  $ 104,564   $ 41,738   $ 62,826   $ 93,122   $ 25,431   $ 67,691  
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 
Estimated future amortization expense:   

Year ending December 31, 2012   $ 16,421  
Year ending December 31, 2013    16,370  
Year ending December 31, 2014    12,554  
Year ending December 31, 2015    5,057  
Year ending December 31, 2016    4,548  
Thereafter    7,876  

    
 

  $ 62,826  
    

 

The weighted average amortization period for customer list and other is 8.6 years, customer relationships is 7.5 years, trademarks and patents is 11.3 years, and acquired technology

included in software development costs is 5 years.

For 2011, 2010, and 2009 we capitalized $2,497, $5,681, and $982 respectively, of software development costs for certain software projects after the point of technological feasibility had

been reached but before the products were available for general release. These costs are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the products are available for general

release. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based software. We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products and

services.

Preliminary gross carrying amounts of acquired intangibles have been adjusted during the year ended December 31, 2011 as a result of information not initially available when recording

the initial purchase accounting, but in no instance later than 12 months from the acquisition date.

We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized. Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying

values and remaining useful lives of the respective assets.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:
 

   

Commercial
Segment    

Government
Segment    Total  

Balance as of December 31, 2009   $ 126,878    $ 37,472    $ 164,350  
Reclassifications, adjustments and other    (4,424)    (783)    (5,207) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Balance as of December 31, 2010    122,454     36,689     159,143  
Goodwill from acquisition of Trident    —     17,334     17,334  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Balance as of December 31, 2011   $ 122,454    $ 54,023    $ 176,477  
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The reclassifications, adjustments and other during 2010 relate to the finalization of the 2009 purchase price allocations. Prior to the end of the measurement period for the final purchase

price allocation, which is not to exceed 12 months from the respective acquisition dates, if information becomes available which would indicate adjustments are required to the purchase price

these adjustments will be included in the price allocation retrospectively.

10.    Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Our accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31:
 
   2011    2010  
Accounts payable   $ 20,731    $ 17,912  
Accrued expenses    24,146     24,921  

    
 

    
 

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses   $ 44,877    $ 42,833  
    

 

    

 

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9-1-1 customers that we have billed and

collected from regulating agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements.

11.    Line of Credit

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. Our present loan agreement provides a $35,000 revolving line of credit (the "Line of Credit,")

through June, 2012. Our potential borrowings under the Line of Credit are reduced by a cash management services sublimit which was $1,585 at December 31, 2011.

The Line of Credit includes three sub-facilities: (i) a letter of credit sub-facility pursuant to which the bank may issue letters of credit, (ii) a foreign exchange sub-facility pursuant to

which the Company may purchase foreign currency from the bank, and (iii) a cash management sub-facility pursuant to which the bank may provide cash management services (which may

include, among others, merchant services, direct deposit of payroll, business credit cards and check cashing services) and in connection therewith make loans and extend credit to the Company.

The principal amount outstanding under the Line of Credit accrues interest at a floating rate per annum equal to the rate which is the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) the bank's most recently

announced "prime rate," even if it is not the bank's lowest prime rate. The principal amount outstanding under the Line of Credit is payable either prior to or on the maturity date and interest on

the Line of Credit is payable monthly.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $9,500 of borrowings on the line of credit and had approximately $24,000 of unused borrowing availability under this line. As of December 31 2010,

there were no borrowings on the line of credit and we had approximately $32,900 of unused borrowing availability under this line.

12.    Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:
 
   2011    2010  
4.5% Convertible notes   $ 103,500    $ 103,500  
Term loan from commercial bank    23,333     32,666  
Promissory note payable to NIM sellers paid in full in 2011    —     10,000  

    
 

    
 

Total long-term debt    126,833     146,166  
Less: current portion    (9,333)    (19,333) 

    
 

    
 

Non-current portion of long-term debt   $ 117,500    $ 126,833  
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Aggregate maturities of long-term debt (including interest) at December 31 are as follows:
 
2012   $ 14,848  
2013    14,428  
2014    112,886  

    
 

Total long-term debt   $ 142,162  
    

 

On November 10, 2009, the Company sold $103.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5% Convertible Senior Notes (the "Notes") due 2014. The Notes are not registered and were

offered under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. Concurrent with the issuance of the Notes, we entered into convertible note hedge transactions and warrant transactions, also detailed

below, that are expected to reduce the potential dilution associated with the conversion of the Notes. Holders may convert the Notes at their option on any day prior to the close of business on

the second "scheduled trading day" (as defined in the Indenture) immediately preceding November 1, 2014. The conversion rate will initially be 96.637 shares of Class A common stock per

$1,000 principal amount of Notes, equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $10.35 per share of Class A common stock. The effect of the convertible note hedge and warrant

transactions, described below, is an increase in the effective conversion premium of the Notes to 60% above the November 10th closing price, to $12.74 per share.

The convertible note hedge transactions cover, subject to adjustments, 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock. Also, in connection with the sale of the Notes, the Company entered

into separate warrant transactions with certain counterparties (collectively, the "Warrant Dealers"). The Company sold to the Warrant Dealers the warrants to purchase in the aggregate

10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock, subject to adjustments, at an exercise price of $12.74 per share of Class A common stock.

The convertible note hedge and the warrant transactions are separate transactions, each entered into by the Company with the counterparties, which are not part of the terms of the Notes

and will not affect the holders' rights under the Notes. The cost of the convertible note hedge transactions to the Company was approximately $23.8 million, and has been accounted for as an

equity transaction in accordance with ASC 815-40, Contracts in Entity's own Equity. The Company received proceeds of approximately $13 million related to the sale of the warrants, which

has also been classified as equity as the warrants meet the classification criteria under ASC 815-40-25, in which the warrants and the convertible note hedge transactions require settlements in

shares and provide the Company with the choice of a net cash or common shares settlement. As the convertible note hedge and warrants are indexed to our common stock, we recognized them

in permanent equity in Additional paid-in capital, and will not recognize subsequent changes in fair value as long as the instruments remain classified as equity.

Interest on the Notes is payable semiannually on November 1 and May 1 of each year, beginning May 1, 2010. The notes will mature and convert on November 1, 2014, unless previously

converted in accordance with their terms. The notes will be TCS's senior unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of its present and future senior unsecured debt and senior to any

future subordinated debt. The notes will be structurally subordinate to all present and future debt and other obligations of TCS's subsidiaries and will be effectively subordinate to all of TCS's

present and future secured debt to the extent of the collateral securing that debt. The notes are not redeemable by TCS prior to the maturity date.

We have a $40,000 five year commercial bank term loan (the "Term Loan"), which matures June 30, 2014. The Company initially drew $30,000 of the term funds available on

December 31, 2009 and drew the remaining $10,000 available balance on September 30, 2010. The principal amount outstanding under the Term Loan accrues interest at a floating per annum

rate equal to the rate which is 0.5% plus the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (ii) the bank's prime rate (3.25% at December 31, 2011). The principal amount outstanding under the Term Loan is

payable in sixty equal monthly installments of principal of $556 beginning January 2010 through June 2014 plus an additional forty-five equal monthly installments of principal of $222

beginning October 2010 through June 2014. Interest is payable on a monthly basis.

Our bank Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary events of default. Availability under the Line of Credit is subject to certain conditions,

including the continued accuracy of the Company's
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representations and warranties. The Loan Agreement also contains subjective covenants that require (i) no material impairment in the perfection or priority of the bank's lien in the collateral of

the Loan Agreement, (ii) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrowers, or (iii) no material impairment of the prospect of

repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement also contains covenants requiring the Company to maintain a minimum adjusted quick ratio and a

fixed charge coverage ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others, restrictions on the Company's ability to dispose part of its business or property; to change its

business, liquidate or enter into certain extraordinary transactions; to merge, consolidate or acquire stock or property of another entity; to incur indebtedness; to encumber its property; to pay

dividends or other distributions or enter into material transactions with an affiliate. As of December 31, 2011, we were in compliance with the covenants related to the Loan Agreement.

On December 15, 2009, the Company issued $40,000 in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition of NIM. The promissory notes bear simple interest at 6%

and are due in three installments: $30,000 paid in December 2010, $5,000 on the 18 month anniversary of the closing, and $5,000 on the 24 month anniversary of the closing. The promissory

notes were paid in full according to the terms.

13.    Capital Leases

We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts for capital leases at December 31:
 
   2011    2010  
Computer equipment   $ 21,706    $ 17,356  
Computer software    4,109     3,277  
Furniture and fixtures    143     98  
Leasehold improvements    55     33  

    
 

    
 

Total equipment under capital lease at cost    26,013     20,764  
Less: accumulated amortization    (11,948)    (6,928) 

    
 

    
 

Net property and equipment under capital leases   $ 14,065    $ 13,836  
    

 

    

 

Capital leases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capital leases generally contain provisions whereby we can purchase the equipment at the end of the lease for a one dollar

buyout. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and amortization expense.

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2011:
 
2012   $ 6,601  
2013    5,009  
2014    2,516  
2015    853  

    
 

Total minimum lease payments    14,979  
Less: amounts representing interest    (1,060) 

    
 

Present value of net minimum lease payments (including current portion of $5,928)   $ 13,919  
    

 

14.    Common Stock

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stock held for all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our Class B stockholders are entitled to three

votes for each share owned.
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15.    Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements and the required disclosures are as follows:
 

   
Fair Value

 
Total  

  

Fair Value Measurements at
 

Using  Fair Value Hierarchy  

As of December 31, 2011     Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,898    $ 40,898    $ —    $ —  

Corporate bonds    9,267     9,267     —     —  
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities    7,001     7,001     —     —  
Agency bonds    2,964     2,964     —     —  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Marketable securities    19,232     19,232     —     —  
Deferred compensation plan investments    657     657     —     —  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Assets at Fair Value   $ 60,787    $ 60,787    $ —    $ —  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities:         
Deferred compensation   $ 440    $ 440    $ —    $ —  
Contractual acquisition earnouts    3,580     —     —     3,580  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Liabilities at Fair Value   $ 4,020    $ 440    $ —    $ 3,580  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   
Fair Value

 
Total  

  

Fair Value Measurements at
 

Using Fair Value Hierarchy  

As of December 31, 2010     Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 45,220    $ 45,220    $ —    $ —  

Corporate bonds    25,599     25,599     —     —  
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities    4,962     4,962     —     —  
Agency bonds    4,996     4,996     —     —  
Commercial paper    750     750     —     —  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Marketable securities    36,307     36,307     —     —  
Deferred compensation plan investments    1,280     1,280     —     —  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Assets at Fair Value   $ 82,807    $ 82,807    $ —    $ —  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities:         
Deferred compensation   $ 1,095    $ 1,095    $ —    $ —  
Contractual acquisition earnouts    6,174     —     —     6,174  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Liabilities at Fair Value   $ 7,269    $ 1,095    $ —    $ 6,174  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The Company holds marketable securities that are investment grade and are classified as available-for-sale. The securities include corporate bonds, mortgage and asset backed securities,

agency bonds, and commercial paper that are carried at fair market value based on quoted market prices, see Note 5.

The Company holds trading securities as part of a rabbi trust to fund certain supplemental executive retirement plans and deferred income plans. The funds held are all managed by a third

party, and include fixed income funds, equity securities, and money market accounts, or other investments for which there is an active quoted market. The related deferred compensation

liabilities are valued based on the underlying investment selections held in each participant's account.
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Contractual acquisition earnouts were part of the consideration paid for certain 2009 acquisitions. The fair value of the earnouts is based on probability-weighted payouts under different

scenarios, discounted using a discount rate commensurate with the risk. The following table provides a summary of the changes in the Company's contractual acquisition earnouts measured at

fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in 2011:
 

   

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs (level 3)  
Balance at January 1, 2011   $ 6,174  

Fair value adjustment recognized in earnings    619  
Settlements    (3,213) 
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3    —  

    
 

Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 3,580  
    

 

The Company's long-term debt consists of borrowings under a commercial bank term loan agreement and 4.5% convertible senior notes, see Note 12. At December 31, 2011, the

estimated fair value of the Company's long-term debt, including the current portion, was $109,050 versus a carrying value of $126,833. At December 31, 2010, the estimated fair value of the

Company's long-term debt, including the current portion, approximated its carrying value of $146,166. The estimated fair value is based on a market approach using quoted market prices or

current market rates for similar debt with approximately the same remaining maturities, where possible.

The Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis include long-lived assets, intangible assets, and goodwill. These items are recognized at fair

value when they are considered to be impaired. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no required fair value adjustments for assets and liabilities measured at fair value

on a non-recurring basis.

16.    Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences between financial reporting and

tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Net deferred tax assets are recorded

when it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized.

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following at December 31:
 
   2011    2010    2009  
Current:       

Federal   $ 5,924    $ 317    $ 1,242  
State    512     539     1,057  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total current    6,436     856     2,299  
Deferred:       

Federal    (1,247)    6,795     15,004  
State    223     496     1,492  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total deferred    (1,024)    7,291     16,496  
    

 
    

 
    

 

Total provision for income taxes   $ 5,412    $ 8,147    $ 18,795  
    

 

    

 

    

 

 

F-22



 

Table of Contents

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were related to:
 
   2011    2010  
Deferred tax assets:     

Net operating loss carryforwards   $ 4,936    $ 4,797  
Research and development tax credit carryforwards    7,214     6,721  
Stock-based compensation expense    4,707     3,554  
Reserves and accrued expenses    2,995     2,653  
Alternative minimum tax credit    1,806     1,903  
Deferred revenue    6,598     2,496  
Deferred compensation    251     1,704  
Other    467     412  

    
 

    
 

Total deferred tax assets    28,974     24,240  
    

 
    

 

Deferred tax liabilities:     
Identifiable intangibles accounting    (11,662)    (15,776) 
Capitalized software development costs    (9,529)    (5,253) 
Depreciation and amortization    (5,493)    (2,613) 
Other    (7)    (103) 

    
 

    
 

Total deferred tax liabilities    (26,691)    (23,745) 
    

 
    

 

Net deferred tax asset    2,283     495  
Valuation allowance for net deferred tax asset    (698)    (698) 

    
 

    
 

Net deferred tax asset (liability) in the consolidated balance sheets   $ 1,585    $ (203) 
    

 

    

 

At December 31, 2011, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of approximately $9.4 million, related to net operating losses acquired in the

Xypoint acquisition in 2001. The net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the purchase of Xypoint in 2001 will begin to expire in 2018.

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits in future tax years will be limited by the amounts and timing of future taxable income

and by the application of the ownership change rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net operating losses are limited as a result of ownership

changes occurring in 1997 and 2001. Additionally, the Company determined that it had an ownership change in December 2001, which imposes an annual limitation of the net operating losses

created in 1999 to 2001. As of December 31, 2007, the Company reduced its deferred tax assets related to the portion of the research and development tax credits acquired from Xypoint that

are limited under Section 382, which cannot be used before they expire.

We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire through 2027, utilization of which will be limited in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss

carryforwards. At December 31, 2011, the Company had federal alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1.8 million, which are available to offset future regular federal

taxes. Federal research and development credits of approximately $6.0 million will begin to expire in 2019.

 

F-23



 

Table of Contents

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

The reconciliations of the reported income tax provision to the amount that would result by applying the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% to the income for the years ended December 31

as follows:
 
   2011    2010    2009  
Income tax at statutory rate   $ 4,346    $ 8,409    $ 16,472  
Non deductible items    480     403     673  
Non deductible stock compensation expense    2,024     2,025     681  
Research and development tax credit    (485)    (2,161)    (395) 
Change in tax rates on deferred assets/liabilities    —     —     96  
State income taxes    424     748     1,261  
Original issue discount amortization    (1,520)    (1,377)    (208) 
Other    143     100     215  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Income tax provision   $ 5,412    $ 8,147    $ 18,795  
    

 

    

 

    

 

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 740-20 effective January 1, 2007 and recorded a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits, which did not include

interest and penalties, and increased it to $3.3 million as of December 31, 2011. It is reasonably possible that these unrecognized deferred tax benefits will be recognized in the next twelve

months through the tax provision. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The

Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax positions by reducing the value of certain tax attributes.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company's unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest, penalties and related tax carry forwards):
 
   Total  
Balance at December 31, 2008   

Gross increases related to prior year tax positions   $ 2,736  
Gross increases related to current year tax positions    534  

    
 

Balance at December 31, 2009   $ 3,270  
Gross decreases related to prior year tax positions    (460) 
Gross increases related to current year tax positions    170  

    
 

Balance at December 31, 2010   $ 2,980  
Gross increases related to prior year tax positions    149  
Gross increases related to current year tax positions    162  

    
 

Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 3,291  
    

 

If the Company's positions are sustained by the taxing authority in favor of the Company, approximately, $3.3 million (excluding interest and penalties) of uncertain tax position benefits

would favorably impact the Company's effective tax rate. The Company's policy is to classify any interest and penalties accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the

provision for income taxes. There were no interest or penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. and various state and foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2011, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date

back to 1996, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss and credit carryforwards.

17.    Employee Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan covering defined employees who meet established eligibility requirements. Under the provisions of the plan, the Company may contribute a

discretionary match. The plan may also contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2011, the Company matched 40% of employee deferrals. The Company

contribution was $2,661, $2,497, and $1,646 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 respectively.
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18.    Stock-based Compensation Plans

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employee stock purchase plan.

Stock Incentive Plan.  We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over

periods ranging from one to five years and expire ten years from the date of grant. Under the plans, the Company may grant certain employees, directors and consultants options to purchase

common stock, stock appreciation rights and restricted stock units. Options are rights to purchase common stock of the Company at the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock

appreciation rights are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is based upon the appreciation of the Company's

common stock and the number of awards granted to an individual. Restricted stock units are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of share of the Company's

common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the restrictions lapse.

We recognize compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of 5 years. The Company estimates the fair value

of each stock option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company's stock. The Company

estimates forfeitures based on historical experience and the expected term of the options granted are derived from historical data on employee exercises. The risk free interest rate is based on

the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near future.

A summary of our stock option activity and related information consisted of the following for the years ended December 31 (all share amounts in thousands):
 
  2011   2010   2009  

  

Number of
 

Options   

Weighted
 

Average
 

Exercise
 

Price   

Number of
 

Options   

Weighted
 

Average
 

Exercise
 

Price   

Number of
 

Options   

Weighted
 

Average
 

Exercise
 

Price  
Outstanding, beginning of year   15,446   $ 5.42    14,612   $ 5.32    11,676   $ 3.77  
Granted   4,028    4.24    3,057    6.53    4,768    8.71  
Exercised, including 181 exercised through a net share settlement transaction   (488)   2.97    (722)   3.34    (1,362)   3.65  
Expired   (510)   7.30    (249)   6.39    (26)   3.28  
Forfeited   (2,034)   5.32    (1,252)   7.89    (444)   6.01  

   
 

    
 

    
 

 

Outstanding, end of year   16,442   $ 5.16    15,446   $ 5.42    14,612   $ 5.32  
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Exercisable, at end of year   9,537   $ 4.82    8,730   $ 4.40    6,986   $ 3.94  
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Vested and expected to vest, at end of year   15,252   $ 4.82    14,412   $ 5.31    13,181   $ 5.07  
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Estimated weighted-average grant- date fair value of options granted during the year  $ 2.34    $ 3.58    $ 4.86   
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Weighted-average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year   6.4 years     6.4 years     6.9 years   
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Total fair value of options vested during the year  $ 8,328    $ 12,484    $ 4,465   
   

 

    

 

    

 

 

Intrinsic value of options exercised during the year  $ 800    $ 2,659    $ 6,838   
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Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2011 ranged from $1.20 to $9.86 as follows (all share amounts in thousands):
 

Exercise Prices  

Options
 

Outstanding   

Weighted-
Average

 
Exercise
Prices

 
of Options

 
Outstanding   

Weighted-
Average

 
Remaining

 
Contractual

Life
 

of Options
 

Outstanding
(years)   

Options
Vested and

 
Exercisable   

Weighted-
Average

 
Exercise
Prices

 
of Options
Vested and
Exercisable   

Weighted-
Average

 
Remaining

 
Contractual

Life
 

of Options
 

Vested and
Exercisable

(years)  
$1.20 — $1.84   48   $ 1.82    1.31    48   $ 1.82    1.31  
$1.92 — $2.99   2,170   $ 2.47    3.78    2,164   $ 2.47    3.78  
$3.09 — $4.68   7,446   $ 3.68    7.01    3,703   $ 3.39    5.14  
$4.76 — $7.20   2,562   $ 6.17    4.95    1,663   $ 6.72    2.78  
$7.45 — $9.86   4,216   $ 8.59    7.71    1,959   $ 8.59    7.55  

   
 

     
 

  

Total end of year   16,442      9,537    
   

 

     

 

  

As of December 31, 2011, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding, vested and exercisable was $46,227. As of December 31, 2011, we estimate that we will recognize $13,694

in expense for outstanding, unvested options over their weighted average remaining vesting period of 3 years.

Our assumptions in calculating the fair value of our stock options using Black-Scholes our assumptions were as follows:
 
   For the Years Ended December 31,

   2011   2010   2009
Expected life (in years)   5.5   5.5   5.5
Risk-free interest rate(%)   1%-2.4%   1.4%-2.8%   1.65%-2.61%
Volatility(%)   60%-61%   59%-60%   60%-64%
Dividend yield(%)   0%   0%   0%

For, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the Company granted a total of 626,883, 53,157, and 30,213, respectively, of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key

executives. The restrictions expired at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for executives conditional on continued employment. The fair value of

the restricted stock on the date of issuance is recognized as non-cash stock based compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. We recognized $1,015, $222, and

$155 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. We expect to record future stock compensation

expense of $1,845 as a result of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the remaining vesting period.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan.  We have an employee stock purchase plan (the Plan) that gives all employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan

allows for the purchase of 2,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value. The discount of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share

price on either the first or the last day of each quarterly enrollment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periods are three months in duration. As of December 31,

2011, 1,800,936 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued under the Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan was $349 and $225 for the years

ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, and was immaterial for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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As of December 31, 2011, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is comprised of:
 
   (in thousands)  
Stock incentive plan    6,976  
Outstanding stock options    16,442  
Convertible notes (see Note 12)    10,002  
Note warrant hedge (see Note 12)    10,002  
For B to A conversion    5,347  
Employee stock purchase plan    584  

    
 

Total shares restricted for future use    49,353  
    

 

The composition of non-cash stock based compensation expense was as follows at December 31:
 
   2011    2010    2009  
Direct costs of revenue   $ 6,476    $ 6,397    $ 3,773  
Research and development expense    1,873     2,655     1,366  
Sales and marketing expense    501     618     472  
General and administrative expense    822     502     248  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total non-cash stock compensation expense   $ 9,672    $ 10,172    $ 5,859  
    

 

    

 

    

 

19.    Operating Leases

We lease certain office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases that expire on various dates through 2018. Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating

leases with initial terms of one year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2011:
 
2012   $ 5,935  
2013    4,690  
2014    3,706  
2015    2,879  
2016    2,458  
Beyond    1,793  

    
 

  $ 21,461  
    

 

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under a lease expiring in April 2012, a second facility in Annapolis under a lease expiring in April 2013, a facility in Seattle,

Washington under a lease expiring in September 2017, a facility in Oakland, California under a lease expiring August 2012, and we lease a production facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease

expiring in December 2014. The Annapolis facilities are utilized for executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government Segments. The Seattle facility

is utilized by our Commercial Segment and the Tampa facility is utilized by our Government Segment. As a result of our 2009 acquisitions, we lease office space in Aliso Viejo, California

under a lease expiring in June 2013, offices in Tianjin, China under a lease expiring January 2014, a facility in Calgary, Alberta, Canada under a lease expiring March 2014, and a facility just

outside of Atlanta, Georgia under a lease expiring April 2013. As a result of the acquisition of Trident, we lease office space in Torrance, California expiring January 2018. During the year

ended December 31, 2010, we entered into a lease agreement for a facility in Hanover, Maryland expiring in August 2017. Future payments on all of our leases are estimated based on future

payments including the minimum future rent escalations, if any, stipulated in the respective agreements.

Rent expense was $7,067, $5,760, and $3,938 for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
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20.    Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that

comprised 10% or more of our revenue, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables are summarized in the following tables:
 

   

Segment  

  

% of Total Revenues
For the Year Ended

 
December 31,  

Customer     2011   2010   2009  
U.S. Government agencies and departments    Government     35%   36%   44% 
Verizon Wireless (various divisions, directly and through channel)    Commercial     18%   27%   22% 
MetroPCS Communications, Inc.    Commercial     10%   <10%   <10% 
 
  As of December 31, 2011   As of December 31, 2010  

Customer  

Accounts
 

Receivable   

Unbilled
 

Receivables   

Accounts
 

Receivable   

Unbilled
 

Receivables  
U.S. Government agencies and departments   32%   40%   23%   61% 
Verizon Wireless (various divisions, directly and through channel)   13%   29%   16%   17% 
MetroPCS Communications, Inc.   <10%   <10%   <10%   <10% 

As of December 31, 2011, our total exposure to credit risk was $58,338 based on the amount due to us by the above customers. As of December 31, 2010, our exposure to such risks was

$45,845. We did not experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for the year ended December 31, 2011 or 2010.

21.    Geographic and Business Segment Information

For 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, our revenue includes approximately $33,314, $12,503, and $9,387 of revenue generated from customers outside of the United States.

Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment.

Commercial Segment:    Our commercial services and systems enable wireless carriers to deliver location-based information, internet content, and short text messages to and from

wireless phones. Our hosted and managed services include mobile location-based applications including turn-by-turn navigation, E9-1-1 call routing; that is, customers use our software

functionality through connections to and from network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or other metrics. Customers

include wireless carrier network operators, Voice over Internet Protocol ("VoIP") service providers, state and local governments deploying Next Generation 9-1-1 technology, and automotive

industry suppliers. We earn carrier software-based revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees, and maintenance fees, pricing for which is generally based on the

volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier.

Government Segment:    We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network communication systems, including our SwiftLink deployable systems which integrate high

speed, satellite, and Internet Protocol ("IP") technology, with secure Government-approved cryptologic devices. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, resell access to

satellite airtime (known as space segment), provide professional services including field support of our systems, and cyber security training to the U.S. Department of Defense and other

federal, state and local government agencies, and foreign customers. We have delivered more than 3,000 deployable communication systems for use in security, defense, and other secure

communication applications around the world. We are one of six prime contractors on the U.S. Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems ("WWSS") contract vehicle, with a ceiling value of up to

$5 billion in procurements through mid-2013.
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Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information regarding segment assets, so asset information by reportable segment is not presented.

The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments. All revenues reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net income for the

respective periods is also included below:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  

  2011   2010   2009  

  Comm.   Gvmt   Total   Comm.   Gvmt   Total   Comm.   Gvmt   Total  
Revenue          

Services  $ 174,708   $ 129,213   $ 303,921   $ 168,977   $ 93,302   $ 262,279   $ 89,715   $ 62,229   $ 151,944  
Systems   16,468    105,023    121,491    32,688    93,836    126,524    37,554    110,589    148,143  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total revenue   191,176    234,236    425,412    201,665    187,138    388,803    127,269    172,818    300,087  
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Direct costs of revenue          
Direct cost of services   81,051    89,926    170,977    85,711    66,516    152,227    35,318    48,804    84,122  
Direct cost of systems   13,241    89,957    103,198    14,406    84,207    98,613    10,608    91,503    102,111  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Direct Costs   94,292    179,883    274,175    100,117    150,723    250,840    45,926    140,307    186,233  
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Gross profit          
Services gross profit   93,657    39,287    132,944    83,266    26,786    110,052    54,397    13,425    67,822  
Systems gross profit   3,227    15,066    18,293    18,282    9,629    27,911    26,946    19,086    46,032  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Gross Profit  $ 96,884   $ 54,353   $ 151,237   $ 101,548   $ 36,415   $ 137,963   $ 81,343   $ 32,511   $ 113,854  
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

 
   2011   2010   2009  
Total segment gross profit   $ 151,237   $ 137,963   $ 113,854  

Research and development expense    (37,098)   (30,074)   (22,351) 
Sales and marketing expense    (29,394)   (23,880)   (15,967) 
General and administrative expense    (46,218)   (37,175)   (35,387) 
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment    (12,135)   (9,758)   (6,035) 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets    (5,535)   (4,664)   (870) 
Interest expense    (7,283)   (9,225)   (1,794) 
Amortization of debt issuance expenses    (798)   (750)   (401) 
Patent-related gains, net of expenses    —    —    15,700  
Provision for income taxes    (5,412)   (8,147)   (18,795) 
Other income (expense), net    (360)   1,589    315  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 7,004   $ 15,879   $ 28,269  
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22.    Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for 2011 and 2010. The quarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes all normal recurring

adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the management, necessary for fair statement of the results of the interim periods.
 
   2011  

   quarters  

   (unaudited)  

   First    Second    Third    Forth  
Revenue   $ 90,366    $ 100,679    $ 112,620    $ 121,747  

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Gross profit   $ 36,594    $ 38,073    $ 37,306    $ 39,264  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Net income   $ 2,059    $ 2,063    $ 1,841    $ 1,041  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Earnings per share — basic   $ 0.04    $ 0.04    $ 0.03    $ 0.02  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Earnings per share — diluted
1

  $ 0.04    $ 0.03    $ 0.03    $ 0.02  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

 
1 Shares issuable via the convertible notes are included if dilutive, in which case tax-effected interest expense on the debt is excluded from the determination of earnings per share —

diluted, for all the periods reported in 2011 the shares issuable via the convertible notes were dilutive were excluded in determining earnings per share.
 
   2010  

   quarters  

   (unaudited)  

   First   Second    Third   Forth  
Revenue   $ 90,917   $ 92,662    $ 102,949   $ 102,275  

    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

Gross profit   $ 33,549   $ 33,188    $ 36,739   $ 34,487  
    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

Net income   $ 5,010   $ 3,095    $ 4,322   $ 3,452  
    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

Earnings per share — basic   $ 0.10   $ 0.06    $ 0.08   $ 0.06  
    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

Earnings per share — diluted   $ 0.08
1
  $ 0.06    $ 0.08

1
  $ 0.06  

    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

 
1 Shares issuable via the convertible notes are included if dilutive, in which case tax-effected interest expense on the debt is excluded from the determination of earnings per share – diluted.

For the first and third quarters the shares issuable via the convertible notes were dilutive and the tax-effected interest expense of $0.7 million and $0.8 million, respectively, was included

in determining earnings per share.

23.    Commitments and Contingencies

Some customers may seek indemnification under their contractual arrangements with the Company for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of certain patents

through the use of our products and services, and the use of our products and services in combination with products and services of other vendors. In some cases we have agreed to assume the

defense of the case. In others, the Company will continue to negotiate with these customers in good faith because the Company believes its technology does not infringe the cited patents and

due to specific clauses within the customer contractual arrangements that may or may not give rise to an indemnification obligation. The Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these

matters and the resolutions could have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various

legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business.
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24.    Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a member. The financial and many other terms of

the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at the sole discretion of our

Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not

favorable to us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along

with alternatives that are or may become available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at this new development site.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,

thereunto duly authorized.
 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

By:  /s/                                   MAURICE B. TOSÉ

 Maurice B. Tosé

 Chief Executive Officer, President and

 Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on

the dates indicated. The undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tosé, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. White, and each of them, their true and lawful agents and attorneys-

in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and attorneys-in-fact, and in any one or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as directors and officers of

TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and any one or more of them, as

herein authorized
 
   Name   Title  Date
/s/

 

MAURICE B. TOSÉ

Maurice B. Tosé   
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive Officer)

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

THOMAS M. BRANDT, JR.

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.   
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President (Principal Financial Officer) and Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

JAMES M. BETHMANN

James M. Bethmann   
Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

JAN C. HULY

Jan C. Huly   
Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

A. REZA JAFARI

A. Reza Jafari   
Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

JON B. KUTLER

Jon B. Kutler   
Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

WELDON H. LATHAM

Weldon H. Latham   
Director

 
March 7, 2012

/s/

 

RICHARD A. YOUNG

Richard A. Young   
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

 
March 7, 2012
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  4.1   Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

  4.2   Second Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

  4.3   Form of Class A Common Stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

  4.4
  

Indenture dated as of November 16, 2009, by and between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, as Trustee (Incorporated by reference to the

Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.1†   Form of Indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.2†
  

Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual

Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on June 17, 2004 (No. 000-30821))

10.3†   First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-136072))
10.4†   401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the Company dated January 1, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-51656))

10.5
  

Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLC and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2002)

10.6†   Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

10.7†   Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

10.8†   Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement

10.9†
  

Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2007 Annual

Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on April 30, 2007 (No. 000-30821))

10.10†
  

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2010, by and between the Company and Richard A. Young (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

10.11†
  

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2010, by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

10.12†
  

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2010, by and between the Company and Drew A. Morin (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

10.13†
  

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2010, by and between the Company and Timothy J. Lorello (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

10.14
  

Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and its principal subsidiaries, Longhorn Acquisition, LLC, Solvern Innovations, Inc., Quasar Acquisition,

LLC, and Networks in Motion, Inc., and Silicon Valley Bank (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 7, 2010)

10.15
  

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 25, 2009 by and among the Company, Networks in Motion, Inc., Olympus Merger Sub Inc., and G. Bradford Jones, as

Stockholders' Representative (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 15, 2009)
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10.16
  

Purchase Agreement dated as of November 10, 2009, by and among the Company and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (Incorporated by

reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.19
  

Convertible Bond Hedging Transaction Confirmation dated November 10, 2009, by and between the Company and Royal Bank of Canada (Incorporated by reference to

the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.20
  

Confirmation of Warrants dated November 10, 2009, by and between the Company and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch (Incorporated by reference to the Company's

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.21
  

Confirmation of Warrants dated November 10, 2009, by and between the Company and Société Générale (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.22
  

Confirmation of Warrants dated November 10, 2009, by and between the Company and Royal Bank of Canada (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.23
  

Convertible Bond Hedging Transaction Confirmation dated November 11, 2009, by and between the Company and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch (Incorporated by

reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.24
  

Convertible Bond Hedging Transaction Confirmation dated November 11, 2009, by and between the Company and Société Générale (Incorporated by reference to the

Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.25
  

Confirmation of Warrants dated November 11, 2009, by and between the Company and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch (Incorporated by reference to the Company's

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.26
  

Confirmation of Warrants dated November 11, 2009, by and between the Company and Société Générale (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on November 16, 2009)

10.27
  

Joinder, Assumption and First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated March 4, 2011 (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010)

10.28†
  

Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of

stockholders as filed with the SEC on April 30, 2010 (No. 000-30821))

10.29†
  

Second Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of

stockholders as filed with the SEC on April 30, 2010 (No. 000-30821)

12.1   Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule II

21.1   Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

31.1   Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)

31.2   Certification of CFO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)

32.1   Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2   Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 

60



 

Table of Contents

Exhibit
Numbers   Description

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
 
† Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.
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Exhibit 10.6

INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

UNDER THE

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Stock Option Certificate that is attached hereto constitutes a part of this Incentive Stock Option Grant Agreement.

1. Terminology. All capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan or the Stock Option
Certificate. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following meanings:

(a) "Cause" has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar import in the Employee's written employment or service contract with the
Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the willful commission by the Employee of a criminal or other act that causes or is
likely to cause substantial economic damage to the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (ii) the commission by the
Employee of an act of fraud in the performance of such Employee's duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii) the continuing willful failure of the Employee to
perform the duties of such Employee to the Company (other than such failure resulting from the Employee's incapacity due to physical or mental illness), all
as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be conclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Employee's part
shall be considered "willful" unless done or omitted to be done by the Employee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that the Employee's action or
omission was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) "Change in Control" means: (i) an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of related transactions, by any
person, entity or "group," within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), (excluding for
this purpose, (A) the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial ownership of
voting securities of the Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any corporation owned,
directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the then outstanding voting securities of
the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors) of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the
Exchange Act, of 50% or more of either the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the "Company Voting Stock"); (ii) the effective time of any merger, share exchange,
consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity)
are not persons who held the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; (iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board's nominees for election as directors immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of
the Company
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involving an actual or threatened election contest relating to the election of the directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of
Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act, cease to constitute a majority of the Board following the election; or (v) the dissolution or liquidation
of the Company; provided, however, that the term "Change in Control" does not include a public offering of capital stock of the Company that is effected
pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared effective by, the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933.

(c) "Company" means TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise requires. For purposes of
determining whether a Change in Control has occurred, Company shall mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

(d) "Option Shares" mean the shares of Common Stock underlying the Options.

(e) "Total and Permanent Disability" means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than
twelve months. The Administrator may require such proof of Total and Permanent Disability as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and
the Administrator's good faith determination as to whether the Employee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Options vest in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the Stock Option Certificate which is attached hereto and constitutes
a part of the Agreement (the "Vesting Schedule"), so long as the Employee is in the continuous employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company
from the Grant Date through the applicable date upon which vesting is scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Options after the Employee ceases to
be in either an employment or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Exercise of Options.

(a) Right to Exercise. The Employee may exercise the Options to the extent vested at any time on or before the Expiration Date or the earlier
termination of the Options, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. Section 4 below describes certain limitations on exercise of the Options that apply in
the event of the Employee's death, Total and Permanent Disability, discharge by the Company without Cause or other termination of employment or other
service relationship with the Company. The Options may be exercised only in multiples of whole shares and may not be exercised at any one time as to fewer
than one hundred shares (or such lesser number of shares as to which the Options are then exercisable). No fractional shares will be issued under the Options.

(b) Exercise Procedure. In order to exercise the Options, the following items must be delivered to the Administrator before the expiration or
termination of the Options: (i) an exercise notice, in such form as the Administrator may require from time to time, specifying the number of Option Shares to
be purchased, and (ii) full payment of the Exercise Price for such Option Shares or properly executed, irrevocable instructions, in such form as the
Administrator may require from time to time, to effectuate a broker-assisted cashless exercise, each in accordance with Section 3(c) of this Agreement. An
exercise will not be effective until all of the foregoing items are received by the Administrator.
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(c) Method of Payment. Payment of the Exercise Price may be made by delivery of cash, certified or cashier's check, money order or other cash
equivalent acceptable to the Administrator in its discretion, a broker-assisted cashless exercise in accordance with Regulation T of the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System through a brokerage firm approved by the Administrator, or a combination of the foregoing. In addition, payment of the Exercise
Price may be made by any of the following methods, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion at the time of exercise:

(i) by tender (via actual delivery or attestation) to the Company of other shares of Common Stock of the Company which have a Fair
Market Value on the date of tender equal to the Exercise Price;

(ii) by delivery of the Employee's full recourse promissory note payable to the Company in a form approved by the Administrator; or

(iii) by any other method approved by the Administrator.

(d) Issuance of Shares upon Exercise. Upon exercise of the Options in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Company will issue to
the Employee, the brokerage firm specified in the Employee's delivery instructions pursuant to a broker-assisted cashless exercise, or such other person
exercising the Options, as the case may be, the number of shares of Common Stock so paid for, in the form of fully paid and nonassessable stock. The
Company, in its discretion, will either retain the Option Shares in uncertificated book entry form or deliver stock certificates for the Option Shares as soon as
practicable after exercise, which certificates will, unless such Option Shares are registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable
federal and state law, bear a legend restricting transferability of such shares. Notwithstanding the issuance of the Option Shares or the delivery of one or more
stock certificates for such Option Shares, the Option Shares shall be subject to applicable restrictions on transfer or liquidation, if any, as set forth in the
Employee's written employment or service contract with the Company or pursuant to any policy adopted by the Company, now or hereafter existing, that
imposes stock ownership requirements, stock holding requirements or stock liquidation restrictions on the Employee. The Company may place legends
reflecting the requirements and restrictions described in the immediately foregoing sentence on any stock certificates for the Option Shares.

4. Termination of Employment or Service.

(a) Exercise Period Following Cessation of Employment or Other Service Relationship, In General. If the Employee ceases to be employed by, or
in a service relationship with, the Company for any reason other than death, Total and Permanent Disability, or discharge by the Company without Cause, the
Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of whether the options are vested, immediately upon the Employee's termination of employment or other service
relationship.

(b) Termination by the Company Without Cause. In the event the Employee's employment or other service relationship is terminated by the
Company without Cause, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this
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Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the 90-day period following such cessation, but
in no event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such 90-day period.

(c) Disability of Employee. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4(a) above, if the Employee ceases to be employed by, or in a service
relationship with, the Company as a result of the Employee's Total and Permanent Disability, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of
Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month period following
such cessation, but in no event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such six-month
period.

(d) Death of Employee. If the Employee dies prior to the expiration or other termination of the Options, (i) the unvested Options, after giving
effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon the Employee's death, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable
during the six-month period following the Employee's death, but in no event after the Expiration Date, by the Employee's executor, personal representative, or
the person(s) to whom the Options are transferred by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon
the expiration of such six-month period.

(e) Misconduct. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of whether the
Options are vested, immediately upon the Employee's discharge of employment or other service relationship for Cause or upon the Employee's commission of
any of the following acts during any period following the cessation of employment or other service relationship during which the Options otherwise would be
exercisable: (i) fraud on or misappropriation of any funds or property of the Company, or (ii) breach by the Employee of any provision of any employment,
non-disclosure, non-competition, non-solicitation, assignment of inventions, or other similar agreement executed by the Employee for the benefit of the
Company, as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be conclusive.

(f) Change in Status. If the Employee's relationship with the Company ceases to be a "common law employee" relationship but the Employee
continues to provide bona fide services to the Company following such cessation in a different capacity, including without limitation as a director, consultant
or independent contractor, then a termination of employment or other service relationship shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of this Section 4
upon such change in relationship. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Options shall not be treated as incentive stock options within the meaning of Code
section 422 with respect to any exercise that occurs more than 90 days after such cessation of the common law employee relationship (except as otherwise
permitted under Code section 421 or 422).

5. Nontransferability of Options. These Options are nontransferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and during the
lifetime of the Employee, the Options may be exercised only by the Employee or, during the period the Employee is under a legal disability, by the
Employee's guardian or legal representative. Except as provided above, the Options may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in
any way (whether by operation of law or otherwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process.
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6. Qualified Nature of the Options. The Options are intended to qualify as incentive stock options within the meaning of Code section 422 ("Incentive
Stock Options"), to the fullest extent permitted by Code section 422, and this Agreement shall be so construed. Pursuant to Code section 422(d) the aggregate
fair market value (determined as of the Grant Date) of shares of Common Stock with respect to which all Incentive Stock Options first become exercisable by
the Employee in any calendar year under the Plan or any other plan of the Company (and its parent and subsidiary corporations, within the meaning of Code
section 424(e) and (f), as may exist from time to time) may not exceed $100,000 or such other amount as may be permitted from time to time under Code
section 422. To the extent that such aggregate fair market value exceeds $100,000 or other applicable amount in any calendar year, such stock options will be
treated as nonstatutory stock options with respect to the amount of aggregate fair market value thereof that exceeds the Code section 422(d) limit. For this
purpose, the Incentive Stock Options will be taken into account in the order in which they were granted. In such case, the Company may designate the shares
of Common Stock that are to be treated as stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of Incentive Stock Options and the shares of Common Stock that are to be
treated as stock acquired pursuant to nonstatutory stock options by issuing separate certificates for such shares and identifying the certificates as such in the
stock transfer records of the Company.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the Employee owns, directly or indirectly through attribution, stock possessing more than 10% of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of any of its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Code section 424(f)) on the Grant
Date, then the Exercise Price is the greater of (a) the Exercise Price stated on the Stock Option Certificate which is attached hereto and constitutes a part of
this Agreement or (b) 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Grant Date, and the Expiration Date is the last business day prior to the
fifth anniversary of the Grant Date.

Code section 422 provides additional limitations respecting the treatment of these Options as Incentive Stock Options.

7. Notice of Disqualifying Disposition. If the Employee makes a disposition (as that term is defined in Code section 424(c)) of any Option Shares
acquired pursuant to these Options within two years of the Grant Date or within one year after the Option Shares are transferred to the Employee, the
Employee agrees to notify the Administrator of such disposition in writing within 30 days of the disposition.

8. Withholding of Taxes. At the time the Options are exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, the
Employee hereby authorizes withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind due the Employee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision
for foreign, federal, state and local taxes required by law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Options (including upon a disqualifying
disposition within the meaning of Code section 421(b)). The Company may require the Employee to make a cash payment to cover any withholding tax
obligation as a condition of exercise of the Options or issuance of share certificates representing Option Shares.
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The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, permit the Employee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax obligation which may arise in
connection with the Options either by electing to have the Company withhold from the shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing
to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a Fair Market Value not in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory
minimum withholding amount due.

9. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Other Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Split and Reverse Stock Split. Upon a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split affecting, the Common
Stock, the number of shares covered by and the exercise price and other terms of the Options, shall, without further action of the Board, be adjusted to reflect
such event unless the Board determines, at the time it approves such stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split, that no such adjustment shall be made.
The Administrator may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares and fractional cents that arise with respect to the
Options as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

(b) Non-Change in Control Transactions. Except with respect to the transactions set forth in Section 9(a), in the event of any change affecting the
Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up, dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or share exchange, other
than any such change that is part of a transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the
Employee, shall make any adjustments in the Options, including but not limited to reducing the number, kind and price of securities subject to the Options.

(c) Change in Control Transactions. In the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Options will terminate upon the effective
time of any such Change in Control unless provision is made in connection with the transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the continuation
or assumption of the Options, or the substitution of the Options with new options of the surviving or successor entity or a parent thereof. In the event of such
termination, the Employee will be permitted, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the effective time of the Change in Control, to exercise all of the Options
that are then exercisable or will become exercisable upon or prior to the effective time of the Change in Control; provided, however, that any such exercise of
any Options that become exercisable as a result of the Change in Control shall be deemed to occur immediately prior to the effective time of such Change in
Control.

(d) Adjustments for Unusual Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, in its discretion and without the consent of the Employee,
adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, the Options in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the Company,
or the financial statements of the Company or any Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the
Administrator determines that such adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be
made available under the Options or the Plan.

(e) Binding Nature of Adjustments. Adjustments under this Section 9 will be made by the Administrator, whose determination as to what
adjustments, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive. No fractional shares will be issued
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pursuant to the Options on account of any such adjustments. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply with equal force to any additional and/or
substitute securities received by the Employee pursuant to this Section 9 in exchange for, or by virtue of the Employee's ownership of, the Options or the
Option Shares, except as otherwise determined by the Administrator.

10. Confidential Information. In consideration of the Options granted to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, the Employee agrees and covenants
that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Employee will keep confidential any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of the
Company which are now or which hereafter may become known to the Employee as a result of the Employee's employment by or other service relationship
with the Company, and shall not at any time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any person, firm, Company or other entity, or use the
same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during and after the Employee's employment or other service
relationship. The provisions of this Section 10 shall not narrow or otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Employee set forth in any
agreement of similar import entered into between the Employee and the Company.

11. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will or other employment status or
other service relationship of the Employee, nor be construed as a contract of employment or service relationship between the Company and the Employee, or
as a contractual right of Employee to continue in the employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any period of time, or as a limitation of the
right of the Company to discharge the Employee at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge results in the failure of any
Options to vest or any other adverse effect on the Employee's interests under the Plan.

12. No Rights as a Stockholder. The Employee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the Option Shares until such shares have
been issued to him or her upon the due exercise of the Options. No adjustment shall be made for dividends or distributions or other rights for which the record
date is prior to the date such shares are issued.

13. The Company's Rights. The existence of the Options shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or
authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger or
consolidation of the Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting
the Common Stock or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the Company's assets or
business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

14. Employee. Whenever the word "Employee" is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be
construed, as determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom the Options may be transferred by will
or by the laws of descent and distribution, the word "Employee" shall be deemed to include such person.

15. Notices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently made or given
if hand delivered or mailed
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by certified mail, addressed to the Employee at the address contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the Administrator, care of the Company
for the attention of its Corporate Secretary at its principal office or, if the receiving party consents in advance, transmitted and received via telecopy or via
such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Options granted hereunder. Any oral or
written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect to
the Options granted hereunder shall be void and ineffective for all purposes.

17. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion; provided, however, that this Agreement
may not be modified in a manner that would have a materially adverse effect on the Options or Option Shares as determined in the discretion of the
Administrator, except as provided in the Plan or in a written document signed by each of the parties hereto.

18. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable provisions of, the Plan.
Inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved in accordance with the terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this
Agreement or any matters as to which this Agreement is silent, the Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator.

19. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions made by the Administrator relating
to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to its provisions concerning the applicability of laws of other jurisdictions. Any suit with
respect hereto will be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include the city and state in which the principal offices of the Company are
located, and the Employee hereby agrees and submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof.

20. Section 409A. This Agreement and the Options granted hereunder are intended to comply with, or otherwise be exempt from, Section 409A of the
Code. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall be construed as including any feature for the deferral of compensation other than the deferral of recognition
of income until the exercise of the Options. Should any provision of the Plan or this Agreement be found not to comply with, or otherwise be exempt from,
the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, it may be modified and given effect, in the sole discretion of the Administrator and without requiring the
Employee's consent, in such manner as the Administrator determines to be necessary or appropriate to comply with, or to effectuate an exemption from,
Section 409A of the Code. The foregoing, however, shall not be construed as a guarantee by the Company of any particular tax effect to the Employee.

21. Electronic Delivery of Documents. The Employee (i) consents to the electronic delivery of this Agreement, all information with respect to the Plan
and the Options, and any reports of the Company provided generally to the Company's stockholders; (ii) acknowledges that the Employee may receive from
the Company a paper copy of any documents delivered electronically at no cost to the Employee by contacting the Company by telephone or in writing;
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(iii) further acknowledges that the Employee may revoke his or her consent to the electronic delivery of documents at any time by notifying the Company of
such revoked consent by telephone, postal service or electronic mail; and (iv) further acknowledges that the Employee understands that he or she is not
required to consent to electronic delivery of documents.

22. No Future Entitlement. The Employee acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the grant of these Options is a one-time benefit which does not create any
contractual or other right to receive future grants of stock options, or compensation in lieu of stock options, even if stock options have been granted repeatedly
in the past; (ii) all determinations with respect to any such future grants, including, but not limited to, the times when stock options shall be granted or shall
become exercisable, the maximum number of shares subject to each stock option, and the purchase price, will be at the sole discretion of the Administrator;
(iii) the value of these Options is an extraordinary item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Employee's employment contract, if any; (iv) the
value of these Options is not part of normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to, calculating any termination,
severance, resignation, redundancy, end of service payments or similar payments, or bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement benefits; (v) the
vesting of these Options ceases upon termination of employment with the Company or transfer of employment from the Company, or other cessation of
eligibility for any reason, except as may otherwise be explicitly provided in this Agreement; (vi) if the underlying Common Stock does not increase in value,
these Options will have no value, nor does the Company guarantee any future value; and (vii) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages arises if
these Options do not increase in value and the Employee irrevocably releases the Company from any such claim that does arise.

23. Personal Data. For the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing these Options, the Employee consents to the collection,
receipt, use, retention and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the Employee's personal data by and among the Company and its third party vendors. The
Employee understands that personal data (including but not limited to, name, home address, telephone number, employee number, employment status, social
security number, tax identification number, date of birth, nationality, job and payroll location, data for tax withholding purposes and shares awarded,
cancelled, exercised, vested and unvested) may be transferred to third parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of these
Options and the Plan and the Employee expressly authorizes such transfer as well as the retention, use, and the subsequent transfer of the data by the
recipient(s). The Employee understands that these recipients may be located in the Employee's home country or elsewhere, and that the recipient's country
may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Employee's home country. The Employee understands that data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage these Options. The Employee understands that he or she may, at any time, request a list with the names and
addresses of any potential recipients of the personal data, view data, request additional information about the storage and processing of data, require any
necessary amendments to data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Company's Secretary. The
Employee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Employee's consent may affect the Employee's ability to accept a stock option.

24. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
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Enclosure: Prospectus of the TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan
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Exhibit 10.7

NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION GRANT AGREEMENT

UNDER THE

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Stock Option Certificate that is attached hereto constitutes a part of this Nonstatutory Stock Option Grant Agreement.

1. Terminology. All capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan or the Stock Option
Certificate. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following meanings:

(a) "Cause" has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar import in the Optionee's written employment or service contract with the
Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the willful commission by the Optionee of a criminal or other act that causes or is
likely to cause substantial economic damage to the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (ii) the commission by the
Optionee of an act of fraud in the performance of such Optionee's duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii) the continuing willful failure of the Optionee to
perform the duties of such Optionee to the Company (other than such failure resulting from the Optionee's incapacity due to physical or mental illness), all as
determined by the Administrator, which determination will be conclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Optionee's part shall
be considered "willful" unless done or omitted to be done by the Optionee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that the Optionee's action or omission
was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) "Change in Control" means: (i) an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of related transactions, by any
person, entity or "group," within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), (excluding for
this purpose, (A) the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial ownership of
voting securities of the Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any corporation owned,
directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the then outstanding voting securities of
the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors) of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the
Exchange Act, of 50% or more of either the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the "Company Voting Stock"); (ii) the effective time of any merger, share exchange,
consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity)
are not persons who held the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; (iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board's nominees



 

for election as directors immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of the Company involving an actual or threatened election contest relating to the
election of the directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act, cease to constitute a
majority of the Board following the election; or (v) the dissolution or liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that the term "Change in Control" does
not include a public offering of capital stock of the Company that is effected pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared effective by, the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933.

(c) "Company" means TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise requires. For purposes of
determining whether a Change in Control has occurred, Company shall mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

(d) "Option Shares" mean the shares of Common Stock underlying the Options.

(e) "Total and Permanent Disability" means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than
twelve months. The Administrator may require such proof of Total and Permanent Disability as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and
the Administrator's good faith determination as to whether the Optionee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Options vest in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the Stock Option Certificate which is attached hereto and constitutes
a part of the Agreement (the "Vesting Schedule"), so long as the Optionee is in the continuous employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company from
the Grant Date through the applicable date upon which vesting is scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Options after the Optionee ceases to be in
either an employment or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Exercise of Options.

(a) Right to Exercise. The Optionee may exercise the Options to the extent vested at any time on or before the Expiration Date or the earlier
termination of the Options, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. Section 4 below describes certain limitations on exercise of the Options that apply in
the event of the Optionee's death, Total and Permanent Disability, discharge by the Company without Cause or other termination of employment or other
service relationship with the Company. The Options may be exercised only in multiples of whole shares and may not be exercised at any one time as to fewer
than one hundred shares (or such lesser number of shares as to which the Options are then exercisable). No fractional shares will be issued under the Options.

(b) Exercise Procedure. In order to exercise the Options, the following items must be delivered to the Administrator before the expiration or
termination of the Options: (i) an exercise notice, in such form as the Administrator may require from time to time, specifying the number of Option Shares to
be purchased, and (ii) full payment of the Exercise Price for such Option Shares or properly executed, irrevocable instructions, in such form as the
Administrator may require from time to time, to effectuate a broker-assisted cashless exercise, each in accordance with Section 3(c) of this Agreement. An
exercise will not be effective until the Administrator receives all of the foregoing items.
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(c) Method of Payment. Payment of the Exercise Price may be made by delivery of cash, certified or cashier's check, money order or other cash
equivalent acceptable to the Administrator in its discretion, a broker-assisted cashless exercise in accordance with Regulation T of the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System through a brokerage firm approved by the Administrator, or a combination of the foregoing. In addition, payment of the Exercise
Price may be made by any of the following methods, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion at the time of exercise:

(i) by tender (via actual delivery or attestation) to the Company of other shares of Common Stock of the Company which have a Fair
Market Value on the date of tender equal to the Exercise Price;

(ii) by delivery of the Optionee's full recourse promissory note payable to the Company in a form approved by the Administrator; or

(iii) by any other method approved by the Administrator.

(d) Issuance of Shares upon Exercise. Upon exercise of the Options in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Company will issue to
the Optionee, the brokerage firm specified in the Optionee's delivery instructions pursuant to a broker-assisted cashless exercise, or such other person
exercising the Options, as the case may be, the number of shares of Common Stock so paid for, in the form of fully paid and nonassessable stock. The
Company, in its discretion, will either retain the Option Shares in uncertificated book entry form or deliver stock certificates for the Option Shares as soon as
practicable after exercise, which certificates will, unless such Option Shares are registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable
federal and state law, bear a legend restricting transferability of such shares. Notwithstanding the issuance of the Option Shares or the delivery of one or more
stock certificates for such Option Shares, the Option Shares shall be subject to applicable restrictions on transfer or liquidation, if any, as set forth in the
Optionee's written employment or service contract with the Company or pursuant to any policy adopted by the Company, now or hereafter existing, that
imposes stock ownership requirements, stock holding requirements or stock liquidation restrictions on the Optionee. The Company may place legends
reflecting the requirements and restrictions described in the immediately foregoing sentence on any stock certificates for the Option Shares.

4. Termination of Employment or Service.

(a) Exercise Period Following Cessation of Employment or Other Service Relationship, In General. If the Optionee ceases to be employed by, or
in a service relationship with, the Company for any reason other than death, Total and Permanent Disability, or discharge by the Company without Cause, the
Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of whether the Options are vested, immediately upon the Optionee's termination of employment or other service
relationship.

(b) Termination by the Company Without Cause. In the event the Optionee's employment or other service relationship is terminated by the
Company without Cause, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such
cessation, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the 90-day period following such cessation, but in no event after the Expiration Date. Unless
sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such 90-day period.
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(c) Disability of Optionee. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4(a) above, if the Optionee ceases to be employed by, or in a service
relationship with, the Company as a result of the Optionee's Total and Permanent Disability, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of
Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month period following
such cessation, but in no event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such six-month
period.

(d) Death of Optionee. If the Optionee dies prior to the expiration or other termination of the Options, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect
to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon the Optionee's death, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the
six-month period following the Optionee's death, but in no event after the Expiration Date, by the Optionee's executor, personal representative, or the
person(s) to whom the Options are transferred by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the
expiration of such six-month period.

(e) Misconduct. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of whether the
Options are vested, immediately upon the Optionee's discharge of employment or other service relationship for Cause or upon the Optionee's commission of
any of the following acts during any period following the cessation of employment or other service relationship during which the Options otherwise would be
exercisable: (i) fraud on or misappropriation of any funds or property of the Company, or (ii) breach by the Optionee of any provision of any employment,
non-disclosure, non-competition, non-solicitation, assignment of inventions, or other similar agreement executed by the Optionee for the benefit of the
Company, as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be conclusive.

5. Nontransferability of Options. These Options are nontransferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and during the
lifetime of the Optionee, the Options may be exercised only by the Optionee or, during the period the Optionee is under a legal disability, by the Optionee's
guardian or legal representative. Except as provided above, the Options may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in any way
(whether by operation of law or otherwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process.

6. Nonstatutory Nature of the Options. The Options are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options within the meaning of Code section 422, and
this Agreement shall be so construed. The Optionee acknowledges that, upon exercise of the Options, the Optionee will recognize taxable income in an
amount equal to the excess of the then Fair Market Value of the Option Shares over the Exercise Price and must comply with the provisions of Section 7 of
this Agreement with respect to any tax withholding obligations that arise as a result of such exercise.

7. Withholding of Taxes. At the time the Options are exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, the Optionee
hereby authorizes withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind due the Optionee and otherwise
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agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and local taxes required by law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Options.
The Company may require the Optionee to make a cash payment to cover any withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Options or issuance
of share certificates representing Option Shares.

The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, permit the Optionee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax obligation which may arise in
connection with the Options either by electing to have the Company withhold from the shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing
to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a Fair Market Value not in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory
minimum withholding amount due.

8. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Other Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Split and Reverse Stock Split. Upon a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split affecting, the Common
Stock, the number of shares covered by and the exercise price and other terms of the Options, shall, without further action of the Board, be adjusted to reflect
such event unless the Board determines, at the time it approves such stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split, that no such adjustment shall be made.
The Administrator may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares and fractional cents that arise with respect to the
Options as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

(b) Non-Change in Control Transactions. Except with respect to the transactions set forth in Section 8(a), in the event of any change affecting the
Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up, dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or share exchange, other
than any such change that is part of a transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the Optionee,
shall make any adjustments in the Options, including but not limited to reducing the number, kind and price of securities subject to the Options.

(c) Change in Control Transactions. In the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Options will terminate upon the effective
time of any such Change in Control unless provision is made in connection with the transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the continuation
or assumption of the Options, or the substitution of the Options with new options of the surviving or successor entity or a parent thereof. In the event of such
termination, the Employee will be permitted, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the effective time of the Change in Control, to exercise all of the Options
that are then exercisable or will become exercisable upon or prior to the effective time of the Change in Control; provided, however, that any such exercise of
any Options that become exercisable as a result of the Change in Control shall be deemed to occur immediately prior to the effective time of such Change in
Control.

(d) Adjustments for Unusual Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, in its discretion and without the consent of the Optionee,
adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, the Options in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the Company,
or the financial statements of the Company or any Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the
Administrator determines that such adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be
made available under the Options or the Plan.
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(e) Binding Nature of Adjustments. Adjustments under this Section 8 will be made by the Administrator, whose determination as to what
adjustments, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive. No fractional shares will be issued pursuant to the Options on
account of any such adjustments. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply with equal force to any additional and/or substitute securities
received by the Optionee pursuant to this Section 8 in exchange for, or by virtue of the Optionee's ownership of, the Options or the Option Shares, except as
otherwise determined by the Administrator.

9. Confidential Information. In consideration of the Options granted to the Optionee pursuant to this Agreement, the Optionee agrees and covenants
that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Optionee will keep confidential any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of the
Company which are now or which hereafter may become known to the Optionee as a result of the Optionee's employment by or other service relationship
with the Company, and shall not at any time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any person, firm, Company or other entity, or use the
same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during and after the Optionee's employment or other service
relationship. The provisions of this Section 9 shall not narrow or otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Optionee set forth in any agreement
of similar import entered into between the Optionee and the Company.

10. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will or other employment status or
other service relationship of the Optionee, nor be construed as a contract of employment or service relationship between the Company and the Optionee, or as
a contractual right of Optionee to continue in the employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any period of time, or as a limitation of the
right of the Company to discharge the Optionee at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge results in the failure of any
Options to vest or any other adverse effect on the Optionee's interests under the Plan.

11. No Rights as a Stockholder. The Optionee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the Option Shares until such shares have
been issued to him or her upon the due exercise of the Options. No adjustment shall be made for dividends or distributions or other rights for which the record
date is prior to the date such shares are issued.

12. The Company's Rights. The existence of the Options shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or
authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger or
consolidation of the Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting
the Common Stock or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the Company's assets or
business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

13. Optionee. Whenever the word "Optionee" is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be
construed, as
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determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom the Options may be transferred by will or by the laws
of descent and distribution, or another permitted transferee, the word "Optionee" shall be deemed to include such person.

14. Notices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently made or given
if hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to the Optionee at the address contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the
Administrator, care of the Company for the attention of its Corporate Secretary at its principal office or, if the receiving party consents in advance, transmitted
and received via telecopy or via such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Options granted hereunder. Any oral or
written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect to
the Options granted hereunder shall be void and ineffective for all purposes.

16. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion; provided, however, that this Agreement
may not be modified in a manner that would have a materially adverse effect on the Options or Option Shares as determined in the discretion of the
Administrator, except as provided in the Plan or in a written document signed by each of the parties hereto.

17. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable provisions of, the Plan.
Inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved in accordance with the terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this
Agreement or any matters as to which this Agreement is silent, the Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator.

18. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions made by the Administrator relating
to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to its provisions concerning the applicability of laws of other jurisdictions. Any suit with
respect hereto will be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include the city and state in which the principal offices of the Company are
located, and the Optionee hereby agrees and submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof.

19. Section 409A. This Agreement and the Options granted hereunder are intended to comply with, or otherwise be exempt from, Section 409A of the
Code. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall be construed as including any feature for the deferral of compensation other than the deferral of recognition
of income until the exercise of the Options. Should any provision of the Plan or this Agreement be found not to comply with, or otherwise be exempt from,
the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, it may be modified and given effect, in the sole discretion of the Administrator and without requiring the
Optionee's consent, in such manner as the Administrator determines to be necessary or appropriate to comply with, or to effectuate an exemption from,
Section 409A of the Code. The foregoing, however, shall not be construed as a guarantee by the Company of any particular tax effect to the Optionee.
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20. Electronic Delivery of Documents. The Optionee (i) consents to the electronic delivery of this Agreement, all information with respect to the Plan
and the Options, and any reports of the Company provided generally to the Company's stockholders; (ii) acknowledges that the Optionee may receive from
the Company a paper copy of any documents delivered electronically at no cost to the Optionee by contacting the Company by telephone or in writing;
(iii) further acknowledges that the Optionee may revoke his or her consent to the electronic delivery of documents at any time by notifying the Company of
such revoked consent by telephone, postal service or electronic mail; and (iv) further acknowledges that the Optionee understands that he or she is not
required to consent to electronic delivery of documents.

21. No Future Entitlement. The Optionee acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the grant of these Options is a one-time benefit which does not create any
contractual or other right to receive future grants of stock options, or compensation in lieu of stock options, even if stock options have been granted repeatedly
in the past; (ii) all determinations with respect to any such future grants, including, but not limited to, the times when stock options shall be granted or shall
become exercisable, the maximum number of shares subject to each stock option, and the purchase price, will be at the sole discretion of the Administrator;
(iii) the value of these Options is an extraordinary item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Optionee's employment contract, if any; (iv) the
value of these Options is not part of normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to, calculating any termination,
severance, resignation, redundancy, end of service payments or similar payments, or bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement benefits; (v) the
vesting of these Options ceases upon termination of employment with the Company or transfer of employment from the Company, or other cessation of
eligibility for any reason, except as may otherwise be explicitly provided in this Agreement; (vi) if the underlying Common Stock does not increase in value,
these Options will have no value, nor does the Company guarantee any future value; and (vii) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages arises if
these Options do not increase in value and the Optionee irrevocably releases the Company from any such claim that does arise.

22. Personal Data. For the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing these Options, the Optionee consents to the collection,
receipt, use, retention and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the Optionee's personal data by and among the Company and its third party vendors. The
Optionee understands that personal data (including but not limited to, name, home address, telephone number, employee number, employment status, social
security number, tax identification number, date of birth, nationality, job and payroll location, data for tax withholding purposes and shares awarded,
cancelled, exercised, vested and unvested) may be transferred to third parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of these
Options and the Plan and the Optionee expressly authorizes such transfer as well as the retention, use, and the subsequent transfer of the data by the
recipient(s). The Optionee understands that these recipients may be located in the Optionee's home country or elsewhere, and that the recipient's country may
have different data privacy laws and protections than the Optionee's home country. The Optionee understands that data will be held only as long as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage these Options. The Optionee understands that he or she may, at any time, request a list with the names and
addresses of any potential recipients of the personal data, view data, request additional information about the storage and processing of data, require any
necessary amendments to data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Company's Secretary. The
Optionee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing the Optionee's consent may affect the Optionee's ability to accept a stock option.
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23. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

Enclosure: Prospectus of the TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan
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Exhibit 10.8

RESTRICTED STOCK GRANT AGREEMENT

UNDER THE

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Restricted Stock Award Certificate that is attached hereto constitutes a part of this Restricted Stock Grant Agreement.

1. Terminology. All capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan or the Restricted Stock
Award Certificate. All of the provisions of the Plan are expressly incorporated into this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the
following meanings:

(a) "Cause" has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar import in the Employee's written employment or service contract with the
Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the willful commission by the Employee of a criminal or other act that causes or is
likely to cause substantial economic damage to the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (ii) the commission by the
Employee of an act of fraud in the performance of such Employee's duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii) the continuing willful failure of the Employee to
perform the duties of such Employee to the Company (other than such failure resulting from the Employee's incapacity due to physical or mental illness), all
as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be conclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Employee's part
shall be considered "willful" unless done or omitted to be done by the Employee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that the Employee's action or
omission was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) "Change in Control" means: (i) an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of related transactions, by any
person, entity or "group," within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), (excluding for
this purpose, (A) the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial ownership of
voting securities of the Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any corporation owned,
directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of the then outstanding voting securities of
the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors) of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the
Exchange Act, of 50% or more of either the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding
voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the "Company Voting Stock"); (ii) the effective time of any merger, share exchange,
consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity)
are not persons who held the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; (iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board's nominees for election as directors immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of
the Company involving an actual or threatened election contest relating to the election of the directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11
of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act, cease to constitute a majority of the Board following the election; or (v) the dissolution or
liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that the term "Change in Control" does not include a public offering of capital stock of the Company that is
effected pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared effective by, the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933.



 

(c) "Company" means TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise requires. For purposes of
determining whether a Change in Control has occurred, Company shall mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

(d) "Restricted Shares" means Award Shares that are not vested as provided in Section 2 on the relevant date.

(e) "Total and Permanent Disability" means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than
twelve months. The Administrator may require such proof of Total and Permanent Disability as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and
the Administrator's good faith determination as to whether the Employee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Award Shares vest and become nonforfeitable in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the Restricted Stock Award
Certificate (the "Vesting Schedule") so long as the Employee is in the continuous employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company from the Grant
Date through the applicable date upon which vesting is scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Award Shares after the Employee ceases to be in
either an employment or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Termination of Employment or Service. If the Employee ceases to be employed by, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any reason, all
Restricted Shares, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, will be immediately forfeited to the Company upon such cessation for
no consideration.

4. Restrictions on Transfer.

(a) Restricted Shares may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in any way (whether by operation of law or
otherwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process.

(b) The Company, at its discretion, may impose restrictions upon the sale, pledge or other transfer of the Award Shares (including the placement
of appropriate legends on stock certificates or the imposition of stop-transfer instructions) if, in the judgment of the Company, such restrictions are necessary
or desirable in order to achieve compliance with the Securities Act, the securities laws of any state or any other law.

(c) Notwithstanding the vesting of the Award Shares or the delivery of one or more stock certificates for such Award Shares, the Award Shares
shall be subject to applicable restrictions on transfer or liquidation, if any, as set forth in the Employee's written employment or service contract with the
Company or pursuant to any policy adopted by the Company, now or hereafter existing, that imposes stock ownership requirements, stock holding
requirements or stock liquidation restrictions on the Employee. The Company may place legends reflecting the requirements and restrictions described in the
immediately foregoing sentence on any stock certificates for the Award Shares.

(d) The Company shall not be required to (i) transfer on its books any Award Shares that have been sold or transferred in contravention of this
Agreement or (ii) treat as the owner of Award Shares, or otherwise to accord voting, dividend or liquidation rights to, any transferee to whom Award Shares
have been transferred in contravention of this Agreement.
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5. Stock Certificates.

(a) The stock certificates evidencing the Award Shares shall be registered on the Company's books in the name of the Employee as of the Grant
Date. Physical possession or custody of such stock certificates shall be retained by the Company until such time as the shares are vested and, thereafter, the
Company shall either deliver to the Employee one or more certificates in the name of the Employee for that number of vested shares owned by the Employee
or provide for uncertificated, book entry issuance of those shares. If requested, the Employee shall deliver to the Company a stock power, endorsed in blank,
with respect to any Restricted Shares. All regular cash dividends on Restricted Shares shall be paid directly to the Employee and shall not be held by the
Company.

(b) The stock certificate evidencing the Award Shares shall bear a legend restricting transferability of such shares, unless such Award Shares are
registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable federal and state law. If required by the authorities of any state in connection with
the issuance of the Award Shares, the legend or legends required by such state authorities shall also be endorsed on all such certificates.

6. Tax Election and Tax Withholding.

(a) The Employee hereby acknowledges that he has been advised by the Company to seek independent tax advice regarding the availability and
advisability of making an election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that any such election, if made, must be made
within 30 days of the Grant Date. The Employee is not relying on the Company or any of its officers, directors or employees for tax advice regarding this
award. The Employee expressly acknowledges that he is solely responsible for filing any such Section 83(b) election with the appropriate governmental
authorities, irrespective of the fact that such election is also delivered to the Company.

(b) The Company or any Affiliate shall have the right to deduct from any compensation or any other payment of any kind (including withholding
the issuance of shares of Common Stock) due the Employee the amount of any federal, state, local or foreign taxes required by law to be withheld as a result
of the grant or vesting of the Award Shares in whole or in part; provided, however, that the value of the shares of Common Stock withheld may not exceed the
statutory minimum withholding amount required by law. In lieu of such deduction, the Company may require the Employee to make a cash payment to the
Company or an Affiliate equal to the amount required to be withheld. If the Employee does not make such payment when requested, the Company may refuse
to issue any Common Stock certificate under this Agreement until arrangements satisfactory to the Administrator for such payment have been made.

7. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Other Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Split and Reverse Stock Split. Upon a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split affecting, the Common
Stock, the number of Award Shares and the number of such Award Shares that constitute Restricted Shares shall, without further action of the Board, be
adjusted to reflect such event, unless, the Board determines, at the time it approves such stock dividend, stock split, or reverse stock split, that no such
adjustment shall be made. The Administrator may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares with respect to the Award
Shares as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

(b) Non-Change in Control Transactions.Except with respect to the transactions set forth in Section 7(a), in the event of any change affecting the
Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up, dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or share exchange, other
than any such change that is part of a transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the
Employee, shall make any adjustments in the Award Shares, including but not limited to reducing the number and kind of securities subject to the Award
Shares.
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(c) Change in Control Transactions. In the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Restricted Shares will be forfeited upon
the effective time of any such Change in Control unless provision is made in connection with the transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the
continuation or assumption of the Restricted Shares, or the substitution of the Restricted Shares with new shares of the surviving or successor entity or a
parent thereof.

(d) Adjustments for Unusual Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, in its discretion and without the consent of the Employee,
adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, the Award Shares in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the
Company, or the financial statements of the Company or any Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the
Administrator determines that such adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be
made available pursuant to the Award Shares or the Plan.

(e) Binding Nature of Adjustments. Adjustments under this Section 7 will be made by the Administrator, whose determination as to what
adjustments, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive. No fractional Award Shares will result from any such
adjustments.

(f) Binding Nature of Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply with equal force to any additional and/or substitute
securities received by the Employee in exchange for, or by virtue of the Employee's ownership of, the Award Shares, whether as a result of any spin-off, stock
split-up, stock dividend, stock distribution or other reclassification of the Common Stock of the Company, except as otherwise determined by the
Administrator. If the Award Shares are converted into or exchanged for, or stockholders of the Company receive by reason of any distribution in total or
partial liquidation or pursuant to any merger of the Company or acquisition of its assets, securities of another entity, or other property (including cash), then
the rights of the Company under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the Company's successor, and this Agreement shall apply to the securities or
other property received upon such conversion, exchange or distribution in the same manner and to the same extent as the Award Shares.

8. Confidential Information. In consideration of the Award Shares granted to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, the Employee agrees and
covenants that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Employee will keep confidential any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary
information of the Company which are now or which hereafter may become known to the Employee as a result of the Employee's employment by or other
service relationship with the Company, and shall not at any time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any person, firm, Company or other
entity, or use the same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during and after the Employee's employment or
other service relationship. The provisions of this Section 8 shall not narrow or otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Employee set forth in
any agreement of similar import entered into between the Employee and the Company.

9. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will or other employment status or
other service relationship of the Employee, nor be construed as a contract of employment or service relationship between the Company and the Employee, or
as a contractual right of the Employee to continue in the employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any period of time, or as a limitation of
the right of the Company to discharge the Employee at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge results in the failure of any
Award Shares to vest or any other adverse effect on the Employee's interests under the Plan.
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10. Rights as Stockholder. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement with respect to the Restricted Shares, the Employee shall be entitled to all
rights of a stockholder of the Company, including the right to vote the shares and receive dividends and/or other distributions declared on the Award Shares.

11. The Company's Rights. The existence of the Award Shares shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to
make or authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger
or consolidation of the Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise
affecting the Common Stock or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the Company's
assets or business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

12. Employee. Whenever the word "Employee" is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be
construed, as determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal representative, beneficiary to whom the Award Shares may be transferred by
will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or another permitted transferee, if any, the word "Employee" shall be deemed to include such person.

13. Notices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently made or given
if hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to the Employee at the address contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the
Administrator, care of the Company for the attention of its Corporate Secretary at its principal executive office or, if the receiving party consents in advance,
transmitted and received via telecopy or via such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Award Shares granted hereunder. Any oral
or written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect
to the Award Shares granted hereunder shall be void and ineffective for all purposes.

15. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion; provided, however, that this Agreement
may not be modified in a manner that would have a materially adverse effect on the Award Shares as determined in the discretion of the Administrator, except
as provided in the Plan or in a written document signed by each of the parties hereto.

16. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable provisions of, the Plan.
Inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved in accordance with the terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this
Agreement or any matters as to which this Agreement is silent, the Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator.

17. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions made by the Administrator relating
to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to its provisions concerning the applicability of laws of other jurisdictions. Any suit with
respect hereto will be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include Annapolis, Maryland, and the Employee hereby agrees and submits to
the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof.

18. Electronic Delivery of Documents. The Employee (i) consents to the electronic delivery of this Agreement, all information with respect to the Plan
and the Award Shares and any reports of the Company provided generally to the Company's stockholders; (ii) acknowledge that the Employee may
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receive from the Company a paper copy of any documents delivered electronically at no cost to the Employee by contacting the Company by telephone or in
writing; (iii) further acknowledges that the Employee may revoke his or her consent to the electronic delivery of documents at any time by notifying the
Company of such revoked consent by telephone, postal service or electronic mail; and (iv) further acknowledges that the Employee understands that he or she
is not required to consent to electronic delivery of documents.

19. No Future Entitlement. The Employee acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the grant of these Award Shares is a one-time benefit which does not create
any contractual or other right to receive future grants of stock, or compensation in lieu of stock grants, even if stock grants have been granted repeatedly in the
past; (ii) all determinations with respect to any such future grants, including, but not limited to, the times when stock grants shall be granted, the maximum
number of shares subject to each stock grant, and the times or conditions under which restrictions on such stock grants shall lapse, will be at the sole
discretion of the Administrator; (iii) the value of this stock grant is an extraordinary item of compensation which is outside the scope of the Employee's
employment contract, if any; (iv) the value of this stock grant is not part of normal or expected compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not
limited to, calculating any termination, severance, resignation, redundancy, end of service payments or similar payments, or bonuses, long-service awards,
pension or retirement benefits; (v) the vesting of these Award Shares ceases upon termination of employment with the Company or transfer of employment
from the Company, or other cessation of eligibility for any reason, except as may otherwise be explicitly provided in this Agreement; (vi) the Company does
not guarantee any future value of these Award Shares; and (vii) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages arises if these Award Shares do not
increase in value and the Employee irrevocably releases the Company from any such claim that does arise.

20. Personal Data. For the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing this stock grant, the Employee consents to the collection,
receipt, use, retention and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the Employee's personal data by and among the Company and its third party vendors. The
Employee understands that personal data (including but not limited to, name, home address, telephone number, employee number, employment status, social
security number, tax identification number, date of birth, nationality, job and payroll location, data for tax withholding purposes and shares awarded,
cancelled, exercised, vested and unvested) may be transferred to third parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of this stock
grant and the Plan and the Employee expressly authorizes such transfer as well as the retention, use, and the subsequent transfer of the data by the recipient(s).
The Employee understands that these recipients may be located in the Employee's home country or elsewhere, and that the recipient's country may have
different data privacy laws and protections than the Employee's home country. The Employee understands that data will be held only as long as is necessary to
implement, administer and manage this stock grant. The Employee understands that the Employee may, at any time, request a list with the names and
addresses of any potential recipients of the personal data, view data, request additional information about the storage and processing of data, require any
necessary amendments to data or refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing the Company's Secretary. The
Employee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing his or her consent may affect the Employee's ability to accept a stock grant.

21. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
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Exhibit 10.8
 

STOCK POWER

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned,                     , hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., a Maryland
corporation (the "Company"), or its successor,                      shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company standing in my name of the
books of the Company, represented by Certificate No.                     , which is attached hereto, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
                                         as my attorney to transfer the said stock on the books of the Company with full power of substitution in the premises.
 
WITNESS:    
    

  Dated:   
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INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING SECTION 83(b) ELECTIONS
 
1. The 83(b) Election is irrevocable. The 83(b) Election is a voluntary election that is available to you. It is your decision whether to file an 83(b) Election.
 

2. If you choose to make an 83(b) Election, the 83(b) Election Form must be filed with the Internal Revenue Service within 30 days of the Grant Date; no
exceptions to this deadline are made. You should send the election to the internal revenue service center located at the address to which you send your
federal income tax return (IRS form 1040) based on your place of residence. The election should be sent via certified mail with return receipt requested
or a delivery service that provides proof of delivery.

 

3. You must deliver a copy of the 83(b) Election Form to the Corporate Secretary or other designated officer of the Company as soon as practicable after
you receive proof that the original was received by the Internal Revenue Service. Irrespective of the fact that a copy of your 83(b) Election Form is to
be delivered to the Company, you remain solely responsible for properly filing the original with the Internal Revenue Service.

 

4. In addition to making the filing under Item 2 above, you must attach a copy of your 83(b) Election Form to your federal tax return for the taxable year
that includes the Grant Date. Applicable state law also may require you to attach a copy of the 83(b) Election Form to any state income tax returns that
you file for that taxable year.

 

5. If you make an 83(b) Election and later forfeit the Award Shares, you will not be entitled to a refund of the taxes paid with respect to the gross income
you recognized under the 83(b) Election.

 

6. You must consult your personal tax advisor before making an 83(b) Election. You may not rely on this information, the Company, or any of the
Company's officers, directors, or employees for tax or legal advice regarding the Award Shares or the 83(b) Election. The election form attached to
these instructions is intended as a sample only. It must be tailored to your circumstances and may not be relied upon without consultation with a
personal tax advisor.
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SECTION 83(b) ELECTION FORM

Election Pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code
to Include Property in Gross Income in Year of Transfer

The undersigned hereby makes an election pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the property described below and
supplies the following information in accordance with the regulations promulgated thereunder:

1. The name, address, and taxpayer identification number of the undersigned are:
 

  
  
  

    -    -             

2. The property with respect to which the election is made is                      shares of Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value, of TeleCommunication
Systems, Inc., a Maryland corporation.

3. The date on which the property was transferred to the taxpayer was                     , 20    .

4. The taxable year to which this election relates is calendar year 20    .

5. The property is subject to forfeiture if for any reason taxpayer's service with the issuer is terminated. The risk of forfeiture lapses in installments,
[describe vesting provisions], provided that the taxpayer is in the employ of or a service relationship with the issuer on each such date.

6. The fair market value at the time of transfer (determined without regard to any restrictions other than restrictions which by their terms will never
lapse) of the property with respect to which this election is being made is $         per share; with a cumulative fair market value of $        . The taxpayer did not
pay any amount for these shares.

7. A copy of this statement was furnished to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., for whom taxpayer rendered the services underlying the transfer of
such property.

8. This election is made to the same effect, and with the same limitations, for purposes of any applicable state statute corresponding to Section 83(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

The undersigned understands that the foregoing election may not be revoked except with the consent of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.
 

Signed:   
Date:   
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Letter for filing §83(b) Election Form

[Date]

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Internal Revenue Service Center
 

 
 
 

(the Service Center to which individual income tax return is filed)
 
Re:  83(b) Election of      

 Social Security Number:      

Dear Sir/Madam:

Enclosed is an election under §83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 with respect to certain shares of stock of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.,
a Maryland corporation, that were transferred to me on                    , 20    .

Please file this election.
 
Sincerely,
 

cc: Corporate Secretary of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

This election must be filed with the Internal Revenue Service Center with which the employee files his or her Federal income tax returns and must be filed
within 30 days after the date of award of the shares. This filing should be made by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. The employee must
retain two copies of the completed form for filing with his or her Federal and state tax returns for the current tax year and an additional copy for his or her
records.



Exhibit 12.1

Supplemental Financial Schedule II

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(amounts in thousands)
 

Column A   Column B    Column C    Column D   Column E  

Description   

Balance
Beginning

of Year    

Additions,
Costs, and
Expenses    Deductions   

Balance End
of Year  

Year ended December 31, 2011        
Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 447    $ —      $ (79)  $ 368  
Income tax valuation allowance   $ 698    $ —      $ —     $ 698  
Year ended December 31, 2010        
Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 389    $ 175    $ (117)  $ 447  
Income tax valuation allowance   $ 698    $ —      $ —     $ 698  
Year ended December 31, 2009        
Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 285    $ 234    $ (130)  $ 389  
Income tax valuation allowance   $ —      $ 698    $ —     $ 698  



Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Networks In Motion, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Solvern Innovations, Inc., a Maryland corporation
NextGen Communications, Inc., a Maryland corporation
NextGen Communications, Inc., a Virginia corporation
NIM (TianJin) Co., Ltd., a corporation registered in China
Networks in Motion Sweden AB, a corporation of Sweden



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-170412, 333-144742, 333-136072, 333-118610,
333-107466, 333-66676, 333-51656, 333-48026) pertaining to various stock incentive and option plans and in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos.
333-165005, 333-161544, 333-133018, 333-119431, 333-112759, 333-104305) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. of our reports dated March 7, 2012, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 7, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Maurice B. Tosé, certify that:
 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;
 

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls
over financial reporting.

Date: March 7, 2012
 
/s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, CEO and President
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that:
 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;
 

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls
over financial reporting.

Date: March 7, 2012
 
/s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Sr. Vice President & CFO



EXHIBIT 32.1
 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Maurice B. Tosé, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the "Registrant"), certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2011 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Date: March 7, 2012

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2
 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the "Registrant"), certify, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2011 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Date: March 7, 2012

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Supplier Business’s Connected Car Report projects that more than 
50% of North American drivers will be using smartphones by 2013. 
TCS technology that incorporates safety rules and interoperability with 
automotive head units and dashboard screens will be increasingly valu-
able and prolifi c.

Safety and Security. The FCC predicts that spending on Next 
Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) infrastructure over the next ten years will 
total $1.2 billion of nonrecurring investment and $300 million of annual 
recurring spending. TCS expects to be a leader in this market.

Since deploying the fi rst U.S. wireless E9-1-1 solution in 1998, TCS 
has been a leader in enabling public safety solutions for wireless 
E9-1-1, NG9-1-1, and E1-1-2. We are pioneering the methods by which 
U.S. public safety answering points can receive a wireless or VoIP 
subscriber’s location and other information like photos and videos 
during emergency calls.

In 2011, we were awarded contracts to supply NG9-1-1 solutions by the 
States of Tennessee and Iowa and the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments (metro Dallas), and we expect to deliver the fi rst state-
wide implementation in the nation in 2012. Our major role in the NG9-1-1 
partner ecosystem has been widely recognized as an important step for 
broad next generation deployments. 

Messaging. While the contribution from our more mature text mes-
saging business became less signifi cant in 2011, we continued to earn 
steady support and maintenance revenue. And we foresee continued 
use of text messaging service for 3G/4G networks for years to come in 
consumer and enterprise markets.

In addition to enterprise messaging, TCS provides a mobile security 
solution suite, TCS Secure the Edge™, which provides authentication, 
verifi cation, notifi cation and compliance to protect valuable corporate 
information over broadband networks. 

In 2011, we received our fi rst six orders for Commercial Mobile Alerts 
Service (CMAS), which enables wireless carriers to comply with the 

rapidly approaching April 2012 deadline to integrate with the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Gateway. Our technology can 
be further monetized in enterprise solutions to enable message broad-
casts of local and geographically relevant information. 

TCS continues to support the use of SMS to access 911 wireless 
emergency services. We are well positioned to assist all public safety 
stakeholders in deployment of this emergency service, leveraging TCS’ 
unique qualifi cations, experience and IP in E9-1-1 and messaging. 

Intellectual Property

During the year, we engaged a leading IP strategy fi rm to evaluate our 
patent portfolio. While we believe their $114 million to $171 million 
estimation was conservative, we take the long view in addressing the 
global growth markets for which we build solutions. We added more 
than 80 patents in 2011, and ended the year with 217 patents and 330 
applications pending worldwide. We are actively planning the most 
effective mechanisms to use these assets, which include direct out-
licensing efforts, cross licensing and enforcement to maintain our mar-
ket advantage.

Looking Ahead

We believe our size and transparency as a public company position us 
well for new large business opportunities for our technology around the 
world. The TCS leadership team is collaborating to expand our market 
footprint beyond the network operators and federal agencies where we 
began. 

In 2012, we expect to signifi cantly increase our traction in markets out-
side North America. Our deliverables have been hardened in large scale 
networks and government environments, and we have budgeted to 
deploy personnel and facilities in Latin America and in the EMEA mar-
kets to support our channels and NATO partners.

We are confi dent that our evolving mix of deliverables of more 
secure TotalCom solutions for government customers and the grow-
ing global location-based business market will yield signifi cant organic 
growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profi t growth 
our primary objective.

TCS currently employs about 1,500 men and women comprised of top 
communications technology talent around the globe. I would like to 
thank the TCS family, whose capabilities and dedication represents the 
foundation upon which we create and deliver value to customers and 
shareholders.

Sincerely,

 

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, President and CEO

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements
This document includes certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. For example, the statements that (i) our scale 
positions us to participate in greater global market opportunities; (ii) our size and experience are important differentiators as we bid on large government contracts and new carrier busi-
ness around the globe; (iii) we foresee continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012; (iv) our pipeline reflects our continuing role in the government deployable systems market; 
(v) work on the U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue; (vi) we are qualified to win key government wireless communication technology contract awards in 2012; (vii) 
eleven major government contract prospects are expected to be awarded in 2012; (viii) we continue to be a vibrant player in the growing turn-by-turn navigation market; (ix) our technology 
that incorporates safety rules and interoperability with automotive head units and dashboard screens will be increasingly valuable and prolific; (x) we expect to be a leader in the NG9-1-1 
infrastructure market; (xi) we expect to deliver the first state-wide implementation of NG9-1-1 in the nation in 2012; (xii) we foresee continued use of text messaging service for 3G/4G 
networks for years to come; (xiii) our technology can be further monetized in enterprise solutions; (xiv) we are well positioned to assist public safety stakeholders in the deployment of 
SMS-to-911 services; (xv) we are planning the most effective mechanisms for the use of our intellectual property; (xvi) we expect to expand our market footprint, and to markets outside 
of North America, including Latin America and the EMEA markets; and (xvii) we foresee significant organic growth in 2012 and subsequent years, with long-term profit growth our primary 
objective are some of the forward looking statements in this document. These statements involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially. Factors that could cause 
or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed elsewhere in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revi-
sions to the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.

GAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation
EBITDA is not a financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and should not be considered as an alternative to net 
income, operating income or any other financial measures so calculated and presented, nor as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a measure of our liquidity. We define 
EBITDA as net income/(loss) before non-cash stock compensation expense; amortization of software development costs, property and equipment and other intangibles; depreciation; 
and interest expense and other non-cash financing costs. Other companies (including our competitors) may define EBITDA differently. We present EBITDA because we believe it to be an 
important supplemental measure of our performance that is commonly used by securities analysts, investors, and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies in our industry. 
Management also uses this information internally for forecasting and budgeting. It may not be indicative of the historical operating results of TCS nor is it intended to be predictive of 
potential future results. You should not consider EBITDA in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. 

The following table reconciles the specific items excluded from GAAP net income in the calculation of EBITDA for the periods shown below:

($ in millions) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Net income/(loss) on a GAAP basis  $ (21.7) $  (1.3) $  57.6 $  28.3 $  15.9 $  7.0 

Depreciation and amortization 9.3 7.7 8.1 9.9 23.7 28.5
Non-cash stock-based compensation 3.1 4.3 3.8 5.9 10.2 9.7
Financing and other expenses (incl. debt conversion expense in 2004) 3.2 4.6 0.9 1.9 8.4 8.4
Discontinued operations 23.7 0.3 -  - - -
Provision/(benefit) for income taxes  -    -    (33.3) 18.8 8.1 5.4
Gain on sale of patent  -    -    (8.1) (15.7) - -

EBITDA  $  17.6 $ 15.6 $  29.0 $  49.1 $  66.3 $  59.0

Copyright
© 2012 TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (TCS). All rights reserved. Enabling Convergent Technologies®, Connections that Matter®, Designed for Mobility®, SwiftLink®, Xypoint®, AtlasBook®, Gokivo®, 
TotalCom™ and TCS™ are trademarks of TCS. All other trademarks are the property of their respective companies. Information subject to change without notice. | NasdaqGSM: TSYS

Corporate InformationGovernment Solutions

TCS is a proven and trusted supplier of TotalCom™ solutions 
designed to solve the government’s toughest technical challenges. 
Focused on C4ISR for more than two decades, TCS has delivered 
solutions that enable seamless, highly secure voice, video, and 
data communication. During 2011, the company made signifi cant 
progress evolving its mix of deliverables towards more secure, 
TotalCom solutions for federal and state government customers. 

Government segment revenue in 2011 was up 25% to a record 
$234 million from the prior record set in 2010. Growth was driven 
by continued funding from the U.S. government for TCS TotalCom 
solutions, including new SwiftLink® terminals, cyber security train-
ing, and communication systems fi eld support and maintenance.

Government Services. We have been building recurring govern-
ment services revenue over the past decade, derived from: 

• Cyber intelligence and other professional services, 
• Integrated global communication logistics support, and 
• Satellite managed services

Revenue from all these areas continued to grow in 2011, and we fore-
see continued growth in our areas of C4ISR expertise in 2012. 

Government Systems. In 2011, government spending on deploy-
able systems accelerated and TCS’ increasing pipeline refl ects our 
continuing role in the market, including new, enhanced versions using 
tropo technology. We also shipped our fi rst Swiftcell secure cellular 
deployable system to a leading national guard operation.

Engineers from TCS Space & Component Technologies (formerly 
Trident), which we acquired in January 2011, are providing design and 
development support for enhancement of the functionality of our 

deployable systems. The unit also earned strong revenue supporting 
space programs in Japan, China, Brazil and Russia, and work on the 
U.S. Orion Space program will contribute to 2012 revenue. 

We are qualifi ed to win key government wireless communication 
technology contract awards in 2012 and beyond. We have been 
systematically preparing for as much as two years for more than 30 
major contract vehicle and procurement opportunities with long lead 
times. Eleven major prospects are currently expected to be awarded 
in 2012, including the Army’s GTACS, Homeland Security’s Eagle II, 
and the GSA’s CS2.

Commercial Solutions

TCS’ commercial business is a trusted source of technology for wire-
less carriers and network operators, who, in turn, are highly trusted 
communications institutions. 

We have pioneered the development of wireless applications, 
including text messaging, location-based services (LBS) infrastruc-
ture, Internet content and hyper-local search and public safety 
services.

The TCS spirit is refl ected in the large number of key patents and 
leadership achievement which include:

• First wireless E9-1-1 services
• #1 worldwide in LBS end-to-end solutions
• #1 in U.S. for text messaging and #3 globally

Location-Based Services. TCS is a world-leader in providing 
high-reliablility end-to-end LBS solutions. Our customers include 
leading consumer brands, foreign and domestic auto manufacturers, 
content providers, and more than 40 mobile operators and carriers 
worldwide.

During 2011, we released version 7.5 of our fl agship turn-by-turn navi-
gation application and expanded the availability of our Locator (family 
and asset) applications to new platforms. 

According to BERG Insight, the number of mobile subscribers using 
a handset turn-by-turn navigation app doubled in 2011, and is fore-
casted to grow at a 22% compound annual growth rate to 340 million 
users worldwide by 2016. TCS continues to be a vibrant player in this 
growing market.

Telematics. TCS telematics leads the way in providing embeddable 
navigation and content for mobile and automotive products. We con-
tinue to leverage our expertise to deliver connected-car telematics 
solutions to the automotive industry. 

Our NavBuilder® Inside (NBI) platform drew signifi cant attention in 
the telematics and carrier markets in 2011. The Hyundai BlueLink® 
solution utilizes TCS connected navigation functionality, and helped 
earn Hyundai the January 2012 Car of the Year award at the North 
American International Auto Show. 
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www.telecomsys.com.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders will 
be held at 10:00 a.m. on June 14, 2012 at:

The Westin Annapolis 
100 Westgate Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland

TCS Cross-Supporting Technologies

Commercial 
Location-Based Services,

E9-1-1, Telematics &
Messaging   

Cyber 
Security 

Training
Offense/Defense

Government
Secure Satellite,

Tropo Comms,
Aerospace

Components

Next 
Generation 

911

Secure 
Cellular 
Comm

Mobile Alerts,
Lawful 

Intercept,
M2M

Information 
Assurance

A Value-Added Systems Integrator
Providing “Mission Critical” Total Communication 

Solutions, Globally

Most Comprehensive Set of Core to the Edge 
Communications Solutions
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Sustained Growth 

in Secure Highly-Reliable 

Wireless Communication 

Technologies

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (TCS) (NASDAQ: TSYS) is a world leader in highly reliable 

and secure wireless communication technology. TCS provides end-to-end, secure, satellite-

based solutions, including deployable ground terminals and precision components, fi eld support, 

teleport and bandwidth access, and professional cybersecurity and IT services. TCS is at the 

forefront of new mobile cloud computing services providing wireless applications for navigation, 

hyper-local search, asset tracking, social applications, and telematics. For cellular networks 

around the world, TCS is a leader in text messaging and location-based services, including 

E9-1-1 call routing. Headquartered in Annapolis, MD, TCS maintains technical, service, and sales 

offices around the world. 

About the Company

In 2011, TeleCommunication Systems 
continued to grow and transform as a world 
leader in highly reliable and secure mobile 
communication technology. 

In addition to generating record revenues and 
gross profi t, 2011 was a year of investing in 
engineering depth, enhancing the performance 
and functionality of our systems and services, 
strengthening our sales and marketing, and 
increasing the resources to protect and 
monetize our expanding IP portfolio.

Our continuous growth over the last 13 years 
has brought TCS to a scale that positions 
us to participate in greater global market 
opportunities. With solutions provided on six 
continents, we have a broadening footprint 
of deployments across federal, state and 
commercial users of TCS technology. Our size 
and experience are important differentiators as 
we bid on large government contracts and new 
carrier business around the globe.

Government

Commercial

CAGR = Compound Annual Growth Rate 

28
% CAGR

201120102009200820072006

$191

$234
$425

$202

$127
$102

$75$77

$187

$173

$118

$69
$48

$389

$300

$220

$144
$125

Revenue 
in millions

Patent-related gains

EBITDA = Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization

See reconciliation to GAAP on the inside
back cover

27
% CAGR

201120102009200820072006

$59

$66$65

$37

$16

$8

$49

$29

$15$17

EBITDA
in millions

Dear Fellow Shareholders

Maurice B.  Tosé
Chairman, President 

and CEO

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Headquarters

275 West Street, Annapolis, MD  21401
410.263.7616   •   1.888.728.TSYS (8797)

www.telecomsys.com
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